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The Intesa Sanpaolo Group: presence in Italy
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The Intesa Sanpaolo Group: international presence
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Letter from the Chair

Distinguished Shareholders,

the year 2023 was characterised by considerable complexity at economic, geopolitical and social level. Europe and the US
had to deal with inflation rates persistently overshooting targets, which was countered by monetary policy tightening. Central
banks appear to have achieved their goal of starting to reduce inflation rates without triggering a recession. Despite the global
challenges, 2023 turned out better than expected. The major advanced economies were resilient, although they remained on
the verge of stagnation.

On the geopolitical front, the ongoing conflicts between Russia and Ukraine and in the Middle East, the competition between
China and the US, and the tensions in Africa and Latin America have intensified the trend towards fragmentation of the
globalisation process, fuelling “defensive” industrial policies and the growing emergence of trade blocs.

Despite the challenges, the Italian economy has been remarkably resilient and responsive. From 2019 to date, ltaly’'s GDP
growth has outpaced that of Germany, France, and Spain, thanks to its geographic and sectoral specialisations, which are its
key strengths. The 2023 performance fell short of 1%, affected by the energy and inflationary shock, combined with the
impacts of monetary tightening and less generous construction bonuses. In 2024, growth is expected to pick up in the second
half of the year, driven by the reversal of monetary policies in the US and the Eurozone, an improvement in household
disposable income, a recovery in global demand, and an increase in spending flows from the NRRP. Overall, the annual
performance of Italian GDP is not expected to differ significantly from 2023.

In an environment of uncertainty, 2024 poses significant challenges, including the evolution and risk of escalation of current
conflicts, the results of major upcoming elections, and structural challenges such as climate change, growing inequalities, the
pervasiveness of Atrtificial Intelligence, and population ageing. These issues are tied to the future of human civilisation on the
planet, the solution to which requires the transition to new economic and social models that demand a collective effort from
everyone - governments, institutions, citizens and businesses - at both a global and local scale.

In this changing landscape, Intesa Sanpaolo is fully conscious of the key role played by the financial system and is committed
to growing in harmony with Italy and the other countries in which it operates, seeking not only to maintain its leadership in the
international financial sector but also to promote social equity.

The world population, currently 8 billion, will continue to grow, fuelling tensions and forcing change. Intesa Sanpaolo will
address these challenges by contributing to the energy transition of customers and communities, fostering innovation and the
digitalisation of the production systems for goods and services, and striving to ensure that no one is left behind.

In 2023, Intesa Sanpaolo consolidated its position as the top bank in Italy, cementing its status as frontrunner in the global
credit industry. These results were achieved thanks to the work and professionalism of our people, as well as the trust placed
in us by our customers and the local communities with whom we have forged strong and lasting ties.

The Bank’s environmental and social vocation is permanently embedded in its DNA. The adoption of cutting-edge
technologies is conceived for the benefit of our customers and the people working at the Bank; it is respectful of individuals,
who remain at the core of our actions. This strategic and value-driven vision is embodied in the 2022-2025 Business Plan,
which is proceeding at full pace in order to complete the Bank’s transformation into one of the most efficient, modern, low-risk,
and sustainably profitable institutions.

Intesa Sanpaolo contributes to the competitive growth of the countries where it operates, directing its investments towards
companies committed to the energy transition and open to innovation. The Bank has subscribed to the Net Zero Alliances with
the goal of achieving net zero emissions by 2050. Our commitment to sustainability is expressed through various initiatives
such as support for green projects, the promotion of the circular economy, Green Mortgages, S-Loan products dedicated to
small and medium-sized enterprises to finance projects aimed at improving their sustainability profile, and Digital Loans aimed
at improving the digitalisation of companies, to name but a few.

In 2023, a year when household spending capacity declined significantly, Intesa Sanpaolo strengthened its focus on the “S =
Social” factor, committing itself to combating social inequality and promoting financial, social, educational and cultural
inclusion. Concrete examples of the Bank’s efforts in this regard include the negotiation of the renewal of the National
banking-sector labour contract, with the proposal of suitable financial compensation for employees of the sector; the
distribution of an interim dividend to shareholders and the intention to release part of the excess capital, subject to the
approval of the ECB and the Shareholders’ Meeting; the expansion of the food and shelter programme for people in need and
the social lending, social housing and urban regeneration initiatives; and the establishment of a new organisational unit,
based in Brescia, called “Intesa Sanpaolo for Social Impact”.

Our commitment to ESG continues to be recognised internationally, as reflected by Intesa Sanpaolo’s continued inclusion
among the top 100 most sustainable listed companies in the world, in the Corporate Knights ranking. To achieve this result,
the ESG governance system was further strengthened, introducing mechanisms to ensure consistency and monitoring of
environmental objectives. The ESG regulatory guidelines have become part of our credit framework, also in alignment with
the European taxonomy, focusing on customer needs and opportunities in relation to the circular economy and sustainability.
Technology is a further driver of our competitiveness and a key factor that contributes significantly to Intesa Sanpaolo’s
earnings performance. Examples include Isytech, a new cloud-native technology platform, Isybank, the Group’s digital bank
with a business model featuring a cost/income ratio of less than 30%, and Fideuram Direct, a digital Wealth Management
platform for Private Banking, in addition to the use of Artificial Intelligence, with the adoption of Generative Al solutions and
the goal of creating 150 Apps over the Plan period. The Bank has received significant recognition for its efforts, including
Intesa Sanpaolo Mobile’s rating, for the second consecutive year, as the best banking app in the world in terms of features

and customer experience by the US research institute Forrester.



Intesa Sanpaolo’s success lies in its people and its guiding values. The Bank is committed to respecting all individuals in their
expression of identity and diversity and it was this commitment that led to its inclusion for the sixth consecutive year in the
Bloomberg Gender-Equality Index 2023, obtaining a score well above the average of the global financial sector and of Italian
companies. It also ranked as first bank in Europe, and was the only one in Italy to be recognised, in the Refinitiv Global
Diversity and Inclusion Index 2023 among the top 100 companies for diversity and inclusion. Lastly, another testament to the
Bank’s excellent reputation is its recognition as a Top Employer 2024 for the third consecutive year by the Top Employers
Institute.

The results achieved confirm the success of the strategy pursued so far. The economic value generated in 2023 — 25.9 billion
euro — was distributed as follows: 80% to stakeholders, of which 32% to the people that work for us, 22% to Shareholders,
and the remainder to suppliers, the government, entities, institutions and communities. The Bank has chosen a low-risk
profile, both in terms of assumption of risks and their valuation in the financial statements, as it recognises the importance of
the trust placed in it by households to protect their savings and of its commitment made to businesses. This is why Intesa
Sanpaolo will continue to excel in risk containment, focusing on credit quality, by keeping its capital ratios high and
maintaining a strong liquidity position.

For 2023, in consideration of a Group consolidated net income of 7,724 million euro and a Parent Company net income of
7,292 million euro, a proposal is being made to the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting to distribute cash dividends for a total of
5,408 million euro, which, taking into account the interim dividend of 2,629 million euro paid last November, corresponding to
a unit dividend of 14.40 euro cents, results in a proposal to distribute a remaining dividend of 2,779 million euro,
corresponding to a unit dividend of 15.20 euro cents. The total proposed dividend per share for 2023 is therefore 29.60 euro
cents.

In addition, a buy-back of own shares for annulment is being proposed for an amount equal to around 55 basis points of the
Common Equity Tier 1 ratio as at 31 December 2023, to be launched in June 2024, subject to approvals from the ECB and
the Shareholders’ Meeting, as a result of which shareholders, without having to make any additional investment, will see their
share of Intesa Sanpaolo’s total dividends increase.

Gian Maria Gros-Pietro
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Introduction

As set forth by Legislative Decree 38 of 28 February 2005, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in compliance with the IAS/IFRS issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the
related interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Standards - Interpretations Committee (IFRS-IC), endorsed by
the European Commission as provided for by EC Regulation 1606 of 19 July 2002.

The consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2023 have been prepared based on the “Instructions for the
preparation of the separate and consolidated financial statements of banks and financial companies, which are parent
companies of banking groups” issued by the Bank of Italy, in the exercise of powers set forth by Art. 43 of Legislative Decree
136/2015, with Regulation of 22 December 2005, which issued Circular no. 262/2005, as updated and supplemented. These
Instructions set out compulsory financial statement forms, as well as the contents of the Notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

In particular, for the 2023 Financial Statements, account has been taken of the 8th update of the above-mentioned Circular
issued on 17 November 2022 — which amended Circular 262 to take into account the new IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts,
which came into force on 1 January 2023 — which is applicable from the financial statements for the periods ending on or after
31 December 2023. At the same time, the insurance companies of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group also applied IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, the application of which was deferred by virtue of the Deferral Approach.

The disclosure on the Group’s Accounting Policies presented in Part A of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements
includes an examination of the main areas of impact from the application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 for the Group’s insurance
companies, as well as the main choices made in that regard by the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, illustrating the reasons for the
generation of an impact of first-time adoption on the Shareholders’ Equity, attributable to IFRS 17, IFRS 9 and the interaction
between the two standards.

The consolidated financial statements have been updated in their structure to incorporate the new regulatory provisions in
compliance with the 8th update to Bank of Italy Circular no. 262/2005, and the comparison periods adjusted following the
retrospective application of the two standards. Specifically, the income statement figures have been compared with the
adjusted income statement for the twelve months of 2022, while the balance sheet figures have been compared with the
adjusted balance sheet as at 31 December 2022. For the balance sheet, a comparison with 1 January 2022, the date of
transition to the new standards, has also been provided?.

The Notes to the 2023 Consolidated Financial Statements have been supplemented in accordance with the 8th Update of
Circular 262/2005, which took into account the similar instructions issued by IVASS for the disclosure required by IFRS 172.

It should also be noted that, in its Communication of 14 March 2023, the Bank of Italy repealed and replaced the previous
Communication of 21 December 2021, which had supplemented the provisions of Circular 262 regarding the impacts of
COVID-19 and the measures to support the economy. As a result of the change in the scenario linked to the pandemic, there
is no longer a requirement to provide financial statement disclosures on loans subject to moratoria, whereas disclosures on
loans backed by public guarantees are now required, in free form, at the bottom of several tables in the sections of the Notes
on the balance sheet and on credit risk.

The Consolidated financial statements are made up of the Balance sheet, the Income statement, the Statement of
comprehensive income, the Changes in shareholders’ equity, the Statement of cash flows, the Notes to the consolidated
financial statements and the related comparative information. They are accompanied by the Directors’ Report on operations,
overall and in the Group’s various sectors of operations, on the economic results achieved and on the Group’s balance sheet
and financial position.

The Report on operations contains financial information taken from or attributable to the Consolidated financial statements, as
well as other information — for example, figures on quarterly trends, and certain Alternative Performance Measures — not
taken from or directly attributable to the Consolidated financial statements. In this regard, see the chapter Alternative
Performance Measures in the Report on operations and please note that with specific regard to the aftermath of the military
conflict between Russia and Ukraine, in line with the ESMA guidance, no new measures have been added, nor have any
changes been made to the measures used.

With regard to the ongoing military conflict between Russia and Ukraine in particular, these Consolidated Financial
Statements contain a detailed disclosure that repeats and updates the disclosures already provided in the interim reports.
Specifically, the Report on operations contains a specific paragraph in the introductory chapter describing the risk
management actions, together with the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s approach to the main related accounting issues. These are
then discussed further in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, in Part E, credit risk, where details are provided
of the outstanding exposures and the valuation choices made.

lias1 paragraph 40A requires the presentation of a third statement of financial position for the preceding year, in addition to the minimum comparative
statements required, if an accounting standard is applied retrospectively and this has a material effect. This third compulsory statement is not required
for the preparation of interim reports prepared in accordance with IAS 34, and is therefore only presented in the Consolidated financial statements as at
31 December 2023.

2 To reduce the burden of preparation for banks, in drafting the update, the Bank of Italy considered the provisions issued by IVASS with regard to
IAS/IFRS insurance financial statements — the reference is to ISVAP Regulation no. 7 of 13 July 2007, as amended by Order no. 121 of 7 June 2022 —
adopting the disclosure tables established by IVASS for the aspects relating to insurance contracts pertaining to insurance companies included in the

consolidation.



Introduction

In support of the comments on the results for the year, the Report on operations also presents reclassified income statement
and balance sheet schedules.

In the reclassified statements, the figures are normally restated, where necessary and if they are material, for comparison on
a like-for-like basis. In particular, the amounts are provided as consistently as possible with reference to the different periods
covered, above all in relation to intervening changes in the scope of consolidation. This uniformity is achieved through
“restated” figures, which include/exclude the values of the companies that entered or left the scope of consolidation.
Breakdowns of restatements and reclassifications made in accordance with the layout established in Bank of Italy Circular
262 are provided in separate tables included in the attachments, as also required by Consob in its Communication 6064293
of 28 July 2006.

Even with the application of IFRS 17 and the related end of the period of application of the Deferral Approach for IFRS 9 for
the Group’s insurance companies, it was ensured that the reclassified statements were in line with the approach adopted in
the past, for both the captions of the Balance sheet and those of the Income statement. In line with the adjustment of the
comparative figures, within the consolidated financial statements, as a result of the retrospective application of the two
standards, the comparative figures in the reclassified financial statements have also been adjusted on a like-for-like basis, as
well as the comparative figures for the summary data and indicators presented at the beginning of the opening chapter of the
Report, unless otherwise stated.

The information on corporate governance and ownership structures required by Art. 123 bis of the Consolidated Law on
Finance is provided, as permitted, in a separate report, approved by the Board of Directors and published together with these
financial statements, which can be viewed in the Governance/Company documents section of the Intesa Sanpaolo website, at
group.intesasanpaolo.com. A summary information is provided, however, in the Report on operations, in the paragraph
“Corporate Governance and remuneration policies”.

The Consolidated Non-Financial Statement prepared pursuant to Legislative Decree 254 of 30 December 2016 — which
reports on environmental, social and personnel matters, as well as on respect for human rights and on the fight against active
and passive corruption— is published, as permitted, as a separate report together with these financial statements and is
available for consultation in the Sustainability/Sustainability reporting section of the same website. A summary of the topics
covered is also provided in the Report on operations, in the paragraph “Sustainability and Group strategy on Environmental,
Social and Governance issues”.

The Report on remuneration policy and compensation paid required by Art. 123 ter of the Consolidated Law on Finance and
the disclosure required by Basel 3 Pillar 3 are also published and made available on the website in accordance with the
related approval processes.
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Income statement figures and Alternative

Performance Measures®

- Changes
Consolidated income statement figures (millions of euro)
amount %

I 1464

Net interest income 646 5,146 54.2
9,500
. I 558
Net fee and commission income -361 -4.0
8,919

- 1,666
Income from insurance business 1675 -9 -0.5
Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair | 298 1080 -78.4
value 1,378 '
Operating income I, 25138 o o,

P 9 21,440 ' '
. 320
Operating costs 395 3.6
-10,934
Operati . I, 13,809 3303 314
perating margin 10,506 , .
-1,529
Net adjustments to loans - -1,584  -50.9
-3,113

I 772

Net income (loss) 4,379 3,345 764

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

Quarterly development of main consolidated income statement figures
(millions of euro)

Operating income Operating costs
6,373 25138
6367 . 3,468 11,329

6,341 .
6,057 .

2023 I

2022

Operating margin

Net income (loss)

2,905 13,809
3,717

3,666 .

) For more detailed information on the Alternative Performance Measures, see the specific chapter of the Report on operations.

22




Main income statement figures by business area (*) (millions of euro)

Operating income Operating costs

Banca dei Territori

8,847 6,397
sot0 [ v corporate & I 50
4,298 Investment Banking 1,419
2,925 _ International - 1,197
2,227 Subsidiary Banks 1,118
2475 Private Banking 921
908 [l B 225
962 Asset Management 229
1613 | B 379
1,589 Insurance 385
Operating margin Net income (loss)
4730 N . i Torior 1945
2,450
1,478

2,879 Investment Banking

1,728 _ International 1,173

1,109 Subsidiary Banks

2001 [
1,554 Private Banking 1,034
663 -
Asset Management
740
1’2221 _ Insurance

(*) Excluding Corporate Centre

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued
operations. For more details, see the chapter “Breakdown of consolidated results by business area and geographical area”.

2023 I

2022



Balance sheet figures and Alternative
Performance Measures®
Changes

Consolidated balance sheet figures (millions of euro) amount %
0

_ 169,707 22,463 153

Financial assets
147,244
Financial assets pertaining to insurance companies _ 173,858 1,011 0.6
172,847
I 29,540
Loans to customers -17,314 -3.9
446,854
I 063,570
Total assets 974,587 -11,017 -1.1
— 576,136
Direct deposits from banking business 30,750 5.6
545,386
_ 172,746
Direct deposits from insurance business -926 -0.5
173,672
I, 722,194
Indirect deposits: 656,663 65,531 10.0
444,031
of which: Assets under management 430,165 13,866 3.2
. 63,963
Shareholders' equity . 2,860 4.7
61,103
Loans to customers / Direct deposits from banking business (%) _ 74.6%
(Loan to deposit ratio) 81.9%

Main balance sheet figures by business area (*) (millions of euro)

Loans to customers Direct deposits from banking business
232411 I Gonca dei Territori [N 270,365
247,913 291,089
127,167 | ™! Corporate & I 113,450
129,791 Investment Banking 94,785
42,050 M nternational I 57010
40,212 Subsidiary Banks 54,364
14,372 . . 45,805
15,104 - Private Banking - 50 447
243 | Asset Management | 16
282 26
- Insurance -

(*) Excluding Corporate Centre

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued
operations.

31.12.2023
31.12.2022

) For more detailed information on the Alternative Performance Measures, see the specific chapter of the Report on operations. The application of IFRS
17 and the end of the period of application of the deferral approach for IFRS 9 resulted in a change in the information content of the former caption Direct
deposits from insurance business and technical reserves, now renamed Direct deposits from insurance business, which includes Insurance liabilities,
Financial liabilities and other types of insurance deposits among which subordinated liabilities.

24



Alternative Performance Measures and
other measures ©

Consolidated capital ratios (%)

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) net of regulatory adjustments / - 13.7
Risk-weighted assets (Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio) 13.8
e KX
TIER 1 Capital / Risk-weighted assets 16.2
ke I 2
Total own funds / Risk-weighted assets
19.1
I, 2.0
Risk-weighted assets (millions of euro)
295,443
N I 29,010
Absorbed capital (millions of euro) 29,523
Risk-weighted assets by business area (*) Absorbed capital by business area (*)
(millions of euro) (millions of euro)
I s
Banca dei Territori 7.242
110,836 IMI Corporate & _ 9,537
101,018 Investment 8,698
’ Banking
36,071 International - 3,905
35,056 Subsidiary Banks 3,793
1,924 Private Banking . 1
12,757 1,154
1,990 Asset Management I 212
1,798 195
- B 150
Insurance
- 4,954

(*) Excluding Corporate Centre

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.

31.12.2023 I
31.12.2022

) For more detailed information on the Alternative Performance Measures, see the specific chapter of the Report on operations.



Information on the shares 2023 2022

Number of ordinary shares 18,282,798,989 18,988,803,160
Share price at period-end - ordinary share (euro) 2.644 2.078
Average share price for the period - ordinary share (euro) 2.438 2.024
Average market capitalisation (million) 45,144 38,433
Book value per share (euro) 3.520 3.265
Long-term rating 2023 2022
Moody's Baa1 Baa1
Standard & Poor's Global Ratings BBB BBB
Fitch Ratings BBB BBB
Morningstar DBRS BBB (high) BBB (high)

(*) Book value per share includes minoritry interests and does not consider own shares.

Consolidated profitability ratios (%)

451
t/ Incom ]
Cos come 510

I 52

Net income / Shareholders' equity (ROE) @ 8.5

. o

Net income / Total assets (ROA) ®) 04

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

(a) Ratio between net income and shareholders’ equity at the end of the period. Shareholders’ equity does not include AT1 capital instruments
and income for the period. The comparative figure has not been restated.

(b) Ratio between net income and total assets at the end of the period. The comparative figure has not been restated.

2023 (Income statement figures) —
31.12.2023 (Balance sheet figures)

2022 (Income statement figures)
31.12.2022 (Balance sheet figures)
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Earnings per share (euro)

Basic earnings per share (basic EPS) ©

I 0.2
0.23

Diluted earnings per share (diluted EPS) @

I 02
0.23

(c) Net income (loss) attributable to shareholders compared to the weighted average number of outstanding shares, calculated excluding own

shares. Intesa Sanpaolo’s share capital consists solely of ordinary shares.

(d) The diluted earnings are calculated taking into account any future issuances of new ordinary shares and excluding own shares.

Consolidated risk ratios (%)

Net bad loans / Net loans to customers

i 0.2
0.2

Net non-performing loans / Net loans to customers

—RE

1.2

Cumulated adjustments on bad loans / Gross bad loans to customers

Cumulated adjustments on gross non-performing loans / Gross non-
performing loans to customers

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

I o :

48.4

2023 (Income statement figures)

31.12.2023 (Balance sheet figures) _

2022 (Income statement figures)
31.12.2022 (Balance sheet figures)

Operating structure

Number of employees (e)
Italy
Abroad

Number of financial advisors

Number of branches (f)
Italy
Abroad

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

(e) The workforce indicated refers to the exact number of employees at the end of the period, counting part-time workers as equal to 1 unit.

31.12.2023

94,368
71,946
22,422

5,761
4,259

3,323
936

31.12.2022

95,574
73,283
22,291

5,709
4,565

3,611
954

Changes
amount

-1,206
-1,337
131

52

-306
-288
-18

(f) The figure includes Retail/Exclusive Branches, Non-Profit Sector Branches, Agribusiness Branches, SME Branches and Corporate Branches.
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Overview of 2023

Economic trends

In 2023, world GDP growth slowed down to an estimated 3%. The volume of world trade even contracted, when measured at
constant dollar prices. The slowdown in global economic activity was the result of very different geographical trends. The
growth of the Chinese economy returned to above 5%. In the US, economic activity continued to expand robustly, resulting in
employment growth. The reduction in inflation, in the US and in many other advanced economies, is currently happening
without leading to an economic recession. However, following the resurgence of armed conflicts in the Middle East region,
risks of new exogenous shocks on energy prices and transport costs emerged towards the end of 2023.

The Eurozone experienced a more pronounced slowdown in economic growth. High inflation adversely affected household
demand for goods and services. The European Central Bank's rate hikes slowed the growth of fixed investments. Fiscal policy
became less supportive and the weakness of foreign demand curtailed the contribution from exports. As a result, GDP growth
in the Eurozone was practically stagnant. Despite this, employment continued to rise and the average annual unemployment
rate of 6.5% was lower than in 2022. Inflation fell rapidly, settling at an annual average of 5.4%, and the change in December
compared to a year earlier was 2.7%.

In Italy, based on the preliminary growth estimate, GDP increased by 0.7% in 2023. The stagnation reflected the zero
contribution of net exports and the negative trend in the inventory cycle, amid weaker domestic demand compared to 2022.
Expenditure flows related to the NRRP projects were lower than planned, failing to boost demand as hoped. Fiscal policy is
becoming less expansionary, but limiting the deficit to 5.6% of GDP has proved insufficient to ensure a significant decrease in
debt, which is stabilising at above 140% of GDP. Despite the economic stagnation, employment increased, and the
unemployment rate fell, down to 7.2% in December, the lowest level since 2009. From a sector perspective, value added fell
in manufacturing, rose marginally in construction, and grew in the service sector.

Between February and September 2023, the ECB raised official rates from 2.0% to 4.0% (deposit rate) and signalled in
December that it would keep them at this level for some time. Concurrently, the ECB began reducing its monetary policy
portfolios and continued the accelerated repayment of TLTRO Il loans.

The transmission of the official rate hikes to market interest rates was gradually dampened by the build-up of expectations of
a reversal in the monetary policy cycle. In particular, medium- and long-term interest rates fell significantly in November and
December. The spread between ten-year and two-year rates remained largely negative throughout 2023. The Btp-Bund
spread narrowed over the year to 155-160 basis points. The offering of government bonds was mainly covered by an
exceptional increase in net demand from Italian households, with a modest positive contribution from foreign investors.

The rises in key interest rates fed through to the lending and borrowing rates of Italian Banks with different speeds and
intensities, significantly widening the spread between the average lending rate and the cost of funding. In the credit market,
there was a moderate tightening in the lending criteria, consistent with the direction of monetary policy and the increase in
perceived risks. On the other hand, higher interest rates led to a sharp reduction in the demand for loans. Loans to
businesses declined rapidly, reaching a low in September, with the downward trend slowing in the fourth quarter. The growth
of loans to households decelerated sharply, and the stock declined in the second half of 2023. Funding from customers
decreased significantly due to outflows from current accounts, partly as a result of the reallocation of savings towards more
remunerative financial instruments, including domestic government bonds. Alongside this, there was a strong recovery in time
deposits and a return to growth for bank bonds. Substantial purchases of government bonds by savers fuelled assets under
administration, which continued the recovery that began in 2022. However, the rise in interest rates negatively impacted the
asset management industry, which saw net outflows in 2023 for mutual funds, portfolio management schemes, and life
insurance.
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Consolidated results of Intesa Sanpaolo

Like the Interim Statement as at 31 March 2023, the Half-yearly Report as at 30 June 2023 and the Interim Statement as at
30 September 2023, the 2023 Annual Report has also been prepared applying IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts. At the same
time, the insurance companies of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group also applied IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the adoption of which
was deferred in the previous years by virtue of the Deferral Approach.

The commentary on the results for 2023 therefore refers to the reclassified consolidated income statement, which presents
the comparative figures for the twelve months of 2022 adjusted in relation to the retrospective application of the two
standards. For the aspects more closely related to the application of the two standards, see the Notes to the consolidated
financial statements, Part A — Accounting policies (A.1 General criteria, Section 1). For the impacts on the structure and
contents of the reclassified consolidated income statement and balance sheet, see the chapter “Economic results and
balance sheet aggregates” of this Report on operations.

The consolidated income statement for 2023 posted a net income of 7,724 million euro, up significantly on 4,379 million euro
for 2022 (+3,345 million euro; +76.4%).

This trend was driven by the positive operating performance, particularly on the revenue side, and by lower adjustments to
loans, which almost halved compared to 2022. It is recalled that, on the one hand, significant amounts were recognised in that
year in relation to the exposures to Russia and Ukraine (adjustments totalling 1,415 million euro, of which 1,298 million euro
related to credit risk, equivalent to 1,145 million euro net of tax). On the other hand, adjustments to performing loans
amounting to 1,174 million euro gross were recognised, mostly in the fourth quarter, mainly related to management overlays
applied on a prudent basis where potential vulnerabilities had been identified, against de-risking actions and the application of
a deterioration factor to the prudent macroeconomic scenario adopted for the forward-looking estimate of ECLs, only partially
mitigated by the reduction of the overlays covering the vulnerability of the moratoria (721 million euro).

In more detail, operating income continued the positive trend
shown during the vyear, reaching 25,138 million euro
(+3,698 million euro; +17.2% compared to 2022).
In a scenario of repeated hikes in key interest rates decided by the
2023 2022 ECB from July 2022 onwards?®, the aggregate was driven by net
I 21.440 interest income, which rose by 54.2% to 14,64_6 million euro,
representing over 58% of total net income (44.3% in 2022). Within
this caption, the net contribution from customer dealing increased
40 EEEN 6,373 4Q 5,667 by 45.8%, despite a progressive rise in the cost of funding through
30 6,367 3q 5018 securities. Interest income on financial assets in the portfolio also
increased significantly, by more than double also as a result of the
increase in the stocks, as did other net interest income. Only the
10 Il 6,057 1Q 5,411 negative differentials on hedging derivatives and relations with
banks moved in the opposite direction. Although it gradually
improved over the quarters, the positive contribution from relations
with banks in 2023 was more than 30% lower than in 2022, mainly as a result of the decrease in interbank operations.
The net interest income performance described above more than offset the decreases in other revenue items.
Net fee and commission income fell to 8,558 million euro (-4%). The decrease related to (i) management, dealing and
consultancy activities, which were affected by the market volatility which dampened the revenue items related to the assets
under management and the placement of insurance products in particular, despite the positive performance of the dealing
and placement of securities; (i) commercial banking activities, particularly guarantees and current accounts, despite the
positive trend in collection and payment services; and (iii) other net fee and commission income, mainly in the revenue
component related to loans granted.
The income from insurance business was essentially stable at 1,666 million euro (-0.5%), with an improvement in the
contribution from the technical margin and the net investment result attributable to the non-life business.
Profits (losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value fell by 78.4% to 298 million euro. This reduction
should be interpreted together with the increase in the net interest income, with reference to transactions in certificates, which
generated positive effects on interest income in terms of greater liquidity invested and negative effects on trading related to
the management of financial risks following the increase in market interest rates. The decrease in the caption was therefore
mainly concentrated within the "Profits (losses) on trading and on financial instruments under fair value option", in addition to
lower profits on disposal activities and the negative contribution from the hedge accounting.
Lastly, the caption other operating income (expenses), which includes profits on investments carried at equity and other
income/expenses from continuing operations, recorded a net negative balance of -30 million euro, compared to -32 million
euro in 2022 (-6.3%). The aggregate benefited from the increase in profits on investments carried at equity (from 40 million
euro to 43 million euro) against a marginal increase in net operating expenses.
In the inflationary environment of 2023, operating costs rose by 3.6% to 11,329 million euro (+395 million euro).
Personnel expenses increased to 6,981 million euro (+3.5%). The positive effects of the reduction in the average workforce
(-1,752 staff; -1.8%) only partially offset the salary adjustments resulting from the renewal of the national collective bargaining
agreement, for the part effective from 1 July 2023.
Administrative expenses also increased to 3,002 million euro (+3.1%), although with contrasting movements among the
various captions. Amortisation and depreciation also increased to 1,346 million euro (+5.2%), mainly attributable to intangible
assets, essentially investments in technology, only partially offset by the reduction for property and equipment, essentially
rights of use acquired under leases by the Parent Company, following the renegotiation and early termination of several
agreements.

Operating income
(millions of euro)

20 N 6,341 2Q 5,344

3 The annual average of 1-month Euribor went from +0.09% in 2022 to +3.24% in 2023.
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Operating margin As a result Qf the revenue _and cost performance descri_b_ed above,

(millions of euro) the operating margin increased to 13,809 million euro
(+3,303 million euro; +31.4%) and the cost/income ratio fell by
almost 6 percentage points, from 51% to 45.1%.

2023 2022

Fy D 3509 | FY 10,506 As mentioned in the in_trpduction, net adjustme'nt_s to Ioan_s more
than halved to 1,529 million euro, from 3,113 million euro in 2022
(-1,584 million euro; -50.9%), which included the valuation effects

4Q I 2,905 4Q 2,537 connected to the Russia-Ukraine risk of 1,298 million euro (in

3Q N 3717 3Q I 2,378 contrast, recoveries totalling 206 million euro were recognised in
2023, of which 35 million euro in the fourth quarter, essentially as

20 I 3,666 2Q 2,704 a result of sales of/proceeds from cross-border non-performing

1Q EEE 3521 1Q 2887 positions and the reduction in volumes).

The cost of risk, represented as the ratio of net adjustments to net
loans, consequently fell to 36 basis points compared to 70 basis
points for the year 2022 (30 basis points when excluding adjustments for the Russia-Ukraine exposure and the additional
adjustments for overlays and to favour de-risking, net of the release of generic provisions set aside in 2020 for expected
COVID-19 impacts).

Other net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets rose from 270 million euro to 570 million euro, made up of:

— net provisions of 256 million euro (106 million euro in 2022), which, in addition to provisions for legal disputes, included
32 million euro recognised in the second quarter as the estimated cost of the Reward prize contest “Intesa Sanpaolo
2024, launched to increase customer loyalty and engagement and 114 million euro, in addition to the 80 million euro
already allocated in December 2022, posted on consolidation of the investee Banca Intesa Russia in order to write off its
equity contribution to the consolidated financial statements against the net income accrued during the year;

— net impairment losses on other assets of 314 million euro, which included 117 million euro attributable to valuations of
the credit risk component relating to securities in the portfolio, in addition to some components recognised in the fourth
quarter for de-risking purposes (164 million euro in 2022, which included 37 million euro for valuations of the Russia and
Ukraine risk on securities and real estate).

Other income (expenses), which include realised gains and losses on investments and income/expenses not strictly related to

operations, made a positive contribution of 348 million euro, thanks to gains of 116 million euro from the sale of the PBZ Card

acquiring business line to Nexi in the first quarter and 192 million euro from the sale of the stake held in Zhong Ou Asset

Management*, completed in the second quarter (in 2022, this caption totalled 202 million euro, which included the gain of

195 million euro from the sale of Intesa Sanpaolo Formazione and the one-off contribution to Intesa Sanpaolo’s people of

41 million euro® to mitigate the impact of inflation, both of which relating to the second quarter).

As a result of the combined effect of the accounting entries described above, gross income showed significant improvement

to 12,058 million euro (+4,733 million euro; +64.6%).

The change in the taxable base led to an increase in taxes on income for the year to 3,438 million euro (+65.3%), despite

having benefited from 352 million euro following the recognition of deferred tax assets relating to losses carried forward

pertaining to the former UBI Banca, resulting in a tax rate of 28.5% (28.4% in 2022).

Net of tax, the following were recorded: charges for integration and exit incentives of 222 million euro (2022 comparison figure

of 140 million euro), of which 139 million euro (46 million euro in 2022) attributable to the Parent Company; and the negative

effects of purchase price allocation, which increased to -161 million euro from -146 million euro in the previous year, for more
than two thirds attributable to the Parent Company.

Charges aimed at maintaining the stability of the banking industry remained high, although decreasing: 485 million euro

(706 million euro before tax) against the comparison figure of 576 million euro (836 million euro before tax) recorded in 2022.

4 The gross gain shown takes into account the remaining amount received from the buyer, as consideration, following the payment of the Chinese local
tax on the gain, made by Intesa Sanpaolo in September and recognised under the caption taxes. Considered in net tax terms, the contribution from the
gain remains unchanged at around 154 million euro.

5 You are reminded that, in relation to the amount of the contribution paid — equal to 48 million euro, recognised in the consolidated income statement in
the second quarter of 2022 — as a result of the exemption from taxation (and social security contributions) under the “Aiuti-bis” Decree (Law Decree no.
115 of 9 August 2022, converted by Law no. 142 of 21 September 2022) and the “Aiuti-quater” Decree (Law Decree no. 176 of 18 November 2022,
converted with amendments by Law no. 6 of 13 January 2023), the cost actually incurred was reduced to 41 million euro, due to the reversal of the
related social security contributions.
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These charges essentially consisted of: (i) 221 million euro net
(323 million euro before tax) of ordinary contributions, recognised
in the first half and relating to the full year 2023, to the single
resolution fund for the Group’s Italian and international banks®,

Net income (loss)
(millions of euro)

2023 2022 down from 254 million euro net (369 million euro before tax) in
S Y 4379 2022; and (ii) 253 million euro net (373 million euro before tax)
’ ' from the contribution relating to the deposit guarantee funds,
charged in the second half of the year for the most significant

4Q I 1,602 4Q | 1,076 portion, relating to the Group’s Italian banks.
3Q I 1,900 3Q W 957 After the allocation of the net income of 28 million euro to minority
interests (4 million euro in 2022), the consolidated income
20 I 2.266 2Q 1,303 statement for 2023 closed, as already stated, with a net income of
10 1,956 1Q W 1,043 7,724 million euro, compared with 4,379 million euro for 2022

(+76.4%).

The consolidated income statement for the fourth quarter showed net income of 1,602 million euro, down 15.7% from
1,900 million euro recorded in the previous three months.

Operating income totalled 6,373 million euro, without significant changes compared to the third quarter (+6 million euro;
+0.1%). Within the operating income, the growth in net interest income (+4.8%) continued, supported by relations with banks,
financial assets in the portfolio and other net interest income. Together with the recovery in net fee and commission income
(+0.7%), they offset the negative performance of the profits (losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value
(-143 million euro), which should be viewed — as indicated above — together with the increase in net interest income with
reference to transactions in certificates, and the income from insurance business (-6.7%), as well as the increase in the
negative balance of other operating income (expenses), attributable to operating expenses.

Overall, operating costs increased to 3,468 million euro (+818 million euro; +30.9%). There were significant changes in
administrative expenses (+29.2%) and personnel expenses (+35.5%). While the average workforce increased slightly
(+231 staff; +0.2%), the personnel expenses in the fourth quarter included the adjustments resulting from the renewal of the
national collective bargaining agreement. The quarterly performance of amortisation and depreciation (+11.9%), essentially
attributable to the Parent Company, continued the trend that had already emerged during the year, linked to the investments
in technology and growth.

As a consequence, the operating margin came to 2,905 million euro (-812 million euro; -21.8%), while the cost/income ratio
rose to 54.4% from 41.6% in the third quarter.

Net adjustments to loans amounted to 616 million euro in the last three months of 2023, compared to 357 million euro in the
previous quarter (+72.5%). The increase (+259 million euro) included 148 million euro to support the de-risking of Stage 3
non-performing loans.

Other net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets totalled 332 million euro, compared to 47 million euro in the
third quarter. This caption consisted of (i) 113 million euro from net provisions, also for legal disputes, including 43 million euro
for the write-off of the equity contribution from the Russian investee to the consolidated financial statements; (ii) 219 million
euro from net impairment losses on other assets, mainly attributable to the Parent Company, including 34 million euro for
credit risk on securities in the portfolio, in addition to some components recognised for de-risking purposes.

Other income (expenses), which include realised gains and losses on investments and income/expenses not strictly related to
operations, made a positive contribution of 29 million euro (15 million euro in the third quarter).

As a result of the accounting entries described, the gross income amounted to 1,986 million euro (-1,342 million euro;
-40.3%).

The change in taxable income and the recognition of deferred tax assets of 352 million euro relating to tax losses carried
forward pertaining to the former UBI Banca gave rise to taxes on income for the period of 288 million euro (1,066 million euro
in the third quarter), resulting in a tax rate of 14.5% (32% in the previous three months).

Net of taxes, the following were recorded: charges for integration and exit incentives of 80 million euro (56 million euro in the
third quarter), negative effects of purchase price allocation of -35 million euro (comparison figure of -36 million euro), as well
as a positive effect of 18 million euro (31 million euro before tax), almost all of which resulting from the adjustment of
previously estimated charges aimed at maintaining the stability of the banking industry. In the third quarter, 264 million euro
was recognised (393 million euro before tax), essentially consisting of the estimated contribution to the deposit guarantee
funds of the Group's Italian banks for the full year 2023.

Taking into account the allocation to minority interests of the net loss of 1 million euro (net income of 6 million euro in the third
quarter), the consolidated income statement for the last three months of 2023 closed — as already indicated — with a net
income of 1,602 million euro, down 15.7% on 1,900 million euro for the third quarter.

With regard to the balance sheet aggregates, net loans to customers stood at 429.5 billion euro as at 31 December 2023,
down 17.3 billion euro (-3.9%) compared to twelve months earlier. This change was attributable to commercial banking loans,
which decreased by 4.2% to 402.1 billion euro (-17.7 billion euro, of which 5.4 billion euro in the fourth quarter). This segment
was affected by the rise in interest rates, which dampened demand, both from businesses, which preferred to postpone
investment decisions and use available liquidity to limit their use of bank loans, and from households, particularly for mortgage
loans financing home purchases. In terms of technical forms, the decrease mainly involved medium/long-term loans (-6.9% to
225.5 billion euro), as a result of the predominance of repayments over new disbursements, but also the short-term segment
of current accounts (-6.5% to 21.5 billion euro). Only the other short-term technical forms consisting of advances and loans
showed modest growth (+0.4% to 155.1 billion euro).

6 You are reminded that the initial period for the establishment of the Single Resolution Fund ended on 31 December 2023. However, Article 69 of
Regulation 806/2014 envisages the collection of additional contributions after the end of that period if the amount of financial means available falls below

1% of the covered deposits.
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With regard to the remaining components of the aggregate, short-term loans of a financial nature, consisting of repurchase
agreements, and which by nature are subject to a certain degree of variability over the year, rose by 8.3% to 16.6 billion euro.
This growth was concentrated in the fourth quarter (+9.5%) after the fall in the middle part of the year.

Loans represented by securities decreased to 5.9 billion euro (-6.3%), while net non-performing loans fell below 5 billion euro
(-9.7%), as a result of the continued de-risking. In terms of credit quality, the NPL ratio remained stable at 2.3% in gross terms
and 1.2% in net terms (2.3% and 1.2% in December 2022)". Their coverage ratio improved to 49.8%, from 48.4% at the end
of 2022.

With regard to the funding from customers, at the year end direct deposits from banking business had reached 576.1 billion
euro, up 30.8 billion euro (+5.6%) compared to December 2022, of which 18.3 billion euro attributable to the last quarter.
Within the aggregate, current accounts and deposits, reflecting the ongoing industry-wide trend and despite the recovery in
the fourth quarter (+4.8 billion euro), decreased to 407.9 billion euro, (-25.1 billion euro, -5.8% over the twelve months) due to
the use of liquidity by businesses and increased diversification of savings by households. However, their stock still accounts
for more than 70% of direct deposits from banking business, confirming their status as a strong point of the Group's liquidity
position. The performance of current accounts and deposits was more than offset by the growth of bonds, which rose by
49.6% to 78.3 billion euro (+26 billion euro, of which +8.4 billion euro in the last three months). A significant funding plan was
implemented in 2023 that allowed the Group to strengthen the buffers available with respect to the MREL requirements.

Other deposits were also up at 62.4 billion euro (+18.2 billion euro, +41.2%), primarily driven by the fair value component,
amounting to 29.9 billion euro, almost entirely consisting of investment certificates (+13.3 billion euro; +80.4%), in addition to
short-term institutional funding (commercial paper). Subordinated liabilities, down slightly to 12.2 billion euro (-2.5%),
incorporated the combined effects of maturities and issuances during the year, while certificates of deposit, despite increasing
by 11.5% to 2.3 billion euro, still represent a small proportion of total funding.

Lastly, with regard to the financial funding in the form of repurchase agreements, which by nature are subject to fluctuations,
at the end of 2023 there were funding transactions outstanding for a total of 13 billion euro, compared with 1.3 billion euro in
December 2022.

At the end of 2023, direct deposits from insurance business were essentially stable at 172.7 billion euro (-0.9 billion euro;
-0.5%). Following the adoption of IFRS 17 and its retrospective application to the comparison figures, the aggregate consists
of 69.4% of insurance liabilities, which rose to 119.8 billion euro (+2.3 billion euro; +1.9%) partly as a result of the positive
trend in the placement of insurance policies. In contrast, financial liabilities, which were affected by the market volatility that
slowed down new subscriptions, fell to 51.4 billion euro (-2.8 billion euro; -5.1%). These consisted entirely of unit-linked
investment contracts included under Financial liabilities pertaining to insurance companies designated at fair value and
represented 29.8% of total direct deposits from insurance business. Lastly, the remaining portion (0.8%) consisted of other
insurance deposits, included in the caption Financial liabilities pertaining to insurance companies measured at amortised cost,
which also incorporates subordinated liabilities. Their amount was equal to 1.5 billion euro, down compared to December
2022 (-0.4 billion euro, -22.6%).

Indirect customer deposits, measured at market prices, closed 2023 with a stock of 722.2 billion euro, up 10% (+65.5 billion
euro, of which +38.7 billion euro attributable to the fourth quarter). This performance was primarily driven by assets under
administration, which rose by 22.8% to 278.2 billion euro (+51.7 billion euro, of which +23.3 billion euro in the last three
months), having benefited from the renewed customer interest in fixed-income investments prompted by the rise in interest
rates. On the other hand, assets under management stood at 444 billion euro, with a recovery of 3.2% (+13.9 billion euro, of
which +15.4 billion euro in the fourth quarter), having benefited from the appreciation in value of the assets under
management, linked to the positive performance of the markets in the final months of the year. This positive trend concerned
almost all the components: mutual funds (+3.8% to 155.5 billion euro), portfolio management schemes (+8.8% to 80.1 billion
euro), and, albeit as a small proportion of the total, deposits from institutional customers (+14.4% to 26.2 billion euro) and
pension funds (+39.1% to 16.7 billion euro). Only the total of insurance liabilities and insurance financial liabilities moved in
the opposite direction (-3.7% to over 165.5 billion euro).

7 Based on the EBA definition, as at 31 December 2023 the NPL ratio fell to 1.8% in gross terms and 0.9% in net terms (respectively, 1.9% and 1% at
the end of 2022).
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Results of the Business Units

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group organisational structure is based on six business segments: Banca dei Territori, IMI Corporate &
Investment Banking, International Subsidiary Banks, Asset Management, Private Banking and Insurance. In addition, there is
the Corporate Centre, which is responsible for guidance, coordination and control of the entire Group, as well as for the
Treasury and ALM operations.

As can be seen in the chart, the share of operating income attributable to each business segment (excluding the Corporate
Centre) confirmed that commercial banking activities in Italy continue to account for the majority (47.3% of the operating
income of the business areas), although significant contributions were also provided by corporate and investment banking
(16.4%), private banking (13.4%), commercial banking activity abroad (12.3%), insurance business (6.8%) and asset
management (3.8%).

Where necessary and where material, the division figures are restated to reflect the changes in scope of the business units to
enable a like-for-like comparison.

Operating income:
Breakdown by business area("

International Subsidiary Banks 12.3%

Private Banking 13.4%

Asset Management 3.8%
Insurance 6.8%

IMI Corporate &
Investment Banking 16.4%

Of which Capital Market
and Investment Banking 5.6%

Banca dei Territori 47.3%

(1 Excluding Corporate Centre

In 2023, the operating income of the Banca dei Territori Division —
which oversees the traditional lending and deposit collecting
activities in Italy and the related financial services — rose
substantially (+27.6%) to 11,285 million euro. This growth was due
Operating income to the considerable increase in net interest income (+64.1%),
_ 11,285 attributable to the performance of market interest rates, while net
8,847 fee and commission income decreased (-2.3%), mainly

attributable to assets under management.
Operating costs, amounting to 6,555 million euro, were up
(+2.5%), due to administrative expenses, which were affected by
high inflation levels, and personnel expenses, also due to the
Net income (loss) higher costs related to the renewal of the national collective

F 1,945 bargaining agreement.

494 As a result of the above, the operating margin rose to 4,730 million
euro, compared to 2,450 million euro in the previous year. Gross
Il 2023 2022 income almost tripled to 3,315 million euro, despite higher
adjustments to loans and other net provisions and net impairment

Operating margin

4,730
2,450

losses on other assets in relation to legal disputes.

Banca dei Territori ended the year with a net income of 1,945 million euro (494 million euro in 2022).

As at 31 December 2023, the Division’s balance sheet figures showed a decline in total intermediated volumes of loans and
deposits from the beginning of the year (-6.7%). Loans (-6.3% to 232.4 billion euro) were affected by demand factors, driven
by the rise in interest rates, originating both from businesses, which preferred to use available liquidity to limit their use of
bank loans, and from households, due to lower demand for mortgage loans. On the other hand, direct deposits from banking
business (-7.1% to 270.4 billion euro) were affected by the decrease in amounts due to customers. For businesses, this was
due to the above-mentioned use of liquidity instead of bank loans, and for households, this was attributable to the
reinvestment of some of the available funds on current accounts into more remunerative investment products, such as
government/corporate bond issues, which increased assets under administration, and certificates issued by Intesa Sanpaolo
and structured by the IMI Corporate & Investment Banking Division.
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Il 2023

Operating income
3,910
4,298

Operating margin

2,408
2,879

I

Net income (loss)
1,478
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2022

In 2023, the operating income of the IMI Corporate & Investment
Banking Division amounted to 3,910 million euro, down 9%
compared to the previous year.

In detail, net interest income grew by 32.7%, primarily attributable
to Global Markets operations, as well as a greater contribution
from customer deposits. Net fee and commission income was
down slightly (-3%) due to the lower contribution from commercial
banking, only partly offset by the positive performance of
investment banking. The profits (losses) on financial assets and
liabilities designated at fair value were marginal compared to
2022, mainly as a result of the management of trading in the
Global Markets area. This result should be viewed in conjunction
with the performance of the net interest income related to funding
in certificates, which had a positive effect on the net interest
income in terms of greater investment of liquidity and a negative
effect on trading related to the management of financial risks as a

result of the rise in market interest rates.

Operating costs increased to 1,502 million euro, a change of 5.8%, attributable to administrative and personnel expenses,
also due to the effects of the renewal of the national collective bargaining agreement.

The revenue and cost performance described above led to a fall in the operating margin to 2,408 million euro (-16.4%). Gross
income, on the other hand, increased by 87.1% to 2,215 million euro, having benefited from the absence of the significant
value adjustments for the Russia and Ukraine risk recognised in the previous year.

The Division closed the year with net income of 1,478 million euro, more than double the figure for 2022.

The Division's intermediated volumes increased on an annual basis (+7.1%). In detail, loans to customers decreased by 2%
to 127.2 billion euro, mainly due to loans in the global corporate segment, which fully offset the growth in loans in the global
markets segment and loans to financial institution customers. Direct deposits from banking business, on the other hand, were
up 19.7% to 113.5 billion euro, as a result of the increase in transactions in certificates and the growth in securities issued by
the Luxembourg and Irish subsidiaries.

: o In 2023, the operating income of the International Subsidiary
'“te"‘atm"_la_' Subfs|d|ary Banks Banks Division — which is responsible for the Group’s operations
{fellions ofeum) on international markets through commercial banking subsidiaries

and associates that mainly carry out retail banking activities —
Operating income amounted to 2,925 million euro, up significantly on the previous
_ 2,925 year (+31.3%; +41.3% at constant exchange rates). The
2,227 performance was driven by the net interest income (+46.5%)
which, together with the modest increase in net fee and
commission income (+1.6%), largely offset the fall in profits
(losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value
(-30.2%) and the increase in other net operating expenses.
Net income (loss) Operating costs increased to 1,197 million euro (+7.1%; +13.5% at
F 1,173 constant exchange rates), mainly due to the trend in personnel
504 and administrative expenses.
As a result of the revenue and cost performance described above,
the operating margin increased by 55.8% to 1,728 million euro.
Gross income more than doubled to 1,591 million euro, having
benefited from lower net adjustments to loans and the gain from the sale of the PBZ Card acquiring business line.
The year 2023 ended with net income of 1,173 million euro, a significant improvement on the 504 million euro for the previous
year.
The Division's total intermediated volumes were up 5.7% at the end of December 2023 from the beginning of the year. This
was driven both by loans to customers — up 4.6% to 42.1 billion euro mainly due to the growth posted by the subsidiaries
operating in Slovakia, Croatia, Hungary and Serbia, only partly offset by the decrease in loans in Egypt — and by direct
deposits from banking business, which increased by 6.5% to 57.9 billion euro, particularly in the amounts due to customers
component, mainly attributable to the subsidiaries operating in Slovakia, Serbia and Hungary.

Operating margin

1,728
1,109

Il 2023 2022
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The Private Banking Division — which serves the top customer
segment (Private and High Net Worth Individuals), creating value
by offering top products and services — posted operating income of
3,184 million euro in 2023, up 28.6% on the previous year.
The revenue performance is attributable to net interest income
3,184 which, in a scenario of growing market interest rates, more than
2,475 tripled to 1,267 million euro, due to the increase in the contribution
from investments in securites and dealing with banks and
customers. Net fee and commission income moved in the opposite
2,201 SO .
1 554 direction (-6.2%), both for the recurring component, as a result of
the reduction in average assets under management, and for the
up front component, due to the different mix of products placed.
1,366 Operating costs increased by 6.7% to 983 million euro, attributable
1,034 both to personnel expenses — due to the impacts of the renewal of
the national collective bargaining agreement and the strengthening
of the workforce abroad — and to administrative expenses, in
particular for IT, real estate and services rendered by third parties.
As a result of the above movements, the operating margin increased by 41.6%, to reach 2,201 million euro. Gross income
also increased by 35.4% to 2,106 million euro.
The Division’s income statement closed with net income of 1,366 million euro, up 32.1%.
As at 31 December 2023, assets gathered, including the contribution of the trust mandates for SIREF Fiduciaria, amounted to
303.6 billion euro, up by 31.1 billion euro from the beginning of the year. This trend was due to the market performance, which
had a favourable impact on assets, and to positive net inflows. The assets under management component amounted to
157.4 billion euro (+7.3 billion euro).

Private Banking
(millions of euro)

Operating income

1

Operating margin

|

Net income (loss)

T

Il 2023 2022

The Asset Management Division — which pursues the mission of

developing the best asset management solutions aimed at the

Group’s customers and its presence on the open market segment

through Eurizon Capital SGR and its subsidiaries — posted

operating income of 908 million euro in 2023, down 5.6%. This

908 change was essentially attributable to net fee and commission

962 income (-10.6%) and was only partially offset by the positive

contribution from the fair value measurement of the financial

ki portfolio in which the Division's cash and cash equivalents are
740 invested.

In the presence of operating costs that rose to 245 million euro —

mainly due to the increase in administrative expenses, related to

Asset Management
(millions of euro)

Operating income

]

Operating margin

1

Net income (loss)

F 475 further strengthening of the production infrastructure — the
550 operating margin fell to 663 million euro (-10.4%).
The Division closed the year with net income of 475 million euro
I 2023 2022 (-13.6%).

As at 31 December 2023, the assets under management of the
Division totalled 311.3 billion euro, up by 7.5 billion euro (+2.5%) compared to the end of 2022, thanks to the appreciation in
value of the assets under management, linked to the positive performance of the markets, only partly offset by net outflows (-
13.5 billion euro). The outflows concerned the mandates on insurance and pension products (-11.6 billion euro) and, to lesser
extent, mutual funds (-2.7 billion euro) and portfolio management schemes for retail and private customers (-0.7 billion euro),
only partly offset by net inflows on products targeted to institutional customers (+1.5 billion euro).

The Insurance Division — whose mission is to synergically develop
Insurance the range of insurance products for the Group’s customers —
(prlionis of giro) posted operating income of 1,613 million euro (+1.5%) in 2023,

consisting almost entirely of the income from insurance business,
which was up 1.7% to 1,625 million euro. The latter benefited from
the improvement in both the technical margin and the net
investment result, particularly in the non-life business.

At the same time, operating costs fell to 379 million euro (-1.6%),
due to a decrease in administrative expenses (-5.4%), which more
than offset the increase in personnel expenses (+3.4%).

As a result of the above performance, the operating margin
improved to 1,234 million euro (+2.5%).

Operating income

I 2023

2022

In contrast, gross income, at 1,295 million euro, was down
(-1.4%).

The net income achieved by the Insurance Division amounted to
876 million euro (-6.1%).

With regard to the performance of the direct deposits from

insurance business, details are provided in the section above containing the commentary on the Group’s results.
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The Corporate Centre generated an operating margin of 845 million euro in 2023, compared to 570 million euro in the
previous year. This improvement was essentially due to the positive performance of operating income and in particular net
interest income, which benefited from the significant rise in market interest rates.

Operating costs fell slightly: higher charge backs by the Corporate Centre to the business units for pure services and
guidance and control services were partly offset by the increase in personnel expenses and the amortisation of intangible
assets correlated with technological investments. Gross income amounted to 873 million euro compared to 600 million euro in
2022.

The net income at the end of 2023 was 411 million euro, compared to 208 million euro in 2022. You are reminded that the
income statement of the Corporate Centre includes the charges, essentially related to the European Resolution Fund, aimed
at maintaining the stability of the banking industry. These charges amounted — after tax — to 245 million euro, compared with
301 million euro in the previous year.

Highlights

The military conflict between Russia and Ukraine

The ISP subsidiaries in Russia and Ukraine

The Group is present in Russia and Ukraine through two subsidiaries:

— Joint-Stock Company Banca Intesa (Banca Intesa Russia), 47% owned by Intesa Sanpaolo and 53% by Intesa Sanpaolo
Holding International (Luxembourg). This is a Moscow-based corporate bank, part of the IMI Corporate & Investment
Banking Division, which operates with 27 branches and 869 staff. The Group’s presence in Russia dates back almost
50 years (at the time as a Representative Office)®. The bank has participated in the financing of large national and
international Russian projects, also offering a full range of banking services for small and medium-sized enterprises,
retail customers and companies. The regional branch network extends from Kaliningrad to Vladivostok;

—  Pravex Bank Joint-Stock Company, 100%-owned by Intesa Sanpaolo. This is a small commercial bank based in Kyiv,
part of the International Subsidiary Banks Division, which operates with 40 branches mainly in the Kyiv region and
employs 666 people. Intesa Sanpaolo acquired the bank in 2008 and has been operating in the country continuously
since that date.

The analyses made in the 2022 Annual Report concerning Intesa Sanpaolo’s continued control over the two entities still apply

— having been reinforced by the re-election of the outgoing Board of Directors of Banca Intesa Russia by the Shareholders’

Meeting of 30 June 2023 and the routine turnover in the governance bodies of the Ukrainian subsidiary, implemented based

on the nominations proposed by the Parent Company — for all the aspects examined at that time, also in light of the absence

of any changes in the Russian regulations in this regard or negative developments concerning the governance of the Russian
subsidiary, which continues to operate as directed by the Parent Company.

Risk management

In light of the continuing military conflict between Russia and Ukraine, in 2023 the Group did not ease the internal controls that
it implemented after the outbreak of hostilities in February 2022, as described in detail in the introductory chapter of the
Report on operations of the 2022 Consolidated Financial Statements, which should be referred to for more detalils.

The two Task Forces — “Risk Management and Control” and “Operational Resilience”, respectively chaired by the Chief Risk
Officer and the Head of the International Subsidiary Banks Division — continued to meet with the aim, among others, of
preparing relevant information for the Top Management, which was also shared with the ECB’s Joint Supervisory Team (JST),
as necessary.

The situation continues to be monitored both at Parent Company level and in all the Group banks directly involved in the
conflict or close to it, where direct and continuous contacts are being maintained.

Appropriate information is also always prepared for the Board Committees and the Board of Directors.

The Risk Management and Control Task Force

All the main actions carried out since the start of the emergency, both from an operational perspective and with specific
regard to the monitoring of credit risk, in particular under the Credit Action Plan, were described in the 2022 Consolidated
Financial Statements.

With regard to 2023, there are no significant new developments to report. In continuity with the second half of 2022, there
were no specific initiatives under the Credit Action Plan dedicated to the conflict between Russia and Ukraine. However, the
specific diagnostic initiatives designed to prevent flows into non-performing status for exposures showing signs of difficulty,
but without being past due, are still being implemented for companies in the energy and gas sectors that are particularly
sensitive to fluctuations in the cost of energy, also linked to the current geopolitical crisis.

In light of the further tightening of the already heavy sanctions imposed on Russia by Western countries, in order to ensure
regulatory compliance, the monitoring, started in 2022, continued through a specific dashboard at Group level, aimed at
overseeing the changes in the lists of sanctioned persons and entities at European and international level, identifying
sanctioned persons and entities for the purpose of blocking positions and payments, complying with the specific ban on
accepting deposits above the threshold set by the European regulations, and identifying and blocking financial instruments
subject to sanctions. As at 31 December 2023, the exposure to Russian counterparties subject to sanctions included in the

8 With effect from 1 August 2023, Intesa Sanpaolo’s Moscow representative office ceased operations.
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OFAC (Office of Foreign Assets Control) SDN and/or EU asset freeze lists amounted to 237 million euro (over 380 million
euro at the end of 2022).

Since the beginning of the conflict, the Group has continued to carefully monitor the evolution of the fallout of the Russian-
Ukrainian crisis on the real economy and the main financial variables, also by conducting specific scenario analyses and
stress tests to assess the potential impacts in terms of profitability and capital adequacy. Although the situation is constantly
evolving, leaving aside extreme scenarios of conflict escalation that could lead to outcomes that are difficult to assess, these
analyses confirm the Group’s ability to ensure compliance — also through the implementation of specific actions — with the
regulatory requirements and the stricter limits set internally.

The Operational Resilience Task Force

The initiatives implemented from the initial stages of the conflict in relation to Pravex Bank’s employees, in particular with
regard to supporting the expatriation of these employees and their families, when required, were described in the 2022
Consolidated Financial Statements, which should be referred to for more details. From March 2023, also as a result of a
temporary improvement in the situation, a small but steady flow of colleagues and their family members hosted abroad began
to return to Ukraine, and this flow intensified in the second half of the year. At the end of December, the number of colleagues
and their families hosted in Italy in the Group-owned flats and in the residential facilities made available in Bergamo had fallen
to 64, compared to 208 hosted during 2022, and the number fell even further in the initial weeks of 2024. They are mainly
female staff and their children, as well as the families of male employees who are prevented from leaving the country by
martial law.

With regard to business continuity in Ukraine, also thanks to the actions taken in 2022, operational capability was consistently
maintained and activities are proceeding without the need to implement continuity solutions.

To overcome the power supply problems that spread throughout the country in late 2022, it was decided in early 2023 to
provide Starlink satellite equipment to ensure data connection, along with power banks distributed to the headquarters and
staff with critical and strategic tasks. Power generators were also provided to all the operational branches. However, the
supply of electricity in the country returned steady again since February, partly due to the possibility of using several power
plants that have been put into operation. The measures described have enabled the uninterrupted provision of services, and
they are still in place and considered sufficient to deal with the situation at the start of 2024.

The number of branches opened daily since the beginning of 2023 has gradually increased to over 90% of the available
branches in the second half of the year. The opening of the branches continues to be based on the risk assessment
methodology agreed with the Parent Company and aimed at guiding the decision-making process for the opening of the
individual branches on the basis of specific indicators, whilst always prioritising staff safety. Following the closure in 2022 of
the branches in Mariupol (considered lost as they were no longer accessible due to being located in an area occupied by
Russian troops) and Kherson (damaged by bombing), the branches in Zaporizhzhia and Mykolaiv also ceased operations in
2023, along with one of the two branches in Kharkiv that was damaged in 2022. The other branches that were damaged in
the early stages of the conflict (a second branch in Kharkiv, one in Kyiv, and one in Kremenchuk), which had suffered less
severe damage and have undergone repairs in the meantime, have now been reopened to the public. At Banca Intesa
Russia, the systems have always remained up and running since the beginning of the hostilities and the branches have
continued to work without any operational problems, also in 2023.

The monitoring also continued of the operations of Banca Comerciala Eximbank, the Group’s Moldovan subsidiary, initiated in
2022. In 2023, despite temporary escalations in the conflict in the area, the company's operations again continued without
experiencing any problems.

In terms of cybersecurity, the monitoring and threat intelligence activities continue, alongside the progressive strengthening of
the cybersecurity controls throughout the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, particularly in relation to security checks and authentication
methods for access to the corporate network. During the year the features were implemented that enable access to all
company PCs without passwords but with more reliable security measures.

Specific educational initiatives on cyber risks, focusing in particular on phishing, are regularly implemented to raise awareness
among all the Group’s staff.

Lastly, the additional costs incurred for business continuity and losses resulting from physical damage to premises/branches
located in the conflict zone form part of the monitoring of the exposure to operational risk, including that relating to the Risk
Appetite Framework.

The main accounting aspects and the approach adopted by the Intesa Sanpaolo Group

The main accounting issues arising from the ongoing conflict between the Russian Federation and Ukraine and the Intesa
Sanpaolo Group’s approach to addressing them are summarised in the paragraphs below. The situation of the
Russian/Ukrainian crisis has been the subject of close attention since the outbreak of hostilities at the end of February 2022.
Indeed, in addition to significant cross-border exposures to counterparties resident in the Russian Federation, the Group, as
already mentioned, has two direct subsidiaries in the warring countries, which are therefore particularly exposed to the
consequences of the conflict: Pravex Bank Public Joint-Stock Company and Banca Intesa Russia.

At the beginning 2022, loans to Russian customers represented around 1% of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s total loans to
customers (net of the exposures backed by Export Credit Agency - ECA guarantees). The de-risking, which the Group has
been carrying out since the second half of last year, has therefore focused primarily on reducing these exposures. By the end
of 2022, the total of these exposures had practically halved, with gross on-balance sheet exposures to counterparties resident
in Russia and Ukraine (customers, banks and securities) falling by 2,493 million euro (-47% compared to the end of 2021).
Further de-risking operations also continued in 2023, with the almost complete disposal of the securities portfolio and with
significant divestments/liquidations of cross-border positions, particularly with regard to certain non-performing exposures.
Off-balance sheet exposures were also further reduced. These de-risking measures and the continuing significant
adjustments to the remaining positions led to a further decrease in the exposure to counterparties resident in Russia and
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Ukraine®, both in terms of gross and net values. In terms of gross values, the total exposures (customers, banks and
securities) as at 31 December 2023 to counterparties resident in Russia and Ukraine amounted to 1,889 million euro (1,580
million euro net), down by 900 million euro (578 million euro net) compared to 31 December 2022 (-32% for the gross and -
27% for the net). Specifically, the net credit exposure to customers in the two years decreased from 4,710 million euro as at
31 December 2021 to 766 million euro as at 31 December 2023. More specifically, as at 31 December 2023, the remaining
exposures amounted, in terms of gross values, to 197 million euro (117 million euro net) for Banca Intesa Russia (figures as
at 31 December 2023, as described below) and 675 million euro (526 million euro net) for cross-border exposures to
customers resident in Russia (net of ECA guarantees). These were accompanied by exposures to banks totalling 707 million
euro (696 million euro net) and in securities totalling 12 million euro (10 million euro net)'°. Exposures to customers resident in
Ukraine amounted to 186 million euro (123 million euro net)!?, of which 62 million euro (book value nil in net terms) related to
the subsidiary Pravex Bank (figures as at 30 September 2023, as described below), in addition to exposures to banks and in
Ukrainian short-term government bonds totalling 112 million euro (108 million euro net). That said, the situation as at 31
December 2023 is essentially the same as that described in the Annual Report as at 31 December 2022 (as well as the Half-
yearly Report as at 30 June 2023), given that:

— ISP continued to exercise control over the two banks, which operated on the basis of the Parent Company’s instructions

in their respective environments;
— there are no new significant regulatory provisions with respect to those already considered for the 2022 Annual Report.

Consequently, the main methodological choices — both in terms of consolidation of the two subsidiaries and valuation of the
credit exposures — are essentially the same as those used in the 2022 Annual Report. Before outlining the valuation choices
regarding the two subsidiaries and the aspects related to the valuation of the cross border exposures (for further details, see
the description provided in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements), it is necessary to provide some preliminary
information about how Pravex Bank and Banca Intesa Russia contributed to the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 2023. In particular, while it was possible to consolidate an accounting situation aligned to that of the Parent
Company for Banca Intesa Russia (therefore, consolidated with reference to the results as at 31 December 2023), for Pravex,
the specific situation in the city of Kyiv (where the bank is based) led to the conclusion that — in order to contain the
“operational” risk — it was considered more appropriate to use the accounting situation as at 30 September 2023, translated at
the exchange rate of 31 December 2023, for the consolidation. The results of Pravex Bank are therefore incorporated by
means of the line-by-line consolidation of a consolidation package prepared in accordance with the IAS/IFRS for the previous
quarter, in keeping with the approach already adopted for the 2022 Annual Report and over the course of 2023. However, it is
worth recalling here that the balance sheet balances of the Ukrainian subsidiary are substantially immaterial in the context of
those of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group. The above method of consolidation is also supported by the fact that the balance sheet
management data as at 31 December 2023 do not show any significant differences — in the total aggregates — compared to
those at the end of September.

With regard to the valuation choices, the absolutely serious situation in all of Ukraine resulted in the definition, for the purpose
of measuring Pravex Bank’s loan portfolio, of a specific approach, significantly based on prudent rationales, in light of the
continuation of the conflict and the consequent repercussions on the Ukrainian economy. For the purposes of the
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2023, as in the 2022 Consolidated Financial Statements and the Half-
yearly Report as at 30 June 2023, it was considered appropriate to maintain the full write down of Pravex Bank’s on-balance
sheet loans to customers, with consequent classification to Stage 3. As a result of that choice, for the purposes of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, the equity of the subsidiary has been reduced to zero, resulting in a negative contribution of
27 million euro to the consolidation. Also for Banca Intesa Russia, an approach to classifying and measuring performing loans
continued to be adopted that strongly considers the geopolitical risk deriving from the ongoing crisis. Therefore, as was
already the case in the 2022 Annual Report, the assessments carried out as at 31 December 2023 on the loans of the
subsidiary included a centrally determined prudent factor that takes account of the worsening of the domestic economic
situation in light of the continuation of the conflict and the increased isolation of the Russian economy. As a result of the
provisions made, the total coverage of performing loans of the Russian subsidiary amounted to around 35% of their gross
value. As in the past accounting closings, the provision aimed at reducing the equity of the investee to zero has also been
maintained. The significant adjustments on the credit exposures of Banca Intesa Russia and Pravex Bank, made on a
prudential basis, reflect the current war situation that generates the need for careful consideration of the above-mentioned
country risk, with appropriate measurement of the risk that the capital invested abroad is exposed to, connected to the
possibility that political or economic circumstances may result in non-repayment of the loan (irrespective of the specific credit
risk of the individual counterparty).

For the cross-border positions, the Group continued to adopt the measurement approach guided by the emergence of the so-
called “transfer” risk (an approach applied both for the determination of the SICR and the related classification to Stage 2, and
for the calculation of the ECL through the application of managerial adjustments) in order to better incorporate provisions
related to the risk associated with the current conflict that would otherwise not be properly captured by the risk measurement
systems normally used. At the same time, the ratings for the highest risk class already assigned to the most significant
counterparties exposed to conflict-related risk have been maintained.

Given the substantially unchanged valuation with respect to the 2022 Annual Report and the collections, especially of non-
performing cross border positions, and the volume reductions made by the Russian and Ukrainian subsidiaries, in 2023 the
Group recorded a positive impact of 205 million euro (before tax) in the income statement, on loans and securities, partially
offset by the charge for the adjustment of 114 million euro made to the allowance for risks upon consolidation of Banca Intesa

9 The decrease in the book value of the rouble exposures in Banca Intesa Russia's portfolio also reflects the significant decline in the Russian currency
in 2023.

10 There were also 46 million euro (39 million euro net) in off-balance sheet exposures to customers at Banca Intesa Russia and 24 million euro cross-
border (with essentially no impact in terms of net values) with customers resident in Russia (net of ECA). This latter component was substantially
reduced to zero compared to 232 million euro in gross values and 186 million euro in net values as at 31 December 2022. Lastly, there were 66 million
euro (gross and net values) of cross-border positions with Russian resident banks.

11 The cross-border exposures to customers resident in Ukraine are, for the corporate part, backed by guarantees provided by US persons, while, for the
household part, these mainly relate to exposures disbursed by the subsidiary VUB to Ukrainian families with permanent residence in Slovakia.
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Russia, aimed at writing off its equity contribution to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The net impact before tax
amounted to 91 million euro. With regard to the 2022 income statement, it should be noted that the valuation processes
established at the time led to the recognition of adjustments before tax totalling 1,415 million euro, of which 1,298 million euro
in adjustments to loans, 36 million euro in adjustments to securities and 81 million euro in adjustments to other accounting
items, including the above-mentioned provision made upon consolidation of Banca Intesa Russia, to write off its equity
contribution to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Other highlights

Details are provided below of the significant events in 2023.

On 1 January 2023 the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings of the two companies approved the merger by incorporation of
Fideuram Bank (Luxembourg) S.A. into Compagnie de Banque Privée Quilvest S.A. (CBPQ), which took the name Intesa
Sanpaolo Wealth Management S.A., with statutory, accounting and tax effects on the same date.

It should be noted that on 30 June 2022, Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking, through its Luxembourg subsidiary
Fideuram Bank (Luxembourg) S.A., acquired full control of CBPQ, a Luxembourg-based private bank with branches also in
Belgium, with the strategic aim of creating an additional European hub for the Private Banking Division, alongside Reyl & Cie
in Switzerland.

As part of the agreements between Risanamento, a company controlled by Intesa Sanpaolo with a 48.88% stake, and
LendLease, a leading international operator in the infrastructure sector, and the lending banks for the development of the real
estate initiative called Milano Santa Giulia, on 2 February 2023 the Board of Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo approved a complex
transaction, aimed at enabling the following, as part of a plan to ensure the economic and financial equilibrium of the
Risanamento Group pursuant to Article 56 of the Insolvency Code: (i) the obtainment by the Risanamento Group of the
financial resources necessary to fulfil its commitments made to the public authorities and third parties in relation to the
completion of both the reclamation of the area and the execution of the Olympic infrastructure works under the Variant
Agreement; and (ii) the transfer of the Milano Santa Giulia area at values in line with its book value to an alternative
investment fund through the subscription of its units by the lending banks or their assignees and the concurrent novation to
the aforementioned fund of the financial debt due to the lending banks (or their assignees) from the Risanamento Group and
the payment to Risanamento, under particular terms and conditions, of the additional amount with respect to the values
referred to above.

The Termsheet containing the main terms and conditions of the transaction was signed by the parties on 22 March 2023.
During the second quarter, following the fulfilment of the usual conditions precedent for this type of transaction, the final
contracts were drawn up and signed by the parties on 29 June 2023. The closing then took place on 30 June 2023.

With reference to the programme of purchase of own shares for annulment (buyback), approved by the Intesa Sanpaolo
Shareholders’ Meeting of 29 April 2022 and authorised by the ECB with decision notified on 24 June 2022, for a maximum
total outlay of 3,400 million euro and a number of shares not exceeding 2,615,384,615 Intesa Sanpaolo ordinary shares, after
the initial programme launched on 4 July and concluded on 11 October 2022 for an outlay of 1,700 million euro and the
purchase of 988,632,803 shares (all of them annulled), on 3 February 2023 the Board of Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo
resolved to implement the execution of the remaining part of the programme for a maximum outlay of 1,700 million euro and a
number of shares not exceeding 1,626,751,812.

The purchases started on 13 February 2023 and ended on 4 April 2023. During the period, a total of 706,004,171 shares
were purchased, equal to around 3.72% of the share capital outstanding at the end of the programme, at an average
purchase price of 2.4079 euro per share, for a total countervalue of 1,699,999,999.33 euro.

The transactions took place on the regulated market Euronext Milan managed by Borsa lItaliana through the third-party
intermediary appointed to execute the programme, in full independence and without any involvement of the Intesa Sanpaolo
Group, in compliance with the terms authorised by the Intesa Sanpaolo Shareholders’ Meeting of 29 April 2022.

The annulment of the shares took place on 2 May 2023. While the share capital remained unchanged at 10,368,870,930.08
euro, the number of ordinary shares with no nominal value decreased from 18,988,803,160 to 18,282,798,989. The Articles of
Association amended to reflect said annulment were filed with the Turin Company Register on 3 May.

As already stated in the 2022 Annual Report, in line and in keeping with the transactions carried out in 2020 and 2021
regarding the acquiring businesses of Intesa Sanpaolo and the former UBI Banca, in 2022 the Group undertook a project
initiative aimed at expanding the strategic partnership with the Nexi Group at international level, through the transfer to Nexi
Payments of the merchant acquiring business line of the Croatian subsidiary PBZ Card. As with the two previous transactions,
the agreement provided for: i) the sale of the PBZ Card acquiring business line (including all agreements with the Croatian
merchants) to the Nexi Group; and ii) the establishment of a commercial partnership between PBZ Group and the buyer on an
exclusive basis in line with the terms of the transactions concluded in Italy.

The transaction was completed on 28 February 2023, resulting in a gross capital gain, recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the first quarter of 2023, of 116 million euro (95 million euro net of the tax effect).

On 1 March 2023, the Board of Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo Vita, following the resolution passed by the Board of Directors of

the Parent Company Intesa Sanpaolo on 28 February 2023, approved a settlement and share purchase agreement between

RBHold S.p.A., pertaining to the Favaretto family (non-controlling shareholder of Intesa Sanpaolo RBM Salute S.p.A.) and

Intesa Sanpaolo Vita which provided for:

- the amicable settlement, without any recognition of the mutually asserted claims, of the Arbitration initiated in July 2022
by the Favaretto family at the Chamber of Arbitration of Milan, agreeing to formalise the waiver of the respective claims at
the Chamber;
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- the purchase by Intesa Sanpaolo Vita of the entire equity investment held in Intesa Sanpaolo RBM Salute from the non-
controlling shareholder, amounting to 26.21%, with the simultaneous termination of office of the members of the Board of
Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo RBM Salute appointed by RBHold and termination of the put and call mechanisms originally
subscribed. The cash consideration for the purchase was set at the market value of 360 million euro, the amount of
which was confirmed by an independent third-party fairness opinion.

The signing of a new agreement (partially amending the one previously in force) was also envisaged for the service contract

between Intesa Sanpaolo RBM Salute and Previmedical, aimed at strengthening Intesa Sanpaolo RBM Salute’s oversight

and control of the activities outsourced to Previmedical, providing the company greater protection in the event of
unsatisfactory service levels towards customers in the management of the insurance portfolio assigned to Previmedical.

The settlement agreement was signed by the parties on 1 March 2023 and the purchase of the non-controlling interest in

Intesa Sanpaolo RBM Salute by Intesa Sanpaolo Vita was completed on the same date. As a result of this transaction, Intesa

Sanpaolo Vita became the owner of 100% of the share capital of the company.

Within the strategic partnership between Intesa Sanpaolo Vita and Reale Group — through Blue Assistance, a service
company of the Reale Group specialising in healthcare assistance — completed and announced on 19 July 2022 and involving
the new company InSalute Servizi*?, the transfer of Blue Assistance’s business line became effective on 1 April 2023,
consisting mainly of the technological platform, the network of affiliated facilities, and employee contracts. Through this
transfer the reserved capital increase of InSalute Servizi was implemented. On the same date, the sale to Intesa Sanpaolo
Vita of certain InSalute Servizi shares issued as part of the above-mentioned capital increase was also completed, in order to
achieve the corporate structure agreed between the parties. The company is now 65% owned by Intesa Sanpaolo Vita and
35% by Blue Assistance.

From an accounting perspective, the comparison between the value of the transferred business line, certified by a specific
fairness opinion from an independent external third party, and the equity at fair value of the business line showed a final
difference of around 31 million euro, which was allocated to goodwill at the end of the Purchase Price Allocation (PPA) in
accordance with IFRS 3.

InSalute Servizi operates within Intesa Sanpaolo’s Insurance Division for the management of claims and the development of a
network of healthcare facilities with agreements (TPA — Third Party Administrator) in support of Intesa Sanpaolo RBM Salute’s
insurance offering, of which it will manage 75% of the portfolio in 2026. The company is engaged in the management of
health and welfare services for Intesa Sanpaolo’s captive customers, supplementary health funds, welfare funds, public health
services, companies and other entities operating in the supplementary health and welfare sectors, strengthening the strategy
of Intesa Sanpaolo’s Insurance Division and its development plan for health insurance launched in 2020 with the acquisition
of Intesa Sanpaolo RBM Salute.

In line with the objectives of simplifying and streamlining the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s corporate structures set out in the
2022-2025 Business Plan, on 3 April 2023, the deed was signed for the merger by incorporation into Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A.
of the wholly owned subsidiary Intesa Sanpaolo Provis S.p.A., a registered financial intermediary pursuant to Article 106 of
Legislative Decree 385 of 1 September 1993 (Consolidated Law on Banking), which acted as the Group’s specialist centre for
the management of lease credit recovery legal procedures and the value enhancement and sale of real estate and movable
assets underlying terminated leases. The transaction, which received clearance from the Bank of Italy and authorisation from
the European Central Bank, was approved on 20 December 2022 by the Board of Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo — on the basis
of the merger plan filed with the Turin Company Register, pursuant to Article 2501-ter of the Italian Civil Code, on 18
November 2022 — and by the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of the merged company. The transaction took legal effect
from 17 April 2023 with accounting and tax effects from 1 January 2023. As a merger involving a wholly owned company, it
was carried out in the simplified manner provided for in Article 2505 of the Italian Civil Code.

On 28 April 2023, the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of Intesa Sanpaolo was held, validly constituted, on single call, to pass
resolutions as those in attendance through the appointed representative (in accordance with Article 106, paragraph 4, of Law
Decree No. 18 dated 17 March 2020, converted by Law No. 27 dated 24 April 2020, whose effects were most recently
extended by Law No. 14 dated 24 February 2023) counted 3,167 holders of voting rights attached to 10,897,630,179 ordinary
shares without nominal value representing 57.38977% of the share capital. The Shareholders’ Meeting voted in favour of all
the items on the agenda.

The resolutions concerned?*?:

- the approval of the Parent Company’s 2022 financial statements and the allocation of net income, with the distribution to
the shareholders of a remaining dividend for 2022 corresponding to 8.68 euro cents per ordinary share, subject to
increase as a result of the execution of the programme of purchase of own shares for annulment (buyback). Following
the annulment of the shares announced at the beginning of May?!*, from 24 May 2023 (with coupon presentation on 22
May and record date on 23 May), the amount of 9.01 euro cents for each of the 18,282,798,989 ordinary shares
constituting the share capital*® was paid as a remaining dividend on the 2022 net income, for a total dividend distribution,
taking into account the interim dividend of 1,399,608,167.99 euro paid in November 2022 of 3,046 million euro,
corresponding to a payout ratio of 70% of the consolidated net income;

- the remuneration policies and incentive plans. In particular, the Shareholders’ Meeting approved the remuneration and
incentive policies for 2023 as described respectively in chapters 4 and 1 of Section | of the Report on remuneration policy

12 The company, which was established in February 2022 with the original name of Newco TPA S.p.A., changed its name to InSalute Servizi in the third
quarter. At the end of 2022, it was included in the scope of line-by-line consolidation as it was wholly owned by Intesa Sanpaolo Vita.

13 The related majority of votes by which they were passed are set out in detail in the press release published on the Group’s website.

14 |n this regard, see the information provided above.

15 The total amount of the dividend paid was 1,646,462,490.59 euro against 1,765,623.70 euro allocated to the Extraordinary reserve in relation to the

portion not distributed to the 9,075,453 own shares held by the Bank at the record date (817,698.32 euro) and the rounding differences arisen during the
calculation of the final amount of the dividend (947,925.38 euro).

16 |nterim dividends are considered net of the portion not distributed to the 23,922,835 own shares held by the Bank at the record date, amounting to
1,765,505.22 euro.
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and compensation paid; it passed a resolution agreeing on the Disclosure on compensation paid in 2022 as described in
Section Il of the same Report; and it approved the 2023 Annual Incentive Plan, which provides for the assignment, for
free, of Intesa Sanpaolo ordinary shares, to be purchased on the market;

- the authorisation to purchase and dispose of own shares to serve the incentive plans and for trading purposes.

Following the receipt of the authorisation from the Chinese Regulator, the sale was completed on 16 May 2023 to Warburg
Pincus, a leading global private equity operator, of the 23.3% stake in Zhong Ou Asset Management Co. Ltd., an asset
management company focused on the Chinese market resulting from the merger of the former UBI Banca. The transaction
had been approved in November 2021 by the Board of Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo. Consequently, starting from the Annual
Report for the year ended 31 December 2021, the investment has been reclassified to non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations in accordance with IFRS 5. The sale generated a gain of 192 million euro, around 154 million euro
net of tax. The gross gain shown takes into account the remaining amount received from the buyer, as consideration,
following the payment of the Chinese local tax on the gain, made by Intesa Sanpaolo in September and recognised under the
caption taxes.

The remaining holding, equal to 1.7% of the share capital of the company, was sold on 11 December 2023 to two managers
of the company. The transaction resulted in a gain of an immaterial amount.

On 15 June 2023, the Group officially presented Isybank'?, its new digital bank, a key project of the 2022-2025 Business Plan,
aimed at combining the solidity and commercial offering of a bank with simple, fast services typical of a fintech company. The
new company is aimed at the Group’s customers who are mainly digital users of banking services and mobile banking-
oriented, while maintaining the possibility of a direct relationship with the staff of the digital branch.

With Isybank, Intesa Sanpaolo enters the fintech world, marking its transition from incumbent to challenger, further improving
customer service, while also creating innovative, flexible work opportunities. Isybank is based on cloud-native technology,
adaptable to a multi-currency environment and multinational customers. Thought Machine — a core banking technology
company based in the UK, with regional offices in New York, Singapore and Sydney — has been selected as the ideal partner
to bring the new digital banking platform to life. The partnership was also strengthened by the GBP 40 million invested by
Intesa Sanpaolo in the capital of the company.

On 19 July 2023, the agreement was signed with the Trade Unions regarding the transfer of two business lines to Isybank by
the 100% controlling company Intesa Sanpaolo. The transfer, approved by the Parent Company on 30 March 2023, involves
two separate business lines, each consisting of a set of assets and legal relations operationally organised for the
management of private individual customers who primarily use digital channels.

On 11 October 2023, Isybank approved a share capital increase from 30 million to 31 million, to be carried out in two tranches
and settled through the contributions in kind of the above-mentioned business lines, which were valued by Intesa Sanpaolo
with the support of an independent third-party expert.

On the weekend of 14-15 October 2023, the transfer was completed of the first business line consisting of around 300,000
Intesa Sanpaolo customers with simpler operational characteristics, identified based on specific criteria. The transfer took
legal effect on 16 October 2023. The second transfer, which will involve customers with more complex characteristics than the
previous transfer, is scheduled to take place by March 2024, alongside the enhancement of the product catalogue, services
and features, as well as new marketing and communication initiatives.

Following the initial communications sent to the customers involved (communications of June 2023 for the first lot and
July/November 2023 for the second lot), in January 2024 a letter was sent to repeat the information provided in the previous
communications and highlight further aspects aimed at enabling customers to thoroughly evaluate the transfer to Isybank and
give their consent to the operation, also in response to the requests from the Italian Antitrust Authority. The information
campaign was further bolstered through the publication of these communications in several national newspapers.

For the customers already transferred, the letter provided the opportunity to confirm their satisfaction or desire to open a new
account with Intesa Sanpaolo. For the customers included within the scope of the transfer in March 2024, the letter invited
them to give their explicit consent to the acceptance of the transfer.

In response to the severity of the effects produced by the adverse weather conditions in Emilia Romagna and Marche,
alongside the measures introduced by Law Decree 61 of 1 June 2023 — in relation to which instalments on all outstanding
loans were suspended, for the months of May and June, with a two-month extension of the repayment plan — the Intesa
Sanpaolo Group took action with a series of initiatives to help its customers through:

- the allocation of 2 billion euro to finance the restoration of damaged structures (homes, shops, offices, craft workshops,
businesses) on subsidised terms, with the possibility of a grace period for companies of up to 36 months and access to
public guarantees;

- the suspension for up to 24 months of the principal portion of the instalments of existing loans for households and
businesses residing in the areas affected by the flooding, together with the refund of the interest to the most distressed
households on first home mortgages on irreparably damaged properties, after twelve months from the suspension;

- the possibility for enterprises in all sectors, including non-profits, that have suffered damage to request zero commission
on POS payments for transactions up to 30 euro and a zero usage fee for Mobile and Virtual POSs for one year;

- a contribution of 5 million euro to support the local population, channelled through the Cassa dei Risparmi di Forli and
Cassa di Risparmio in Bologna Foundations, which are active in the area, which used the sums received mainly to
improve the provincial roads affected by the floods, purchase vehicles for road control and maintenance, readjust the
river courses, restore the riverbeds and embankments, and repair various damaged buildings.

On 29 June, Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking and Man Group — a global, technology-empowered active
investment management firm listed on the London Stock Exchange — announced a strategic partnership in the asset
management sector aimed at generating alternative investment opportunities for the customers of Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo

7on1 January 2023, the amendment of the Articles of Association of Banca 5 S.p.A. took effect, giving the company its new name Isybank S.p.A. The
amendment, authorised by the ECB on 10 October 2022, was approved by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of Banca 5 on 28 October 2022.
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Private Banking. The agreement, which was subject to the customary regulatory approvals, involved the acquisition by Man
Group Holdings Limited of an initial 51% stake in Asteria Obviam S.A., an ESG-oriented asset manager based in Geneva,
with 49% remaining with Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking. The partnership entered into effect on 31 October
2023. Man Group’s entry as a shareholder was preceded, on the same date, by the sale by Reyl & Cie S.A. of its entire
shareholding in Asteria Obviam S.A. — which changed its name to Asteria Investment Managers S.A. with effect from 15
September 2023 — to Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking.

In line with the strong push towards digitalisation that characterises the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s 2022-2025 Business Plan, at
the beginning of July Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking also officially presented Direct Advisory, the first digital
financial advisory service for investment management, which leverages a team of Direct Bankers, professionals enrolled in
Italy’s sole register of financial advisors, operating in fully remote form through digital solutions. This service enhances
Fideuram Direct, the digital platform for those who want to operate independently on listed financial instruments and asset
management products, offering itself in a complementary and synergistic way to traditional networks.

On 30 June 2023, an agreement was reached — through the signing of a number of non-binding termsheets — between parties
comprising five leading Italian insurance companies (including Intesa Sanpaolo Vita), twenty-five distributor banks of
Eurovita's policies (including Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking) and some of Italy's leading banks (including Intesa
Sanpaolo). The agreement involves a system-wide transaction aimed at protecting the policyholders of Eurovita, an insurance
company that — particularly due to the sudden increase in interest rates and the “structure” of its commitments to policyholders
— has experienced a progressive deterioration of its solvency indicators and has subsequently been subject to an order
establishing its extraordinary administration and the dissolution of the company's management and control bodies.
In this context, (i) all surrender requests submitted during the period by the company’s customers were suspended until 30
June 2023 — a term that was then extended until the end of October 2023 — with the aim of avoiding further exacerbation of
the company's financial and capital position imbalance, and (ii) a comprehensive system-wide discussion was conducted to
identify a rescue scheme with the primary objective of ensuring the full protection of the policyholders’ rights and restoring the
ordinary course of the insurance relations as soon as possible.
In short, the agreements provided — on the one hand — for the sale, at a symbolic price, of the business line comprising almost
all of Eurovita’s assets to a newco called Cronos Vita, whose capital is held by Intesa Sanpaolo Vita, Generali Italia, Poste
Vita and UnipolSai, each for 22.5% and Allianz for the remaining 10%, through a dedicated capital increase, and — on the
other hand — for the granting of lines of credit to Cronos Vita by the financial institutions that are currently distributors of
Eurovita’s policies (assisted, moreover, by a pool of Banks for any further support required) to meet the potential surrenders
of the Class | and V policies placed by each institution. Cronos Vita will act as a bridge-vehicle, and on completion of the
transaction, which should take a maximum of 18 to 24 months, Eurovita’s insurance portfolio will be taken over by the five
insurance groups mentioned above. Finally, the agreements signed envisage a specific fee framework, in addition to the
existing distribution agreements, that the distributor banks will pay to Cronos Vita in exchange for performing servicing
activities, aimed at preserving and reactivating the business relationships with the customers who have subscribed to the
policies.

Following the agreements at the end of June, Cronos Vita applied to IVASS on 28 September 2023 for authorisation to carry

on insurance business, which after due examination was granted on 17 October 2023.

On 31 October 2023, following the issue of the authorisation by IVASS for the sale of the business line by Eurovita to Cronos

Vita and the signing of the final binding agreements, the transfer of the business line was completed together with the

accompanying capital increase subscribed by the companies for 213 million euro, which represents the second and last

tranche of a total capital increase of 220 million euro, whose fairness from an economic and financial standpoint was
supported by a specific opinion issued by an independent expert. Based on the contracts signed and the analysis of the
commitments made no onerousness conditions have been identified for the Group.

Within the framework described, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s overall involvement is structured as follows:

a) Intesa Sanpaolo Vita, through the acquisition of a non-controlling interest in Cronos Vita for an amount of around 50
million euro;

b) Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking, as “distributor”, through the granting of a loan at market conditions to Cronos
Vita for an amount of around 205 million euro. Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking, together with its subsidiary
Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking, will also be required to pay the above-mentioned fees;

c) Intesa Sanpaolo (Parent Company), through the granting of a loan at market conditions to Cronos Vita for a maximum
amount of around 300 million euro.

In line with the accounting treatment agreed upon with the other shareholder companies, taking into account the existence

from the outset of a clear intention by the shareholder companies to hold the interest in Cronos Vita for a limited period, and in

accordance with the agreements made within the overall approval of the transaction and the intervention framework, as at 31

December 2023, the interest held by Intesa Sanpaolo Vita in Cronos Vita was reclassified to assets held for sale pursuant to

IFRS 5. It was also verified, in line with IFRS 5, that the fair value of the investment, net of costs to sell, was not lower than

the carrying amount.

On 28 July, the results of the 2023 EU-Wide Stress Test were announced. The test was conducted by the European Banking
Authority (EBA), in cooperation with the Single Supervisory Mechanism (SSM), the Bank of Italy, the European Central Bank
(ECB) and the European Systemic Risk Board (ESRB) and involved also Intesa Sanpaolo for the scope of consolidation.

The reference scenario covers a three-year horizon (2023-2025). The stress test has been carried out applying a static
balance sheet assumption as of December 2022 and therefore does not take into account future business strategies and
management actions. It is not a forecast of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s profits.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group fully loaded CET1 ratio resulting from the stress test for 2025, the final year considered in the
exercise, stood at 14.85% under the baseline scenario and 10.85% under the adverse scenario, compared to the starting-
point figure of 13.53% as of 31 December 2022. These results highlight that Intesa Sanpaolo is able to confirm its solidity
even in complex scenarios, thanks to its well-diversified and resilient business model.

On 12 December 2023, the EBA published its annual risk assessment of the European banking system, accompanied by the
publication of the information of the 2023 EU-wide transparency exercise for 123 banks in 26 european countries.
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In line with the proactive management of its capital base, on 31 August 2023 Intesa Sanpaolo announced a cash tender offer
for any and all of its perpetual “€750,000,000 6.25% Additional Tier 1 Notes” outstanding for the full nominal amount (ISIN
XS1614415542, first call on 16 May 2024), at a price of 100.25% — an offer subject to the terms and conditions, as well as the
offer and distribution restrictions, set out in the tender offer memorandum dated 31 August 2023 — and the accompanying
launch of a new issue of fixed-rate reset perpetual Additional Tier 1 notes in a nominal amount of no less than 750,000,000
euro to be offered, subject to market conditions, to qualified investors, including holders of the notes subject of the offer.

At the Offer Expiration, on 7 September 2023, the amount of the notes validly tendered amounted to 503,077,000 euro,
equivalent to 67.08% of the nominal amount outstanding, which Intesa Sanpaolo agreed to repurchase. Accordingly, on the
settlement date of 11 September 2023, it paid the purchase price consideration and the accrued interest amount to the
holders that tendered the notes. The notes are now outstanding for the remaining amount of 246,923,000 euro and will be
redeemed in full on the first call date (16 May 2024) as Intesa Sanpaolo has already received the necessary authorisation
from the ECB.

On 7 September 2023, the settlement took place of the new perpetual “€1,250,000,000 9.125% Additional Tier 1 Notes” (ISIN:
XS2678939427), listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, with first interest rate reset date on 7 March 2030 and every five
years thereafter.

During the period from 11 September to 13 September 2023 an ordinary share buyback programme was implemented to
service plans for the assignment, free of charge, of Intesa Sanpaolo ordinary shares to the employees and the Financial
Advisors of the Group, in relation to (i) mainly, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group share-based incentive plan for 2022; and (ii) to a
lesser extent, the incentive plans of certain subsidiaries, also relating to 2022. These incentive plans are reserved for Risk
Takers who accrue a bonus in excess of the so-called “materiality threshold™'®, for those who are paid a “particularly high”
amount*® and for those who, among Middle Management or Professionals that are not Risk Takers, accrue “relevant
bonuses™®. In addition, the programme was implemented in order to grant, when certain conditions occur, severance
payments upon early termination of employment.

In the three days during which the programme was executed, a total of 32,000,000 Intesa Sanpaolo ordinary shares were
purchased, through the IMI Corporate & Investment Banking Division, tasked with the programme execution. These represent
around 0.18% of the share capital of the Parent Company. The average price was 2.4697 euro per share, for a total
countervalue of 79,031,462.67 euro. The Parent Company purchased 20,200,547 shares at an average price of 2.4683 euro
per share, for a countervalue of 49,861,766.11 euro.

The transactions were executed in compliance with provisions included in Articles 2357 and following and 2359-bis and
following of the Italian Civil Code and within the limits determined in the resolutions passed by the competent corporate
bodies. Specifically, in the case of the Parent Company Intesa Sanpaolo, the transactions were executed in accordance with
the terms approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of 28 April 2023.

Pursuant to Article 132 of the Consolidated Law on Finance and Article 144-bis of the Issuers’ Regulation and subsequent
amendments, purchases were executed on the regulated market Euronext Milan managed by Borsa lItaliana in accordance
with trading methods laid down in the market rules for these transactions.

Moreover, purchases were arranged in compliance with the conditions and the restrictions under Article 5 of Regulation (EU)
no. 596/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014, and Articles 2, 3, and 4 of Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2016/1052 of 8 March 2016.

The number of shares purchased daily did not exceed 25% of the daily average volume of the Intesa Sanpaolo ordinary
shares traded in August 2023, which was equal to 89.9 million shares, and 15% of the volume traded on the Euronext Milan
market on each of the days when purchases were executed — in accordance with the constraint added in the programme to
the above-mentioned regulatory conditions and restrictions.

On 12 September 2023, Intesa Sanpaolo, which offered real estate brokerage and advisory services through Intesa Sanpaolo
Casa via a network of agencies in major Italian cities, together with Homepal a Better Place, a next-generation online real
estate agency, which supports customers in the various stages of buying and selling real estate through a digital platform and
real estate agents operating remotely, and BPER Banca, already a shareholder of Homepal, announced that they had
reached an agreement for a strategic and commercial partnership to create a new player operating across the Italian market.
The new entity will be able to draw on the complementary service models of Intesa Sanpaolo Casa and Homepal and
leverage the Intesa Sanpaolo and BPER networks to meet customers’ property buying and selling needs through
technological services, physical presence and the experience of their agents.

The agreement was finalised on 23 October 2023 with Intesa Sanpaolo's transfer of its 100% shareholding in Intesa Sanpaolo
Casa to Homepal. Following the transaction, Intesa Sanpaolo has a 49% shareholding in Homepal, with the remaining 34%
held by Homepal’s previous shareholders and 17% by BPER Banca.

The value of the transfer of Intesa Sanpaolo Casa to Homepal was supported by a fairness opinion prepared by an
independent expert in accordance with Article 2343 of the Italian Civil Code. Intesa Sanpaolo’s rights as a non-controlling
shareholder and the governance of the company were also defined within the transaction. Based on the provisions of the
agreements made, Intesa Sanpaolo’s shareholding in Homepal has been classified under interests subject to significant
influence pursuant to IAS 28.

The extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of Homepal held on 1 December 2023 approved (i) the plan for the merger by
incorporation of the wholly-owned subsidiaries Intesa Sanpaolo Casa S.p.A. and Homepal Real Estate S.r.l. into Homepal a
Better Place S.p.A., in accordance with Article 2505 of the ltalian Civil Code, as well as (ii) the change in the name of the
absorbing company from Homepal a Better Place S.p.A. to Rexer S.p.A.

18 Equal to 50 thousand euro or one third of the total remuneration (unless otherwise provided for by specific local regulations).

19 pursuant to the Group Remuneration and Incentive Policies, for the three-year period 2022-2024 a variable remuneration exceeding 400 thousand
euro constitutes a “particularly high” amount.

20 Namely, an amount exceeding the “materiality threshold” (for Middle Management and Professionals generally equal to 80 thousand euro, unless
otherwise provided for by specific local regulations, it being understood that, for those who belong to Intesa Sanpaolo Wealth Management ‘s business
functions and those belonging to the Reyl Group, such threshold is equal to 150 thousand euro) and 100% of fixed remuneration.
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With reference to the one-off tax calculated on the increase in banks’ net interest income, pursuant to Article 26 of Decree
Law no. 104 of 10 August 2023 converted with amendments by Law no. 136 of 9 October 2023, and considering in particular
the provision in paragraph 5-bis of that article allowing for the allocation of an amount to a non-distributable reserve, in lieu of
payment of the tax envisaged, of no less than two and a half times the amount of the tax, the Board of Directors, in its meeting
held on 25 October 2023, decided to propose to the Shareholders’ Meeting, when approving the 2023 financial statements,
net income allocation and dividend distribution to shareholders, the allocation of 1,991,446,276.10 euro from the net income
for the full year 2023 to a specific reserve, thus taking up the option provided by the above-mentioned measure.

Should this reserve be distributed in the future, it shall be subject to payment of the tax calculated pursuant to paragraph 3 of
Article 26, amounting to 796,578,510.44 euro, plus interest calculated based on the interest rate on deposits with the
European Central Bank. Due to the amount of the freely distributable reserves not classed as suspended tax available to
Intesa Sanpaolo as at 31 December 2023 (23,177 million euro) and the presence of additional freely distributable reserves
classed as suspended tax (4,750 million euro), it is deemed highly unlikely that the above-mentioned tax shall be paid in the
future.

In accordance with the instruction of the Parent Company, similar commitments were also made by the Boards of Directors of
the subsidiary banks impacted by the measure: Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking, Intesa Sanpaolo Private
Banking and Isybank. In lieu of the one-off tax, a proposal will therefore be made to the Shareholders’ Meetings, called to
approve the 2023 Financial Statements, for the allocation to a specific reserve, pursuant to Article 26 of Decree Law no.
104/2023 converted with amendments by Law no. 136/2023, of a total amount at Group level of 2,068.8 million euro,
corresponding to 2.5 times the total tax amount of 827.5 million euro.

In line with its strategy focused on significant value creation for all stakeholders, Intesa Sanpaolo reaffirmed its commitment to
continue supporting initiatives addressing social needs, fighting inequalities, and fostering financial, social, educational and
cultural inclusion. Specifically, on 25 October, the Bank announced its intention to allocate around 1.5 billion euro in the five-
year period 2023-2027. This amount comprises around 1 billion euro allocated to the above-mentioned initiatives, identified
on a case-by-case basis, and around 500 million euro from structure costs for around 1,000 people devoted to supporting the
initiatives and a new dedicated organisational unit called “Intesa Sanpaolo for Social Impact” based in Brescia, set up to
strengthen Intesa Sanpaolo’s social impact strategy for local communities. These costs have already been taken into account,
on a pro-rata basis, in the guidance on the outlook for the 2024-2025 net income.

On 28 October 2023, Intesa Sanpaolo and the US-based private investment fund J.C. Flowers & Co. signed an agreement for
the acquisition of 99.98% of the shares of the Romanian bank First Bank S.A. The transaction is due to be completed by the
first half of 2024, subject to the necessary authorisations from the competent regulatory authorities, including the National
Bank of Romania and the European Central Bank. The latter came out in favour on 19 February 2024.

First Bank is a commercial bank with 40 branches in Romania focused on serving SMEs and retail customers. In recent years
the bank has prioritised investments in digital technology, developing one of the market’s best-regarded mobile banking apps.
The transaction will strengthen the Group’s presence in Central and Eastern Europe, and in particular in Romania where it
already operates through Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Romania, part of Intesa Sanpaolo’s International Subsidiary Banks Division.

Following the completion of the authorisation procedures with the competent Italian and Irish authorities, the deed of cross-
border merger was signed on 22 November 2023 for the merger by incorporation of Intesa Sanpaolo Life Designated Activity
Company — a company specialising in Class Il (unit-linked) insurance investment products, based in Dublin — into Intesa
Sanpaolo Vita S.p.A., its 100% controlling company. The merger took legal effect from 1 December 2023, with accounting and
tax effects from the same date.

As an integral part of the overall operation, Intesa Sanpaolo Vita established a branch in Dublin, with the aim of maintaining
an international hub with specialised expertise already in place, dedicated to the management of insurance products and the
development of new business. From the effective date of the merger and as a result of the transaction, the insurance
portfolios of the merged company were transferred to the Irish branch of Intesa Sanpaolo Vita, after having obtained the
authorisation from the Irish High Court on 27 October 2023. The merger and transfer of the portfolios have not had any impact
on the contractual services provided to customers, who continue to benefit from their rights arising from the contracts signed
without any limitations.

The merger above enabled the creation of a single product company, with obvious benefits in terms of organisational,
administrative and operational simplification and the streamlining of Supervisory requirements under a single Authority
(IVASS), as well as in terms of risk management thanks to the centralisation of the control functions.

On 23 November 2023, Intesa Sanpaolo, the Italian Banking Association and the Trade Unions signed the renewal of the

National Collective Bargaining Agreement for officers and personnel belonging to professional areas, which had expired on

31 December 2022. Among other changes, the new National Collective Bargaining Agreement, which will expire on 31

March 2026, provides for:

- an average gross salary increase of 435 euro, adjusted for the different levels of classification;

- the reinstatement of the calculation of the employee termination indemnities on all the remuneration items envisaged in
the National Collective Bargaining Agreement or in second-level bargaining agreements from July 2023;

- the reduction of the weekly working time to 37 hours from 1 July 2024.

The total impact on the income statement is estimated at around 545 million euro when fully implemented (in 2027), of which

179 million euro already recognised in 2023.

On 30 November 2023, Intesa Sanpaolo announced that it had received notification of the ECB’s final decision concerning the
capital requirement that the Bank has to meet, on a consolidated basis, as of 1 January 2024, following the results of the
Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP). The overall capital requirement to be met in terms of Common Equity
Tier 1 ratio is currently 9.33%.
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This is the result of:

- the SREP requirement in terms of Total Capital ratio of 9.50% comprising a minimum Pillar 1 capital requirement of 8%,
of which 4.5% is CET1, and an additional Pillar 2 capital requirement of 1.50%, of which 0.84% is CET1 applying the
regulatory amendment introduced by the ECB and effective from 12 March 2020;

- additional requirements, entirely in terms of Common Equity Tier 1 ratio, relating to:

o a Capital Conservation Buffer of 2.5%,
o an O-SllI (Other Systemically Important Institutions) Buffer of 1.25%,
o a Countercyclical Capital Buffer of 0.24%?2.

Lastly, to complete the disclosure for 2023, the voluntary exits plan continued in accordance with the trade union agreements
of 29 September 2020 and 16 November 2021.

There were 2,259 voluntary exits during the year (1,234 in the first quarter, 68 in the second quarter, 888 in the third quarter,
of which 855 with effect from 1 July, and 69 in the fourth quarter) for a total of 7,118 exits from the beginning of 2021, against
the 9,200 exits expected to take place by the first quarter of 2025 under the terms of the two above-mentioned trade union
agreements.

In addition, at the beginning of January 2024 there was a further exit window involving around 750 Group employees.

In 2023, there were around 1,650 hires (of which around 500 in the first quarter, 400 in the second quarter, 350 in the third
quarter, and 400 in the fourth quarter) as part of those agreements, for a total of around 3,000 from the beginning of 2021
compared with the 4,600 planned by the end of 2025.

* % %

As part of the Next Way of Working project — aimed at implementing a new working model based on strengthening individual
responsibility and improving work-life balance — since 1 January 2023, innovative measures relating to remote working have
been introduced on a voluntary basis, founded on increasing access to all the flexibility mechanisms, also for the people
working in the Network. These measures have been welcomed by the staff potentially concerned, also as a result of the
additions and improvements established in the trade union agreement of 26 May 2023. These measures involve:

- the possibility of working from home up to a maximum of 120 days per year (140 days for those working in shifts), with no
more monthly limits, when planned and authorised in advance (the limits may not apply to people with certified disabilities
or serious illnesses, or frail individuals), accompanied by the allocation to non-managerial staff of a daily meal voucher in
electronic form for each day worked from home. In addition to the head offices, this measure is currently also being
applied at 287 branches, of which 262 of the Banca dei Territori and 25 of the Private Banking Division;

- the possibility of working between Monday and Friday on 4 days for 9 hours with equal pay (so-called short week, with
variable day off), as well as alternating the short week with weeks of 7.5 hours a day on 5 days, together with the
possibility, for staff not working in shifts, of having flexible start times for their working day. The application of the short
week involves 40 large branches of the Banca dei Territori, while from 6 November 2023, the staff of 254 smaller
branches were also given the possibility to voluntarily apply for and take advantage of the short week on the closing day
of the branch (between Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday). To ensure the voluntary nature of the initiative for the staff
employed at the above branches, nearby branches have been identified to act as a backup on the designated day of
closure.

Also within the Next Way of Working project, the real estate and technological interventions aimed at constructing new
workspaces designed to enhance the moments of presence in the office continued and are still underway.

This renovation of the spaces is continuing alongside the implementation of technological tools (release of the space booking
function in the planning and reservation tool) and specific targeted communication campaigns. In particular, the new building
complex in Via Melchiorre Gioia 22 in Milan was completed in 2023 and now houses the Private Banking, Insurance and
Asset Management Divisions, as well as Isybank. At the end of the year, work was also completed on the premises in Como,
Jesi, Bologna, Naples, Turin and Bergamo, while the remaining work was completed on the premises in Rome in the early
weeks of 2024. The design work is still being defined for Cuneo, while it is in the process of being agreed for Treviso.

In line with the ESG initiatives for sustainable energy use, a pilot phase was launched involving the temporary closure of
several offices in Milan (four) over the Christmas period (27 December 2023 to 5 January 2024 inclusive), which is typically
characterised by a significant reduction in office attendance, while ensuring the possibility of in-presence work during the
closure period by making other company spaces available in nearby areas, upon booking, as an alternative to the voluntary
adoption of remote working.

With regard to the safety and personal protection measures connected to the COVID-19 pandemic, the prudential approach
maintained despite the termination of the state of emergency in March 2022 has been substantially abandoned, with the
support of the Coordinating Occupational Health Doctors.

Accordingly, from 1 March 2023, the internal rules on inter-personal distancing were suspended, resulting in the minimum
distance of one metre being removed for all in-person activities, a return to the maximum ordinary capacities based on the
configuration of the spaces and the removal of plexiglass barriers where present.

The importance of responsible individual behaviour has however been stressed, and in particular the recommendation to use
FFP2 protective equipment in the most crowded settings and for situations of vulnerability, proper hand and workstation
hygiene, and room ventilation.

From 1 September 2023, following the changes in the legal provisions, the requirement for home isolation in the event of a
positive test was abolished and replaced by the recommendation of a series of generally valid precautions to prevent the
transmission of respiratory infections (for those with symptoms, staying at home until they have ceased; proper use of FFP2

21 calculated taking into account the exposure as at 31 December 2023 in the various countries where the Group has a presence, as well as the
respective requirements set by the competent national authorities and relating to 2025, where available, or the most recent update of the reference

period (requirement was set at zero per cent in Italy for the first quarter of 2024).
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masks in workplaces and company break and catering areas; inter-personal distancing; and hand hygiene). As a result, the
obligation to report positive cases to the Occupational Health Function through the company reporting mechanism has been
removed.

Finally, greater attention continues to be paid to workers in vulnerable situations with the extension of remote working from
home for those in special situations, in line with the requirements progressively established by the legislative provisions.

The 2022-2025 Business Plan

The 2022-2025 Business Plan sets out a strategy based on four fundamental pillars of the Plan and implemented thanks to
the quality of the Bank’s People:

— massive upfront de-risking, slashing cost of risk;

—  structural cost reduction enabled by technology;

— growth in commissions, driven by Wealth Management, Protection & Advisory;

— significant ESG commitment, with world-class positioning in social impact and strong focus on climate.

Over the years, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has confirmed its solidity and strengths, and in particular its earnings resilience,
solid capitalisation, risk control, and high flexibility in managing operating costs.

The results achieved in 2023 confirm that the Intesa Sanpaolo Group is able to generate sustainable profitability even in
complex environments thanks to its well-diversified business model. The implementation of the Plan is proceeding at full
speed, with the key industrial initiatives well underway. The Plan targets are therefore confirmed, with the prospect of them
being increased, thanks to a contribution from net interest income above the initial Plan assumptions and the expected
recovery in fee and commission.

Massive upfront de-risking, slashing Cost of risk

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group is continuing its ongoing commitment to improving asset quality through capital efficiency and
credit risk transfer initiatives, having achieved a 5.4 billion euro reduction in the stock of gross non-performing loans since the
start of the Plan, with gross and net NPL ratios, calculated according to the EBA methodology, at 1.8% and 0.9% respectively
in 2023.

The Active Credit Portfolio Steering (ACPS) unit continued to expand its credit risk coverage schemes for optimising capital
absorption, reporting an outstanding volume of synthetic securitisations included in the GARC (Gestione Attiva Rischio di
Credito - Active Credit Risk Management) Programme of around 28 billion euro at the end of 2023. Several new synthetic
securitisations were finalised during the year, details of which can be found in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements — Part E — Information on risks and relative hedging policies — Section 2 — Risks of the prudential consolidation.
The extension of the scope of the ACPS unit's lending strategy to ESG criteria continued, directing 20 billion euro of new
loans in 2022 and around 18.1 billion euro in 2023 towards more sustainable economic sectors with the best risk/return
profile, while also broadening the scope of alternative financing solutions for high-risk customers.

In the area of credit assessment, the Group’s capabilities have been further strengthened, thanks to the introduction of a
Sectorial Framework, which assesses the forward-looking profile of each economic sector on a quarterly basis across
different countries. A specific management committee approves the sectorial view, which feeds into all the credit processes,
increasing the effectiveness of the credit decisions and action plans.

The proactive risk management was further expanded, with the extension of anti-fraud cybersecurity protection to new
products and services for retail customers, also through Artificial Intelligence solutions. The Group’s cyber threat response
capability was also enhanced through the adoption of Open Source Intelligence solutions.

The Bank also strengthened its commitment to combating money laundering and terrorism with the creation of the Anti-
Financial Crime Digital Hub (AFC Digital Hub), a national and international centre that is also open to other financial
institutions and intermediaries in the industry, and which aims to leverage new technologies and Artificial Intelligence to create
a public-private collaboration model which enables the introduction of innovation in business processes through applied
research.

Intesa Sanpaolo was the winner of the “ESG Innovation of the year” category at the ESG Securitisation Awards promoted by
Structured Credit Investor, thanks to the application of the proprietary ESG Scoring model to its risk transfer transactions and
was recognised as the best innovative bank in Europe in the ESG securitisation sector. The award is an important recognition
of Intesa Sanpaolo’s ESG commitments and achievements and confirms the high level achieved in active credit risk
management.

With regard to the non-performing loans that were reclassified as assets held for sale as at 31 December 2022, the related
project activities, within the scope of the 2021-2022 de-risking plans, were completed in March 2023. As stated in the 2022
Annual Report, this was mainly a portfolio consisting of small ticket UTPs with a Gross Book Value (GBV) of around
0.75 billion euro. Given the characteristics of this portfolio, the structure of the transaction identified involved the transfer to
two Alternative Investment Funds (AIFs) via a solution that would ensure credit management policies primarily aimed at
returning the borrowers to performing status. The transactions took place at values in line with the net book values that had
already been aligned with the prices expected from the disposals in the 2022 Annual Report.

With the 2022-2025 Business Plan, the Group intends to pursue a modular de-risking strategy, which was significantly
implemented during the previous Business Plan and has already placed it among the best in Europe in terms of non-
performing loan ratio and stock, generating a net drop in the cost of risk. Indeed, the latter will always be maintained at a
conservative level, due to the extensive reserves of provisions on loans and ongoing prudent credit management.
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As part of the strategic initiatives to consolidate the leadership in Europe as a ZeroNPL Bank, de-risking solutions were

implemented focusing on vulnerable, high-risk and Stage 2 sectors.

In October 2023, the sale of an Intesa Sanpaolo portfolio of non-performing loans, consisting of bad loans in the amount of

around 0.3 billion euro in terms of GBV, was completed.

Several other initiatives were identified and implemented in the final months of the year:

— in November, Intesa Sanpaolo’s Board of Directors approved a deconsolidation project for a portfolio of non-performing
loans of Intesa Sanpaolo in the individuals and small business segments classified as bad loans, with a GBV of around
0.9 billion euro, through a securitisation that involved the market placement of 95% of the mezzanine and junior
securities. The transaction was completed on 18 December 2023;

— in addition, for subsequent transfer to a credit fund that will operate through the active management of the loans
transferred, an Intesa Sanpaolo portfolio was established consisting of both non-performing exposures classified as
unlikely-to-pay and positions not yet in non-performing status but considered high risk, for a total GBV of around 0.2
billion euro. The transaction was approved by the Board of Directors in December 2023 with completion expected during
2024. Having verified the fulfilment of the requirements of IFRS 5, as at 31 December 2023 the loans identified for sale
were reclassified as assets held for sale at the expected sale price, which was substantially in line with the net carrying
amount.

Lastly, for completeness, it should be noted that during the second half of 2023 Intesa Sanpaolo completed a transaction for

the sale of performing on-balance sheet exposures (amounting to around 0.8 billion euro in terms of GBV) to the Italian

Commercial Real Estate sector, with a substantially neutral effect on the income statement. In summary, the transaction

involved (i) the transfer of part of the credit exposure to two Real Estate Funds, in exchange for units of the transferee funds,

and (ii) the conversion of the remaining exposure into newly issued Equity Instruments.

Based on the above, as at 31 December 2023, loans with a gross value of 181 million euro and a net value of 139 million
euro, aligned with the expected proceeds, had been classified as assets held for sale.

Structural Cost reduction, enabled by technology

The streamlining of the retail network and the real estate scale back in Italy continued with the closure of around 830
branches (starting in the fourth quarter of 2021) and the release of about 490,000 square metres of owned or leased property.
In addition, 109 owned real estate assets have been sold for a total value of around 84 million euro since the beginning of the
Plan.

Continuous strategic investments in technology have enabled the streamlining of the branch network, leading to a profound

digital transformation over the years, strongly oriented towards customer relationship care. This is reflected in Forrester

Research’s recognition of the Intesa Sanpaolo Mobile app as the best banking app in the world.

In 2023, Intesa Sanpaolo Group launched Isybank, the Group’s new digital bank, central to its customer service model and

digital development strategy. With its creation, the Group aims to further strengthen its competitive advantage in cost

management and to achieve leadership in Europe in operational efficiency and customer service innovation. The
development of the new Isytech cloud-native digital platform, Isybank’s technology infrastructure, continues, and will gradually
be extended to the entire Group.

Intesa Sanpaolo has been pursuing numerous other technological initiatives since the beginning of the Plan, including:

— investments in Atrtificial Intelligence to further unlock new business opportunities, increase operational efficiency and
further improve the management of risks, and the creation of the Centai Institute, an Artificial Intelligence laboratory in
Turin;

— hiring of around 1,550 people in the technology area;

— identification of around 40 cost efficiency initiatives, thanks to the new digital platform for analytical cost management,
which uses integrated advanced analytics and benchmarking techniques;

— implementation of the tools supporting the negotiation and scouting activities for potential suppliers, launch of the
programme of procurement analytics and identification of the use cases, extension of the Hub Procurement system (as
part of the process of centralising activities) to the entire centralised procurement management perimeter;

— continuation of the digitisation strategy for E2E processes using both Process Intelligent Automation (e.g. with Artificial
Intelligence and/or Robotic Process Automation) and traditional re-engineering methods;

—  Eurizon’s launch of digitalisation projects related to Artificial Intelligence and Digital Ledger Technology;

— operational start-up of the new Cloud Region in Turin, in line with the SkyRocket plan (cloud solution enabled by the
partnership with Google Cloud and TIM), adding to the one in Milan;

— launch of the new core banking system in Egypt and gradual release of applications for the target platform in all the
countries of the International Subsidiary Banks Division.

The reduction in personnel due to voluntary exits, which involved around 7,100 people from 2021, also continued, partly

supported by the digital transformation strategy.
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Growth in Commissions, driven by Wealth Management, Protection & Advisory

The strengthening of “Valore Insieme”, the advanced advisory service for Affluent and Exclusive customers of Banca dei

Territori, continues, thanks to the expansion of the offering with new insurance and asset management products. From the

beginning of the year, around 58,000 new contracts were signed and new financial asset flows of around 18.4 billion euro

were gathered, with Valore Insieme’s stock of financial assets amounting to 67.9 billion euro at the end of the year.

In Private Banking, the new Aladdin Robo4advisory functions for the Fideuram and former IW Bank networks, and We Add,

the new advanced advisory service for the Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking network, have been released. New features have

also been developed for the UHNWI (Ultra High Net Worth Individuals) customer advisory tools and the service model for
family offices has been strengthened.

Fideuram Direct (Fideuram’s digital wealth management service for investing in managed products and trading in over 50

cash and derivatives markets, with advanced services) is fully up and running. Direct Advisory, the new remote advisory

service, allows customers to open accounts and subscribe to asset management products themselves and will allow
customers to build investment portfolios with the help of direct bankers operating remotely. Cash deposits were also added to
the offering to complement wealth management product solutions. Fideuram Direct offering, both for Advanced Trading and

Direct Advisory, was also extended to the customers of the traditional networks based on their preferences and operational

characteristics.

The offering of Alpian, Switzerland’s first digital private bank with a mobile-only platform, including multi-currency services,

asset management and support from experienced financial advisors, was expanded with the addition of the in-self

configurable mandates and the Apple Pay service. In addition, the growth in fee income abroad will be supported by the

Division’s Swiss Hub and the establishment of Intesa Sanpaolo Wealth Management, resulting from the merger of the two

Private Banking companies in Luxembourg.

Intesa Sanpaolo was the first bank in Italy to offer Nexi SoftPOS in 2023, a solution allowing contactless digital payments from

smartphones/tablets without a card payment machine (POS terminal).

With the aim of generating innovative investment opportunities for Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking’s customers, a

strategic partnership was established with Man Group, which will focus on the creation of a wide range of alternative and

strictly long-term investment strategies using cutting-edge technology. In addition, 100% of Carnegie Fund Services S.A., an

active player in fund distribution, was acquired and merged into Reyl & Cie S.A. with accounting effect from 1 January 2024.

The expansion continued of Eurizon’s offering for captive and third-party distributors through the progressive enhancement of

the ESG product offering for asset management and insurance, bringing the penetration to around 74% on Eurizon total

assets under management.

In the first quarter of the year, Blue Assistance, a Reale Group company, transferred a business line to InSalute Servizi, a

company of Intesa Sanpaolo’s Insurance Division, becoming a 35% shareholder of InSalute Servizi, with the remaining 65%

held by Intesa Sanpaolo Vita. The company is operational thanks to the inclusion of a technological platform, a network of

affiliated healthcare facilities, know-how and a team of specialised personnel. A new digital plan focusing on telemedicine and
online booking of medical services was also launched by InSalute Servizi. From 1 January 2024, the latter became the TPA

(Third Party Administrator) of the ISP Group’s Health Fund, with around 245,000 people assisted and more than 1 million

annual reimbursement claims.

The Group has dedicated several initiatives to business and financial institutions, including the following:

— launch of IncentNow, a digital platform able to provide information to Italian companies and institutions on the
opportunities offered by the public tenders related to the National Recovery and Resilience Plan along with webinars and
workshops with clients aimed at educating and sharing views on key topics such as the digital transition;

— launch of advisory initiatives focused on Infrastructure, TMT (Technology, Media & Telecommunications) and Energy
corporate customers, linked to selected themes and post-pandemic recovery plans;

— origination and distribution activities, both in Italy and abroad, also through the enhancement of the Originate-to-Share
model and the strengthening of relationships with institutional customers;

—  provision of ESG advisory services to corporates to steer the energy transition through a scalable approach, with a focus
on energy, infrastructure and the automotive & industrial sectors, also through supply chain agreements with specialised
partners, and integrating working capital funding solutions;

— initiatives to enhance the digital platforms serving Corporate customers, with a focus on Cash and Trade services and
the Global Markets offering also through the launch of Cardea, an innovative and digital platform for financial institutions.

The development of synergies continues between the IMI Corporate & Investment Banking Division and the Group Banks in

Slovakia, Czech Republic, Croatia and Hungary. In addition, the implementation continues of the ESG value proposition,

dedicated to priority sectors of the commercial strategy, for the Corporate and SME customer segments of the Group Banks in

Slovakia, Hungary, Croatia, Serbia and Egypt.

The distribution of bancassurance products in Slovakia, Croatia, Hungary, Serbia and Slovenia continued through the signing

of the Master Cooperation Agreement with a leading insurance group, accompanied by the signing of the corresponding Local

Distribution Agreements.

Also worth noting lastly were:

— the further enhancement of cross-border business opportunities for mid-corporates operating in markets where the
international subsidiaries are present, through a synergy project between the International Subsidiary Banks Division
(ISBD) and the Banca dei Territori Division;

— the development of synergies (in Global Market, Structured Finance and Investment Banking) between IMI C&IB and
Group banks in Slovakia, Czech Republic, Hungary and Croatia with a significant increase in business since the start of
the Business Plan;

— the definition and implementation of a new Service model for HNWI customers of ISBD, specifically tailored for
entrepreneurs with advanced asset management needs, through the development of a joint initiative between the
International Subsidiary Banks Division (ISBD) and the Private Banking Division;

— the signing in October 2023 of the contract for the acquisition of 99.98% of First Bank, a Romanian commercial bank
focused on SME and retail customers. The acquisition, to be approved by the competent authorities, will strengthen ISP’s
presence in Romania and offer new opportunities for Italian corporates.
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Significant ESG commitment, with a world-class position in Social Impact and strong focus on climate

Intesa Sanpaolo has confirmed its status as the engine of ltaly’s real and social economies through the provision of
medium/long-term lending to households and businesses.

The Bank is pursuing and strengthening its social commitment through numerous initiatives, including interventions in favour
of the needy, social lending and the commitment to develop one of the largest social housing programmes in Italy.

The Bank also maintained its strong commitment to developing culture and supporting the promotion of innovation.

In addition, considerable attention was given to the green economy, circular economy and green transition, also in relation to
the 2021-2026 National Recovery and Resilience Plan.

Net-zero targets were implemented in all the business units.

ESG governance has been strengthened: since April 2022, the Risks Committee has been transformed into the Risks and
Sustainability Committee and has acquired more responsibility for ESG issues.

For more information, see the paragraph below on Sustainability and Group strategy on Environmental, Social and
Governance issues.

Innovation, digital transformation and cybersecurity

In recognition of the strategic value of innovation for the growth of the new economy, the Group aims to promote around 800
innovation projects over the period of the Business Plan, of which 204 were launched in 2023 by Intesa Sanpaolo Innovation
Center (405 from 2022).

The major initiatives for the growth of start-ups and development of innovation ecosystems included the renewal by Intesa
Sanpaolo Innovation Center of its partnership with Fondazione Compagnia di San Paolo, Fondazione Sviluppo e Crescita -
CRT, and Techstars, also with a view to strengthening Turin’s strategic positioning as an internationally attractive hub, with
the signing of a new two-year collaboration protocol. This partnership enabled the launch of “Techstars Transformative World
Torino”, a new acceleration programme for trend setting-advanced technologies, which follows the previous programmes for
smart mobility and smart cities. In December, 12 start-ups were selected (over 300 candidates) for the first track, which
started in February 2024 (57 start-ups accelerated since the launch of the first programme in 2019, with over 70 proofs of
concept and other collaborations realised, over 85 million euro in capital raised, and around 550 people hired after the
acceleration). In November, the call was launched for the third class of the three-year Italian Lifestyle Accelerator Program in
Florence managed by Nana Bianca, which starts in March 2024 (12 Italian start-ups accelerated since its launch in 2021, with
50 proofs of concept and other contractual collaborations, around 4 million euro in capital raised, and over 100 people hired).
In January 2024, in Naples, the third class was launched of the “Terra Next” bio-economy programme initiated in 2022,
promoted with Cassa Depositi e Prestiti, Cariplo Factory and several local scientific partners, under the patronage of the
Ministry for the Environment and Energy Security (15 start-ups accelerated since 2022, with over 110 proofs of concept and
other contractual collaborations realised, and around 0.8 million euro of capital raised). Lastly, the first class of the three-year
“Argo” programme (in the Hospitality and Tourism sector), sponsored by Banca dei Territori and Intesa Sanpaolo Innovation
Center, and implemented by Cassa Depositi e Prestiti and Lventure, with the collaboration of the Ministry of Tourism, was
completed in Venice in October. The programme saw the acceleration of 7 start-ups, 2 proofs of concept and other
collaborations, and around 1.3 million euro in capital raised (the call for the second class was opened at the end of the year).
Intesa Sanpaolo Innovation Center is also supporting the Banca dei Territori Division in the Next Age (Silver Economy)
programme, whose third class was launched in January 2024, and the Faros (Blue Economy) programme, whose second
class closed in February 2024. Both the programmes are promoted by Cassa Depositi e Prestiti and managed by AC75
Startup Accelerator and A|cube respectively.

The second edition is underway of the Up2Stars initiative, promoted by Banca dei Territori with the support of Intesa Sanpaolo
Innovation Center. This initiative is aimed at 40 startups and built around on four areas: Watertech; Renewable Energy and
Energy efficiency; Artificial Intelligence (Al) for Business Transformation; and IoT (Internet of Things), Infrastructure and
Mobility. The acceleration of 10 start-ups in the second area Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency is now underway,
while the call in the third area Al for Business Transformation has closed. A total of around 200 applications were received in
2023 for the three tracks. In Action ESG Climate is the initiative promoted by the Insurance Division with the support of Intesa
Sanpaolo Innovation Center to promote the development of new solutions to combat climate change and support the green
transition through technological innovation and the development of new business models. The second edition of the initiative
has been completed and 4 companies (from around 140 candidates) have been awarded a total grant of around 600,000
euro. In the two editions, 7 companies overall were awarded a total of 1.1 million euro. The monitoring of the 2022 winners
found that the projects selected were completed on time, also recording growth both in terms of revenue and attractiveness to
external investors.

In the area of applied research, 16 multidisciplinary projects are being implemented (8 in the area of neuroscience and 8 in Al
and robotics) and 10 industrialisations have been realised since 2022. In particular, 8 projects were launched in the fourth
quarter of 2023 (a total of 12 in 2023 and 19 since 2022), including 3 research projects on Al with CENTAI and other units of
the Bank, 2 projects in robotics and neuroscience, using the new NRRP “Innovative PhD” instrument, and 1 project in
neuroscience relating to climate change. Two patents were also obtained for industrial inventions in the field of Al (3 since
2022). Three projects were closed in the fourth quarter (10 in total in 2023), including 1 Al-based project, in collaboration with
CENTAI, the IMI C&IB Division and a corporate customer, aimed at creating and managing a hedging portfolio strategy, and 1
project in the field of neuroscience aimed at supporting the IMI C&IB Division in implementing strategies to increase cognitive
flexibility and logical-strategic reasoning.

To promote the acceleration of business transformation, 43 companies have been engaged in open innovation programmes
since 2022, including 6 in transformative projects in the circular economy. Specifically, Intesa Sanpaolo Innovation Center, as
part of the partnership with TIM, collaborated on the “TIM Al Challenge”, an open innovation program aimed at identifying
innovative solutions in the field of Al, and also contributed to the paper “L’intelligenza Atrtificiale in Italia” issued by the TIM
Research Center. In addition, three tech tours for corporates/start-ups were completed in Tel Aviv (Smart Mobility Tech Tour),
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in San Francisco (in connection with SMAU, at INNOVIT, with the collaboration of ITA Italian Trade Agency) and in the
Greater Bay Area (Greater Bay Roadshow).

With the aim of spreading a culture of innovation, 36 positioning and match-making events were held in 202322 (of which 13 in
the fourth quarter of 2023), with over 3,000 participants (since 2022 a total of 68 events with over 5,200 participants). Also in
the fourth quarter, Intesa Sanpaolo Innovation Center, together with Intesa Sanpaolo, moderated the panel “How to
accelerate the transition towards Circular Economy and its impact on Technologies, Finance and Industries” at COP28 in
Dubai. Nine reports on technology innovation were published in 2023 and six more on innovation (30 in total since 2022).
Lastly, in 2023, Neva SGR made investments in support of start-ups of around 31 million euro (over 85 million euro since
2022), and the new Neva Il Global and Neva Il Europe funds, which will be launched in the second half of 2024, were
presented.

The Group’s people as its most important asset

The empowerment, growth and satisfaction of people remains one of Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s main objectives and the Group

will continue to invest in talent, fostering diversity and inclusion, and creating a unique ecosystem of skills in line with the

Bank’s evolution. The commitment to strengthening its human capital continued through a series of dedicated initiatives,

underscoring the fact that people are the most important resource for achieving the Plan objectives and the enabler for future

success.

The generational change continues, with the hiring of professionals and the reskilling and training of internal staff, to support

the Group’s growth and best meet the challenges of the coming years by developing and maintaining suitable skills. Over the

Plan period, the target is to make 4,600 permanent hires (around 3,000 professionals hired from 2021) and to re-skill and

retrain around 8,000 people for priority and strategic initiatives (around 3,850 already involved since 2022).

The International Talent Program, now in its third edition, continued, alongside targeted development and training initiatives

dedicated to a selected number of key middle management staff. In addition, the engagement of the Group’s People in

achieving the Plan’s objectives is pursued through long-term incentive plans that also foster individual entrepreneurship.

With the aim of facilitating work-life balance for the Group’s employees and responding to the needs for flexibility, a new

organisational framework has been set up that provides greater flexibility in terms of daily work schedule, remote working and

the introduction of a four-day working week on a voluntary basis with no change in remuneration.

Italy’s new leading education player, created through the combination between ISP Formazione and Digit'Ed (a Nextalia Fund

company), is now operational, and will play a pivotal role in the staff training strategy, which is a key aspect for the Group. In

today’s environment, which requires the ongoing development of skills and flexibility, the Bank has delivered around 26.1

million hours of training since 2022, against a target of 50 million hours envisaged over the Plan period.

The platform dedicated to the physical, emotional, psychological and social well-being of the Group’s employees was also

launched, offering video content, podcasts, articles, tools and apps, accompanied by events and initiatives organised both in-

person and digitally.

Fostering an inclusive working environment that promotes respect and the value of diversity and enhances the multicultural

heritage, experiences and characteristics of the Group’s People, is a key objective for the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, which is

committed to promoting people management and development policies based on fairness, meritocracy and nurturing each
individual’'s talent without discrimination of any kind. To this end, the Diversity & Inclusion objectives of each Division and

Governance Area are closely monitored, and the collaboration has been strengthened with ISPROUD, the Group’s first

employee community, which now includes LGBTQ+ people and allies.

The attention the Group pays to its people is reflected in the numerous awards it has received:

—  Top Employer 2024 for the third consecutive year (an award given to the bank by the Top Employers Institute) and Best
Talent Acquisition Team in LinkedIn’s 2023 Talent Awards;

— only ltalian bank listed in the Dow Jones Sustainability Indices, in the CDP Climate A List 2022 and in the 2023
Corporate Knights “Global 100 Most Sustainable Corporations in the World Index”;

— ranked first among peer group banks in the international Sustainalytics and Bloomberg assessments (ESG Disclosure
Score);

— included for the sixth consecutive year in the Bloomberg Gender Equality Index (GEI) 2023;

— ranked as first bank in Europe and the only Italian bank among the 100 most inclusive and diversity-conscious
workplaces, according to the Refinitiv Global Diversity and Inclusion Index 2023;

—  first major Italian banking group to obtain the “Prassi di Riferimento (PDR) 125:2022” certification for gender equality
envisaged by the National Recovery and Resilience Plan (NRRP), with successful completion of an annual audit for
retention of the certification;

— ranked first in the global ESG Corporate Award ranking, in the Best Company for Diversity Equity & Inclusion category,
among large cap companies;

— one of the first European banks to be awarded the prestigious Gender Equality European & International Standard
(GEEIS-Diversity) certification on Diversity & Inclusion in 2021, with a mid-term audit successfully completed for the
retention of the certification;

— received the “best improvement” award and the “best ally” award, given to the Chief Financial Officer, at the Parks
LGBT+ Diversity Index 2023.

Lastly, the ISP People Satisfaction Index is continuously rising and has reached its highest level for the last ten years (84% in

2023 compared to 79% in 2021 and 66% in 2013).

22 Positioning event: an event where a key player discusses innovation issues. Match-making event: an event that facilitates the matching of supply and
demand in innovation.
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Sustainability and Group strategy on Environmental, Social and Governance issues

Intesa Sanpaolo is aware that, as a global financial player and one of the leading banking groups in Europe, it has a
significant impact in terms of environmental and social sustainability, in the short and long term, through both its direct and
indirect activities.

In general terms, the Group adopts a holistic approach to Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) issues, which is

based on:

— defining a Group ESG strategy in line with the guidelines provided by the Corporate Bodies, supported by the internal
governance structures, with the coordination of the ESG Control Room.

— its own regulatory framework, which includes the “Group guidelines for the governance of environmental social and
governance (ESG) risks” and voluntary policies on conduct (“Principles on Human Rights” and Code of Ethics, which was
updated in 2023, augmenting its content in line with the Group's reinforced sustainability commitments). In addition, the
Group has adopted “Rules for the classification of sustainable credit products and transactions”, aimed at improving
internal and external transparency in relation to sustainable products and transactions, and “Rules for the application of
the European Taxonomy in relation to the Green Asset Ratio (GAR)”;

— integrating ESG risks into the overall Risk Management framework and in relation to the traditional risk categories (credit
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risks and reputational risks).

In 2023, the activities in pursuit of the objectives stated in the 2022-2025 Business Plan proceeded at full pace, with the
Group demonstrating its ability to generate significant value creation for all stakeholders, also supported by its strong ESG
commitment, enshrined in one of the four pillars of the
Business Plan.

The Plan continues the commitment in the social and cultural
domains, based on responding to social needs through, for
example, new initiatives for seniors and young people
(including one of the most extensive social housing
programmes in Italy and the creation of seniors community
hubs), support for financial inclusion, through cumulative
social lending flows of 25 billion euro, and the continued
promotion of culture, for example by doubling the exhibition
spaces of the Gallerie d’ltalia by 2025. In 2023, the Bank
committed to allocating around 1.5 billion euro?® in total for the

five-year period 2023-2027 to support initiatives addressing & -} ; : i_ A
social needs, and a new organisational unit was set up that EPraF ML F £5 i I RSNl Sl \%&Q
will be tasked with guiding and governing the Group's social |mpact activities.

Within the Business Plan, the Group has stepped up its commitment to the green transition, supporting individuals and
businesses through dedicated products and encouraging the transition from a linear to a circular economy, in addition to
reducing its own and financed emissions over the entire value chain.

Intesa Sanpaolo can play a key role in steering capital towards a sustainable economy. With regard to climate change, in
addition to directly managing its environmental footprint, the Bank can exert strong influence on activities and behaviour that it
cannot control directly, in particular those of its customers and suppliers, supporting them in the transition to a low-carbon
economy.

In relation to the preservation of natural capital, the 2022-2025 Business Plan provides for the development of a specific
biodiversity policy and a major reforestation and natural capital preservation project, called Think Forestry, aimed at promoting
environmental sustainability and the transition to a zero-emissions economy, with the overall goal of planting and preserving
100 million trees through the joint action of the Bank and its corporate customers.

After the establishment in 2022 of the main targets linked to the commitments made in the Net-Zero alliances, and following
the Group’s subscription to the Net-Zero Banking Alliance (NZBA), Net-Zero Asset Managers Initiative (NZAMI), Net-Zero
Asset Owner Alliance (NZAOA) and Net-Zero Insurance Alliance (NZIA), the 2030 targets for the main emission-intensive
sectors (Oil & Gas, Power Generation, Automotive and Coal Mining, with phase out for the latter envisaged by 2025) were
published in the 2022-2025 Business Plan. In October 2022, Eurizon Capital SGR, Fideuram Asset Management SGR,
Fideuram Asset Management Ireland and the Intesa Sanpaolo Vita Insurance Group also published their first interim targets.
In 2023, Intesa Sanpaolo maintained its strong focus on sustainability as demonstrated by its top positioning in the main
indices and rankings. It is the only Italian bank included in the Dow Jones Sustainability Indices (World and Europe), the top
European bank and second in the world in the Corporate Knights 2024 “Global 100 Most Sustainable Corporations in the
World” index, and it is included in CDP's Leadership level. It was also listed for the sixth consecutive year in the 2023
Bloomberg Gender-Equality Index, as the number-one bank in Europe and the only Italian bank in the 2023 Refinitiv Global
Diversity and Inclusion Index, which comprises the 100 best companies for diversity and inclusion. Intesa Sanpaolo also
received a number of sustainability-related awards, including ESG Industry Top Rated and ESG Regional Top Rated in 2024
by Sustainalytics, inclusion in the Top 10% (CSA Score 2023) of the 2024 S&P Global Sustainability Yearbook, and retention
of the ranking as the number-one bank in Europe for ESG aspects in the 2023 ranking by Institutional Investor.

The Group’s commitment to sustainability is also manifested through its participation in all the main international initiatives of
the United Nations, including the Global Compact, concerning the financial sector, which form part of the achievement of the
UN Sustainable Development Goals: the Principles for Sustainable Insurance (PSI), the Principles for Responsible Investment
(PRI), and the Principles for Responsible Banking (PRB), in relation to which the Bank reports its progress in the PRB Report.
Intesa Sanpaolo supports the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) and has
published a Climate Report?*, which includes specific climate disclosures in accordance with these Recommendations. In
addition, the Bank has adopted the Stakeholder Capitalism Metrics developed by the World Economic Forum (WEF), a set of

23 Including structural costs of around 0.5 billion euro related to the approximately 1,000 people dedicated to supporting initiatives/projects.
24 Previously the TCFD Report.
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ESG indicators and disclosures that evidence the commitment to long-term value creation and the contribution to the UN
Sustainable Development Goals.

The handling of the main ESG issues is aided by the ISPAESG Programme, a wide-ranging high-impact initiative launched in
2019 with the objective of integrating ESG into the Bank’s business model and strategy, also through the management of the
activities related to the functioning of the ESG Control Room.

Several strategic and important sustainability-related projects for the Group were managed in 2023, including: i) the
continuation of the activities of the Target Setting project for the Net-Zero targets, which during 2023 focused, as required by
the Net-Zero Banking Alliance (NZBA), on the intermediate targets for 2030 for the additional sectors to those indicated in the
Business Plan and on the preparation of the documentation to be submitted for validation by the Science Based Target
initiative (SBTi); ii) the supervision of the activities related to the other Net Zero alliances subscribed to by the Group,
specifically the Net-Zero Asset Managers Initiative (NZAMI), Net-Zero Asset Owner Alliance (NZAOA) and Net-Zero
Insurance Alliance (NZIA); iii) the continuation of the EU Taxonomy Green Enhancement project, which introduced rules and
processes for classifying lending transactions in line with the regulatory requirements of the EU Taxonomy and for actively
steering the loan portfolio, also with a view to improving the Green Asset Ratio (GAR); and iv) the implementation of the ESG-
Climate Credit Framework project for the application of ESG factors in the valuation of the Group's loan portfolio for non-
financial companies.

The continuous evolution of the European regulations on ESG and sustainability reporting?5, together with the requirements
arising from the subscription to the various voluntary reporting standards?®, prompted Intesa Sanpaolo to launch a multi-year
project in 2021 focused on the Group ESG Reporting, aimed at creating an integrated and transversal approach able to
respond to the new regulatory requirements and emerging best practices. In 2023, the project focused on the development of
fully operative solutions for the preparation of the Templates required by Art. 8 of the EU Taxonomy Delegated Act and the
quantitative Templates and qualitative tables required by Pillar 3 in relation to ESG; the operational implementation of the
related indicators, including the GAR (with a view to alignment with the taxonomy); the preparation of internal rules for the
preparation of disclosures (e.g., Pillar 3, PRB Report, TCFD Report?’); and, lastly, the development of fully operative solutions
for the activities in the Managerial Reporting workstream. Ahead of the 2024 reporting in accordance with the CSRD, a high-
level gap analysis was carried out within the ESG Reporting project that took into account all the ESRS in order to perform an
initial assessment of the degree of alignment of the Group's current non-financial reporting (in particular the CNFS) with those
standards. In view of the complexity and impact on the current reporting process, at the end of 2023 a series of preparatory
activities were carried out for the new CSRD project (including the definition of the overall project governance, divided into
various workstreams), which was launched in 2024.

Support for ESG/climate transition

The 2022-2025 Business Plan contains a strong focus on climate, which includes the Group’s commitment to facilitating the
transition to a low-emission economy through concrete actions to mitigate its direct and indirect emissions, and by supporting
green initiatives and projects for its customers. Specifically, the Group has made available a programme of disbursements of
76 billion euro (2021-2026) in relation to the scope of application of Mission 2 of the National Recovery and Resilience Plan
(NRRP) dedicated to the green and circular economy and ecological transition, of which around 45 billion euro already
disbursed in the period 2021-2023. In this context, the Plan confirmed the commitment to the circular economy by promoting
the dissemination of this model and renewing the partnership with the Ellen MacArthur Foundation and Cariplo Factory, in
addition to providing 8 billion euro in credit lines?® for the circular economy. Specifically, within the plafond, in 2023 a total of
366 projects were assessed and validated for an amount of around 11.7 billion euro, around 7.2 billion euro were granted in
242 transactions (of which 4.8 billion euro related to green criteria), and 5.6 billion euro were disbursed taking into account
previously granted projects (of which 4.7 billion euro related to green criteria). Overall, since 2022, a total of 786 projects have
been assessed and validated for a value of over 20.8 billion euro and more than 12 billion euro have been granted in 472
transactions (of which 7.4 billion euro related to green criteria), with 8.7 billion euro disbursed taking into account previously
granted projects (of which 6.9 billion euro related to green criteria). In April 2023, the criteria for accessing the plafond were
updated both for the circular framework, in agreement with the Ellen MacArthur Foundation, and for the green framework, in
line with Intesa Sanpaolo’s Green, Social Sustainability Bond Framework.

In addition, the Group's commitment took the form of new green lending to individuals totalling 12 billion euro, of which around
1.7 billion euro was disbursed in 2023 for Green Mortgages to retail customers (4.3 billion euro in 2022-2023).

To support SMEs seeking to improve their sustainability profile, Intesa Sanpaolo offers the S-Loans, made up of 6 product
lines: S-Loan ESG, S-Loan Diversity, S-Loan Climate Change, S-Loan Agribusiness, S-Loan Tourism and S-Loan CER. A
total of around 1.7 billion euro was granted in 2023 (around 5.2 billion euro since the launch in 2020). The offering also
includes the Digital Loan (D-Loan) aimed at improving the digitalisation of companies (25 million euro disbursed since launch)
and the Suite Loan, launched in December 2021, aimed at upgrading hotel facilities and accommodation services (12 million
euro disbursed since launch).

However, financial resources alone are not sufficient to enable the sustainable transformation of companies. To support
customers in the ESG/Climate transition, the Bank provides its corporate customers access to Skills4ESG, an online training
platform dedicated to sustainability issues, and the New ESG Labs (13 have already been activated in Venice, Padua,
Brescia, Bergamo, Cuneo, Bari-Taranto, Rome, and Naples-Palermo, Milan, Turin and Florence), in collaboration with
specialist partners such as Circularity, Nativa, CE Lab and others. The Bank also provides an ESG advisory service to

25 Including, in particular, the Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD) and the related European Sustainability Reporting Standards of the
European Financial Reporting Advisory Group (EFRAG), EBA Guidelines on ESG Reporting, EU Taxonomy (and related disclosure requirements),
Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (SFDR), and ECB Guidance on Environmental and Climate Risk Management.

26 Sych as the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB), Principles for
Responsible Banking (PRB) and World Economic Forum (WEF).

27 Renamed Climate Report from 2023.

28 Plafond, dedicated to circular and green economy, which involves specific incentives.
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companies, aimed at steering them towards the energy transition through a flexible and scalable approach, with a particular
focus on the energy, infrastructure and industry & automotive sectors. Lastly, significant work was carried out on the
development of the ESG value proposition for the corporate, SME and retail segments in all the banks of the International
Subsidiary Banks Division?°.

Several significant initiatives and collaborations were pursued during the year. In relation to the circular economy, Intesa
Sanpaolo Innovation Center and the Ellen MacArthur Foundation with Eurizon Capital SGR produced the white paper
“Identification of leading companies in the transition to the Circular Economy”, and Intesa Sanpaolo Innovation Center and
Intesa Sanpaolo (IMI C&IB Division) signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the Ministry of Economy of the UAE
to promote the adoption of circular economy principles and to design and implement the country's circular ecosystem, also
with the aid of Cariplo Factory.

The project activities in 2023 included the completion of the implementation of the ESG/Climate evolution of the credit
framework for the large transactions portfolio of the non-financial companies, using ESG/Climate considerations in the
classification of the sectors, the ESG sectorial strategy, the proprietary ESG scoring at counterparty level and new guidelines
on sustainable products and operations. The methodology of analysis has also been defined for the transition plan for Oil &
Gas, Power Generation, and Automotive customers, envisaging the gradual extension to other priority sectors. Lastly, the EU
Taxonomy Green Enhancement project is underway, aimed at verifying the alignment of the existing portfolios (mortgages,
bonds, non-financial corporate lending) with the EU Taxonomy criteria for the contribution to the Group's Green Asset Ratio
indicator, and carrying out strategic assessments on the orientation of the loan portfolio through the development of products
and incentives.

Sustainable investment products and sustainable insurance

In its 2022-2025 Business Plan, Intesa Sanpaolo has committed to further strengthening its offering of sustainable investment
products, for both asset management and insurance, which combine financial criteria with environmental, social and
governance (ESG) aspects and contribute to the achievement of climate objectives, as also desired by the European
legislation and the EU's strategic priorities for sustainable finance. Specifically, it has set itself the target of increasing the
assets under management in funds classified according to Articles 8 and 9 of the Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation
(SFDR) to around 156 billion euro and reaching 60% of total assets under management in sustainable investment products®°.
This target has already been exceeded by Eurizon, with a penetration that has risen to around 74% of total assets under
management, in addition to a diversified range in all the asset classes of the Article 8 and Article 9 SFDR funds.

Engagement with issuers and customers is part of the efforts made by the Group Companies to contribute to the change
towards sustainability, also following the subscription to the NZAMI and NZIA, which require the establishment of robust plans
of engagement with investees, with the aim of incentivising them to implement effective decarbonisation pathways.L. In terms
of Stewardship activities, in 2023, Eurizon Capital SGR took part in 1,413 shareholders' meetings (of which 93% of issuers
listed abroad) and 592 engagements (of which 40% on ESG issues).

With a view to improving the ESG offering, the "ESG Ambassador" role was established, with the involvement of 34 Private
Bankers in the first phase, selected from around 6,000 belonging to the Fideuram and Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking
Networks on the basis of their attention to ESG issues - with the aim of promoting a culture of sustainability in the territories to
which they belong, promoting sustainable behaviour and representing a listening point for the needs of Customers and
Private Bankers.

In line with the Group’s objectives and the increasingly strategic importance of integrating ESG factors also for the insurance
sector, the Insurance Division is committed to developing a dedicated ESG offering for the non-life business and to the
continuous expansion of the ESG/Climate offering within the Group’s life insurance range. In particular, in 2023 the
enhancement continued of the unit-linked/multi-line offering that includes ESG investment options (Articles 8 and 9 SFDR)
underlying the insurance products available to customers, increasing to around 80.4% in 2023, and the IBIP32 product
catalogue was further expanded with new Article 8 products.

29 Excluding Moldova and Ukraine.
30 Eurizon perimeter - Article 8 and Article 9 SFDR 2019/2088 funds and asset management products.
31 For more information on the activities of Group companies in this area and in relation to Net-Zero targets, see the 2023 Intesa Sanpaolo Group

Climate Report.

32 |nsurance Based Investment Products.
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Support to address social needs

Intesa Sanpaolo is committed to generating a social impact over the coming years, continuing the commitment and attention
that it has always dedicated to the needs of the people and communities in which it operates. The Group’s 2022-2025
Business Plan includes specific initiatives dedicated to young people and

uuuuuuuuu

vulnerable individuals. giovani—
— e lavoro

Intesa Sanpaolo, which has always been keen to invest in young people, also
to promote employment and the right to education, supports “Giovani e
Lavoro”, the programme created through the partnership between Intesa
Sanpaolo and Generation Italy, with the objective of providing free training
courses, over the period of the 2022-2025 Business Plan, to over 3,000 young
people aged between 18 and 29 who are unemployed, in order to help them
gain the skills that companies are seeking. In 2023, the programme received
applications from over 6,300 young candidates, with over 2,000 students
interviewed and around 920 students trained/being trained through 37
courses. Over 3,900 students have been trained since 2019 and around 2,400
companies have been involved since the start of the Programme. The third
edition of the Generation4Universities programme, aimed at helping talented
final year university students in making their first step into the world of work,
which involved 94 students from 36 universities and 22 leading Italian partners
companies, ended in December.
Another related initiative is the Digital Re-start programme, implemented by
the Private Banking Division and aimed at training and reintegrating
unemployed people aged between 40 and 50 into the labour market, by
funding scholarships for the masters course in data analysis, which trains
professionals in the analysis and management of data and information in
support of decision-making processes. The first three editions of the programme, the last of which ended in the first half of
2023, involved 75 participants, 49 of whom found new jobs.

B Within the educational inclusion programmes, the partnerships
with leading Italian universities and schools have been
strengthened, with more than 1,180 schools and over 7,760
students involved in 2023 (around 2,240 schools in 2022-2023),
supporting merit and social mobility. In April, a new programme,
“Futura”, was launched promoted by Save the Children, Forum
Disuguaglianze e Diversita and Yolk, with the collaboration of
Intesa Sanpaolo, against female educational poverty, educational
failure and early school leaving. The pilot project will run for two
years in three areas with socio-economic disadvantages and
promote the growth and autonomy through personalised training
courses for 300 girls and young women, including 50 young
mothers, and around 130 education plans have already been
activated.

% 3 ) The Insurance Division launched the social impact initiative In

Action ESG NEET in 2022, dedicated to the promotion and inclusion of NEET youths and other vulnerable groups in the world
of work. The initiative, in partnership with Dynamo Academy, aims to train NEET youths in the caring professions — 8 classes
have been launched in Tuscany, Campania and Lazio with the involvement of 112 people since the start of the initiative. The
success of the initiative is monitored quarterly through the detailed survey of the employment status of graduated students.
Initial data show that 77% of NEETS have found a job and/or have resumed their studies within a few months after completing
the course.
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Intesa Sanpaolo has always been attentive to the issues of
inclusion and the fight against poverty, and one of the main
objectives of the Plan is the expansion of the food and shelter

Food and Shelter
for people in need

no. - cumulative value
since 2022

2023

programme for people in need,
which will enable the
implementation of over 50
million interventions, providing
concrete help in ltaly and
abroad. During the period 2022-
2023, over 36.8 million
interventions were carried out
(also in support of the
humanitarian  emergency in )
Ukraine), including around 30 ,
million meals, around 3.3 million 0 ]
dormitories/beds, over 3.2 million medicine prescriptions, and over 446 thousand items of
clothing.

The Plan’s initiatives dedicated to the needs of the people and communities in which the
Group operates include one of the most extensive social housing projects in Italy, which will
create social housing and accommodation for students (around 6,000-8,000 units over the
Plan period). The ongoing initiatives in terms of promoting housing units have been
enhanced, also by identifying new partnerships with leading operators in the sector, for the
achievement of the Plan targets.

Lastly, in 2023, the Bank committed to allocating a total of around 1.5 billion euro for the
five-year period 2023-2027 in support of initiatives to address social needs®:, of which
around 500 million euro for the structural costs of the around 1,000 people devoted to
supporting these initiatives/projects. A new organisational unit called "Intesa Sanpaolo for
Social Impact" was also set up in Brescia, with steering function in the Group’s social

impact activities, to strengthen the bank’s social impact strategy for the country, the territory and the communities.

Financial inclusion and supporting production

In 2023, Intesa Sanpaolo’s support to the Italian economy was again incisive, with the Bank providing 60.4 billion euro of new
medium/long-term lending to the real economy, of which 40.3 billion euro in Italy. In addition, Intesa Sanpaolo made available
over 400 billion euro in medium/long term lending to businesses and households in support of Italy’s National Recovery and
Resilience Plan (NRRP), with the aim of strengthening the country’s growth over the period 2021-2026.

The Group’s 2022-2025 Business Plan envisages major initiatives in the area of
social inclusion, which is a key factor in achieving a fair and inclusive transition.
Specifically, it has committed to providing new social lending of around 25 billion euro
in support of non-profit activities and vulnerable people who have difficulty accessing
forms of credit or have been affected by natural disasters, as well as urban
regeneration.

In 2023, a total of 5.5 billion euro®* was disbursed in social lending and urban
regeneration (around 14.8 billion euro in 2022-2023).

These included in particular the loans provided in support of non-profit organisations
totalling 252 million euro (591 million euro in 2022-2023) and 71 million euro funds
made available within the Fund for Impact, which provides direct support to
households and individuals to ensure broader and more sustainable access to credit,
with dedicated programmes such as: “per Merito”, the first line of credit without
collateral dedicated to all university students, “Mamma@work”, a subsidised loan
aimed at working mothers to help balance motherhood and work in the early years of
their children’s lives, “per Crescere”, for the training and education of school-age
children aimed at vulnerable families, “per avere Cura”, to support families taking care
of non-self-sufficient people, and other solutions (e.g. “Obiettivo Pensione” and “per
Esempio”).

Social lending: loans disbursed

€bn

14.8

5.5 2023

2022

2022-2025 2022-2023

Lastly, the Business Plan also provides for loans for urban regeneration. In 2023, Intesa Sanpaolo made commitments for 639
million euro of new investments in sustainable housing, services and infrastructure initiatives, in addition to the most important
urban regeneration initiatives underway in Italy (for a total of over 1.2 billion euro of commitments made over the 2022-2023

period).

33 Around 300 million euro is already included in the 2023 results and the remainder is included pro rata in the net income forecasts for 2024-2025.

34 Including around 750 million euro of green loans disbursed in 2023 to young people.
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Commitment to Net-Zero®® and management of climate change risk

In the 2022-2025 Business Plan, the Group has set the reduction targets for 2030 emissions aligned to Net-Zero for Oil&Gas,
Power Generation, Automotive and Coal Mining (for the latter phase out by 2025), which, at the time of publication in
February 2022, represented over 60% of the financed emissions of the portfolio of Non-Financial Corporates in the sectors
identified by the NZBA. The first reporting of the absolute emissions of the four sectors as at 31 December 2022 shows a
decrease of 62% compared to 2021. In relation to the targets described above, the Group drew up its first transition plan, in
compliance with the requirements of the NZBA and following the guidance from the Glasgow Financial Alliance for Net-Zero
(GFANZ), within the 2022 TCFD Report. The 2023 reporting on financed emissions is presented in the 2023 Climate Report®.
In 2023, the target setting for the new Iron&Steel and Commercial Real Estate sectors continued, together with the work to
produce the data and documentation to be submitted to the Science-Based Targets Initiative (SBTi) in March 2024 for
validation of the targets identified.

Intesa Sanpaolo has also committed to achieving carbon neutrality for its own emissions by 2030, including through the
purchase of 100% electricity from renewable sources.

“Think Forestry”, the reforestation and natural capital preservation project, was launched to promote environmental
sustainability (planting and preservation of 100 million trees through joint action by the Bank and corporate customers) and
the transition to a zero-emissions economy.

On the asset management and wealth management front, following the subscriptions to the Net Zero initiatives in 2022,
Eurizon Capital SGR, Fideuram Asset Management SGR, Fideuram Asset Management Ireland and the Intesa Sanpaolo Vita
Insurance Group published their first interim targets, aimed at achieving net greenhouse gas neutrality of the assets under
management by 2050. The targets will be monitored and extended in line with the requirements of the various Net-Zero
initiatives. In May 2023, the Intesa Sanpaolo Vita Insurance Group submitted its annual Net-Zero progress reporting to
NZAOA, and in September, Eurizon Capital SGR, Fideuram Asset Management SGR and Fideuram Asset Management
Ireland also completed the first annual reporting on their Net-Zero progress through the PRI platform.

During 2023, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has continued its participation in the various Net-Zero Alliances and GFANZ work
groups. In particular, Intesa Sanpaolo has joined the new GFANZ “Mainstream Transition Finance workstream” group,
continuing its participation in both the NZBA “Implementation Worktrack”, originating from the unification of the “Data &
Methodologies” and “Finance & Engagement” worktracks, and in the sectorial work groups. The Insurance Division has also
continued its participation in the various NZAOA working groups, particularly those aimed at developing new methods
concerning government securities, reporting and engagement. In addition, in 2023 Eurizon joined the Carbon Disclosure
Project's (CDP) Non-Disclosure Campaign and CDP's Science-Based Targets Campaign to promote environmental
transparency and science-based target setting by companies.

Eurizon Capital SGR and Fideuram Asset Management SGR and Fideuram Asset Management Ireland have initiated the
individual and collective engagement process by joining the Net-Zero Engagement Initiative (NZEI), Climate Action 100+ and
Nature Action 100. In addition, Intesa Sanpaolo Vita promotes bilateral engagement, in partnership with Eurizon Capital SGR,
with the 20 largest issuers in its portfolio, in line with the requirements of the NZAOA alliance.

Intesa Sanpaolo’s strategy is based on a clear awareness of the risks and opportunities associated with climate change. The
range of risks and opportunities related to climate change are identified and analysed by Intesa Sanpaolo’s Chief Financial
Officer Area and Chief Risk Officer Area, with the support and involvement of the various Governance Areas and Divisions,
where relevant, in order to integrate them into the normal risk assessment and monitoring processes (which lead to the
management of climate risk, in the form of mitigation and adaptation) and credit strategies.

For an update on the monitoring and management of the main issues related to climate risk, as well as their integration within
the Group’s Risk Appetite Framework — namely, the general framework used for the management of enterprise risk — see the
Part E of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Economic value generated and distributed

The economic value generated by the Group during the year is calculated in accordance with ABI (ltalian Banking

Association) instructions and consistent with international reference standards. The calculation is made by reclassifying

consolidated income statement items recorded in the financial statements prepared in accordance with Bank of Italy Circular

262.

The economic value generated, which rose to 25.9 billion euro in 2023, came from Net income from banking and insurance

activities — which therefore takes into account the losses for credit risk associated with loans and other financial assets — plus

the realised gains and losses on investments in associates and companies subject to joint control, investments and other
operating income. The economic value generated expresses the value of the wealth produced, most of which is distributed
among the stakeholders with which the Group interacts in various ways in its daily operations. Specifically:

— employees and other staff benefited from 32% of the economic value generated, for a total of around 8.2 billion euro. In
addition to staff pay, the total also includes payments to the networks of financial advisors, the remuneration paid to the
financial advisors of the Private Banking Division, and the portion, related to personnel expenses, of the insurance
service expenses arising from the insurance contracts issued;

—  suppliers received 12% of the economic value generated, for a total of 3 billion euro in payments for goods and services;

—  The Government, Organisations and Institutions, and Community recorded a total flow of funds of around 3.7 billion euro,
equivalent to 14% of the economic value generated, of which 1.2 billion euro referring to indirect taxes and duties, and
over 700 million euro to levies and other charges concerning the banking industry, consisting of contributions to

35 For more details on the results achieved in 2023 in relation to the targets and commitments made with the subscription to the Net-Zero initiatives, see
the Intesa Sanpaolo Group's 2023 Climate Report.
36 Previously the TCFD Report.
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resolution and guarantee funds. There were also numerous social and cultural initiatives and other actions, including
those made through charity funds and for social and cultural grants;

— over 22% of the economic value generated was allocated to Shareholders, holders of equity instruments and third
parties, for a total amount of close to 5.8 billion euro, largely attributable to dividends. Specifically, the proposed
remaining dividend is 2,779 million euro, in addition to the 2,629 million euro interim dividend paid in November 2023, for
a total of 5,048 million euro from the 2023 net income. For more details in this regard see the Proposals to the
Shareholders’ Meeting in the Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. financial statements.

The remaining amount of the economic value generated, equal to 5.3 billion euro, was retained by the enterprise and mainly
consisted of net adjustments/recoveries and provisions, deferred tax assets and liabilities, and the consolidated net income
allocated to reserves.

Economic value s @
EU ECONOMIC VALUE IN 2023
Economic value generated 25,903 100.0%
Economic value distributed -20,583  79.5% 31.5% Employees and collaborators
Employees and collaborators -8,164 31.5% ‘
Suppliers 2965 11.5% \ 22.3% Shareholders, Holders of equity
e 270 instruments and Third parties
gg;er:bnr:i?;t, Organisations and Institutions, 677 14.2% 14.2% Government, Organisations
= ' and Institutions, Community
Shareholders, Holders of equity instruments 11.5% g
and Third parties 5777 22.3% \,70 Suppliers
20.5% ECONOMIC VALUE RETAINED
Economic value retained 5320 20.5%

* k%

With regard to the aspects relating to the Group’s People, as well as innovation, digital transformation and cybersecurity, see
the paragraph “The 2022-2025 Business Plan” above.

Sustainability and ESG issues are covered in depth in the Consolidated Non-financial Statement (CNFS) drafted in
accordance with Italian Legislative Decree 254/2016, a separate report from the Annual Financial Report and available on the
Group’s website.

Since September 2019, Intesa Sanpaolo has published a voluntary Half-Yearly Consolidated Non-financial Statement
containing the key indicators.

In addition, as already illustrated above, Intesa Sanpaolo supports the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD) by publishing the Climate Report®”, which includes specific climate disclosures in accordance
with those recommendations.

Lastly, from 31 December 2022, the Pillar 3 document contains the ESG disclosure required by Article 449a CRR, which, from
December 2023, will be accompanied by the Green Asset Ratio (GAR) disclosure.

37 Previously the TCFD Report.




Report on operations - Overview of 2023

Progetto Cultura

Progetto Cultura is the multi-year programme of initiatives through which Intesa Sanpaolo actively expresses its commitment
to promoting art and culture, providing a direct and tangible contribution to Italy’s cultural and social growth. The activities are
conceived and implemented by the Art, Culture and Historical Heritage Department in dialogue with public and private,
national and international organisations and institutions. The cultural sector has been acknowledged as playing a key role in
fostering more innovative, sustainable, and inclusive societies. In this regard, Progetto Cultura — an integral part of the
Business Plan and one of the Group’s identifying features — is a key factor in consolidating Intesa Sanpaolo’s leadership in

ESG and strengthening its position as an impact bank.

Gallerie d’ltalia

Gallerie d’ltalia is Intesa Sanpaolo’s museum network with four venues, in Milan,
Naples, Turin and Vicenza, developed from the transformation of historic
buildings owned by the Bank, which now serve as public museums that offer
access to art collections and cultural and social programmes.

In 2023, the Gallerie d’ltalia received a total of around 680,000 visitors. Admission
is free up to the age of 18. Over 120 young art historians work permanently at the
Gallerie d’ltalia, under the partnership with Civita Mostre e Musei, within the
museum services.

Exhibition Projects

The Gallerie d’ltalia host selections of artworks from their own collections in
permanent and semi-permanent itineraries, which are regularly revisited (the
initiatives in 2023 included the update of the “Vitalita del tempo” museum section
in Naples, with 44 modern and contemporary artworks; the new display for the
eighteenth-century sculpture Caduta degli angeli ribelli in Vicenza; and the
addition of Arnaldo Pomodoro’s Sfera grande from the Luigi and Peppino Agrati
Collection to the museum itinerary in Milan).

At total of 11 major temporary exhibitions (in addition to 6 dossier exhibitions),
organised together with national and international partners, were opened in 2023.
The exhibitions involved over 150 lending museums (from the Uffizi to the
Palazzo Reale of Naples, and from the National Gallery in London to the National
Gallery of Art in Washington).

These exhibitions focus on in-depth
explorations of historical-artistic themes
(in Milan, Moroni 1521-1580, under the
High Patronage of the President of the
Italian Republic, in partnership with
Accademia Carrara of Bergamo and
Fondazione Brescia Musei, as part of
Bergamo Brescia Italian Capital of

Arnaldo Pomodoro, Sfera grande, 1966,

Francesco Bertos, The Fall of the Rebel Angels,
circa 1725-1735, Intesa Sanpaolo Collection,
Gallerie d'ltalia - Vicenza. Ph. Valter Maino

Culture; in Naples, Napoli al tempo di Napoleone in partnership with Belvedere in
Vienna and Mario Schifano in collaboration with the artist’s Archives; in Turin, Mimmo
Jodice as part of the “Great Italian Photography” exhibition; and in Vicenza, Le trecce
di Faustina on the theme of women and power and Ex Elena Xausa in collaboration
with Associazione lllustri), some of which are dedicated to the Intesa Sanpaolo
collections (in Milan, Una collezione inattesa with 60 modern and contemporary
artworks and Maria Callas with 90 photos from the Publifoto Archive to mark the

Luigi e Peppino Agrati Collection - Intesa Sanpaolo, singer’s centenary; and Argilla in Vicenza with a selection of ceramics from the

Gallerie d'ltalia — Milan. Ph. Paolo Vandrasch archaeological collection,
in partnership with the
University of Padua). The exhibitions at Gallerie d’ltalia-Torino
originated from commissions for photographic projects on ESG
themes and current challenges (JR Déplacé e s focusing on the
great migrations and social vulnerabilities, in partnership with
Fondazione Compagnia di San Paolo, accompanied by two public
and participatory art initiatives in Piazza San Carlo; Luca Locatelli.
The Circle dedicated to the circular economy, in partnership with
Fondazione Compagnia di San Paolo and Fondazione Cariplo,
with the scientific support of the Ellen MacArthur Foundation, one
of the world’s leading organisations dedicated to the circular
economy; and the dossier exhibition Cronache d’acqua on the
climate crisis, with a focus on ltaly, in cooperation with
Green&Blue).
Gallerie d’ltalia exhibitions were also held at other venues
(Gregory Crewdson at the Rencontres d’Arles Festival; Lisetta
Carmi at Villa Bardini in Florence, exhibition venue of the

Exhibition “LUCA LOCATELLI. THE CIRCLE. Solutions for a possible future”,
Gallerie d'ltalia — Turin. Ph. Andrea Guermani
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Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Firenze; The Circle at Artissima, Turin; Supernova23 at Miart, Milan; Massimo Vitali and I
caso Africo dall’Archivio Publifoto at the International Festival of Photography in Cortona; and Maria Callas at the Palazzo del
Rettorato in Turin).

In addition, there were the jointly produced exhibitions Lotto e Tibaldi in the Complesso Monumentale in Cuneo, with
Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Cuneo; Marco d’Oggiono in the town hall of Oggiono, with Fondazione Costruiamo il
Futuro; and Mancini e Gemito in the Museo dell’Ottocento in Pescara, with Fondazione Di Persio-Pallotta.

Workshops with schools, social inclusion activities, activities for adults and families, and cultural events

Numerous activities are offered to the public revolving around the Gallerie d’ltalia collections and exhibitions. This approach is
in line with the ICOM's®® definition of a museum, which emphasises the fundamental role of museums in fostering
accessibility, inclusiveness, diversity, sustainability, and
community participation.

A key part of this approach is the relationship with the educational
system, through the delivery of learning activities aimed at
students from local schools of all levels (around 3,670 educational
workshops were held to 2023, with over 83,000 children and
young people taking part). There is also a strong focus on
accessibility and social inclusion, through activities for people with
special needs, people with disabilities, and individuals from
vulnerable backgrounds, designed in collaboration with local
organisations and associations (around 520 activities were
provided during the year, with around 6,620 people taking part).
These educational and inclusion activities are provided free of
charge.

The social purpose initiatives included the collaboration between
the Naples Police Headquarters and Gallerie d’ltalia-Napoli to
mark the International Day for the Elimination of Violence against Gallerie d'ltalia - Turin, the large staircase. Ph. Andrea Guermani

Women, which involved students from two schools in Caivano and

Scampia in activities designed to stimulate reflection on the gender gap.

The Gallerie offered around 1,080 activities for adults and families and hosted around 370 cultural initiatives and events such
as concerts, lectures, study days, meetings, presentations and press conferences, attended by around 49,850 people.

One of the highly appreciated initiatives was the public programme #INSIDE, featuring free meetings open to the public and
linked to the themes of the exhibitions (37 meetings in 2023, with over 3,000 participants), and in particular the meetings in
Turin focused on examining and raising awareness on social and environmental issues. Lastly, innovative formats were used
to promote creativity in music (such as “Open Machine Featuring Gallerie d’ltalia”, a musical improvisation performance, and
the “L’arte del cambiamento@Gallerie d’ltalia” project with the young singer-songwriter Giovanni Caccamo), in a kind of
“Gallerie d’ltalia Music”. The Gallerie d’ltalia venues also host events and initiatives in support of the Bank’s other structures.

Art & People Project

The Art, Culture and Historical Heritage Department collaborates with the Bank’s other structures in developing initiatives
aimed at the Group’s people (but also open to the external public) that promote opportunities for growth and engagement
offered by the Gallerie d’ltalia permanent and temporary collections. By harnessing the power of artistic expressions to
transcend stereotypes and barriers, these initiatives blend art and inclusion to promote a culture that recognises differences
both within the Bank and in the wider community.

The projects realised in 2023 included “Insuperabili nell'Arte” in collaboration with the Disability Management cross-functional
group (Visite daltri sensi, “sensory” tours of the collections, designed with the support of colleagues with visual impairments);
“Arte e inclusione” in collaboration with Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Department and the ISProud Community (initiatives to
reflect on diversity, equity and inclusion, particularly in the workplace: talks inspired by the themes of the exhibitions; the
monthly StArt Inclusion format on the Group’s WebTV; the tours of the Rainbow Identities collections; the Identity Expression
panel discussion; and the participation in the inter-company event 4Week4Inclusion with the docu-factual L’arte che include:
I'esperienza di Intesa Sanpaolo); and “Arte e Coaching” in collaboration with the Development and Learning Policies
Department (Carts4lca, creation of a toolkit consisting of 180 cards with images of artworks and photos from the Group’s
collections, in support of the Internal Coaching Academy).

Gallerie d’ltalia Kitchens

With the aim of connecting the arts and supporting talent, the Gallerie d’ltalia promote a new generation of great chefs by
giving them spaces within the museums dedicated to dining and social interaction. In 2023, the “Anthill” cocktail bar and
“Toledo177” fine dining restaurant were opened in Naples under the guidance of Giuseppe lannotti, along with the “Scatto”
fine dining restaurant in Turin, managed by Christian Costardi, with these establishments already receiving prestigious
accolades within a few months of their opening.

In addition, “Time” magazine, the most widely read American weekly in the world, included Naples in its list “World’s greatest
places 2023” as a must-see destination of the year, citing the visit to the Gallerie d’ltalia.

Lastly, Progetto Cultura includes the coordination of the activities of two museum venues located in Tuscany: the Palazzo
degli Alberti Gallery housed in the historical building owned by the Bank in Prato and the Casa Museo dell’Antiquariato Ivan
Bruschi in Arezzo.

38 |nternational Council of Museums.
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Art Assets

Intesa Sanpaolo’s art collections contain around 35,000 artworks,
ranging from the archaeological to contemporary. In terms of size,
completeness and quality, it is considered one of the most
important corporate collections in the world. These assets are
continually subject to verification of their location, state of
preservation and classification (Diogene Project), study,
restoration work, initiatives to promote and share artworks with the
public, fair value monitoring, and art advisory activities.

The main activities carried out during the year are described
below.

The restoration of 132 assets, in particular the artworks

included in the Gallerie d’ltalia temporary exhibitions.

The protection and preservation of works involves a range of

logistical activities (from outfitting of the branches to

reorganisation of storerooms), with over 200 interventions
carried out a_nd around 2’500 a.l’tWOIka mo,"ed in 2023. Caravaggio, Martyrdom of Saint Ursula, Intesa Sanpaolo Collection,

The promotion of the collections is mainly ensured by the Gallerie d'ltalia — Naples, visitor route From Caravaggio to Gemito. Ph. DSL STUDIO

permanent and temporary exhibitions of Gallerie d'ltalia

(see Exhibition Projects), but also through the artwork loans for exhibitions at Italian and international venues, loans for

use to museums and institutions in the country that ensure their enjoyment by the public, and locally based initiative s

focused on collections that have a strong identity value for the communities where the Bank operates.

o In 2023, a total of 363 artworks were lent in 73 temporary exhibitions (in venues such as the Museo del Novecento,
Pinacoteca di Brera and Triennale Milano, Museo Nazionale Romano, Gallerie degli Uffizi in Florence, Ca’ Pesaro
and Guggenheim in Venice, Galleria Nazionale in Cosenza, Musées des Impressionnismes in Giverny, Collezione
Olgiati in Lugano, and WAmM-Wits Art Museum in Johannesburg).

o During the year, 52 artworks were granted on loan for use in response to requests from the various communities
(to the Municipality of Brescia, the Municipality of Breno, Fondazione Banca Popolare di Bergamo, Fondazione della
Comunitd Bergamasca, Fondazione Banca Popolare di Vigevano, Fondazione Ivan Bruschi of Arezzo, and
Fondazione Giovanni Spadolini Nuova Antologia of Florence).

o The Bank’s collections are a valuable tool for strengthening the connection with local communities: initiatives in
collaboration with the Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Pistoia e Pescia in the Fondazione Pistoia Musei museum
venues (the “Museo Aperto” exhibition in the Antico Palazzo dei Vescovi with 13 artworks from the former Cassa di
Risparmio di Pistoia e Lucchesia on loan for use and the loan of two artworks for the “In visita” itinerary at Palazzo
de’ Rossi); the new permanent itinerary “Da Pontormo a Fattori” in the Casa Museo Bruschi in Arezzo with 11
Tuscan-based paintings from the former UBI collections on loan for use; and initiatives as part of Bergamo Brescia
Capital of Culture (from the signing of new loan for use agreements to artwork loans for exhibitions in the area such
as Boetti's Mappa at Brescia Castle and two 16th-century paintings by Antonio Cifrondi at the MAT-Museo Arte
Tempo in Clusone, Bergamo).

“Linee di Energia”, a series of conferences in collaboration with Fondazione Centro Conservazione e Restauro La
Venaria Reale and IGIIC-ltalian Group - International Institute for Conservation, dedicated to the restoration of
contemporary artworks: the 7" edition took place during Artissima focusing on the restoration of photographic works, with
three live streaming events and an in-person panel discussion at Gallerie d’ltalia-Torino.
Fair value and Art advisory: the three-year update of the fair value of the Group’s “valuable art assets” (around 15,000
artworks, over 300 million euro) was carried out in 2023. A number of actions were completed in preparation for this
activity: on-site visits to view the artworks directly, and study and research to consolidate the documentation supporting
the provenance and authenticity of the assets, in addition to continuously updating the attributions and dating of the
artworks and their bibliographic and exhibition records. Work continued on the management of acquisitions and
donations of artworks to Intesa Sanpaolo (34 artworks acquired or donated and 50 new proposals reviewed). Support
was given to Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking and Banca dei Territori with advisory opinions on their customers’ artworks
and collections.

Artistic assets under management: the precious Luigi and Peppino Agrati Collection (505 artworks of 20th century Italian

and international art) was given on loan for use to Intesa Sanpaolo by Fondazione Banca e Cultura ETS (established in

2004 by Intesa Sanpaolo to manage and promote the collection, and directly administered by the Bank) — during the year

the artworks were the subject of targeted restoration and enhancement initiatives (including the presentation of significant

selections of works in Gallerie d’ltalia exhibitions: 11 artworks in “Vitalita del tempo” and 15 in Mario Schifano in Naples,
and 40 in Una collezione inattesa in Milan). A service agreement was signed for the protection and full management of
the collections of Fondazione Cariplo and Cariplo Iniziative (1,100 artworks), and this year the 13 bas-reliefs by Antonio

Canova in the Cariplo collection and exhibited at the Gallerie d’ltalia in Milan were the focus of a major conservation

project.
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Historical archive

Intesa Sanpaolo’s Historical Archive is one of the first and most
important bank archives in Europe. It holds 20 kilometres of
documents from 1380 to the early 2000s and manages the
Publifoto Archive of 7 million photographs kept at the Gallerie
d’ltalia-Torino. In 2023, the ongoing activities of preservation,
restoration, digitisation, cataloguing and opening up of the
archives to the public continued, also through the use of the latest
available technologies.

“Historical Map” project: completion of the genealogy of the
UBI business line, with the record cards of 301 former UBI
banks (in total, the Intesa Sanpaolo genealogy now covers
629 banks).

Incorporation of the former UBI Archives: emptying of
archives, restoration (293 assets), acquisitions (1,239 boxes,
200 metres, 61 registers, and 50 boxes of publications),
discarding (335 metres), inventorying (4,702 new record
cards), digitisation of Board minutes (89,000 pages), and
historical library (793 new record cards of volumes).

Group Archives: acquisitions (3 folders, 1 register, 30 boxes, and 108,000 record files; 5,500 photos and 688 items from
the iconographic section; and 11,688 audiovisuals), mass discarding (20,119 metres); restoration (1,478 items and 66
metres of papers), digitisation (21,347 documents and photos; and transfer, conversion and metadata recording of 6,004
WebTV videos), cataloguing (over 900 record cards for photos and pieces in the iconographic section; and 1,478 record
cards in the historical library); inventorying (projects such as Carte dei Vertici and Archivi che imprese!, over 15,000
record cards); Digital Curation (61,822 documents saved in the PAD-Digital Archives Project); Digital Library (over 500
files uploaded); consultations in the Study Rooms in Milan and Rome (308 study requests and 30 theses); and 52,162
users in the Archive’s consultation sites (+15% compared to 2022).

“Carte dell'arte” Project: recovery and inventorying of purchase documentation concerning the 200 valuable artworks in
the Bank’s art collections (work on 68 folders, 129 files and 90 Board minutes).

Promotion: papers displayed at the exhibition Attorno al Monumento di Giuseppe Tovini at the Museo Camuno in Breno
as part of Bergamo Brescia Italian Capital of Culture and presented at the conference “Cattolicesimo e societa italiana fra
XIX e XX secolo”; publications (including the volume Difendere le storie. La memoria della persecuzione antisemita
nell’Archivio Storico di Intesa Sanpaolo on the occasion of Remembrance Day); teaching projects (lectures/workshops
with the University of Milan and a training course for photographic cataloguers); participation in the Archivissima Festival
in Turin and the Literature Festival in Mantua; participation in conferences on digital archives (in Venice, Rome and
Madrid) and in initiatives for the 200th anniversary of the Fondazione Cariplo and the 50th anniversary of the death of
Raffaele Mattioli; collaborations (the “Repertorio delle banche italiane dal 1861 ad oggi” project with the Italian Banking
Association; the three-year project for the promotion of the EGELI archives with Fondazione 1563; and the “A scuola
d’impresa: I'ltalia nei nostri musei e archivi d’impresa” project with Museimpresa).

Publifoto Archive: restoration (17,467 photos), digitisation (18,841 photos in 2023; around 52,000 to date), cataloguing
(734 record cards), publication in LOD format (8,527 negatives), and 88 consultation requests. The promotional initiatives
included the exhibitions at the Gallerie d’'ltalia (Callas, also presented at the Palazzo del Rettorato in Turin), at the
Cortona Festival (Il caso Africo), and a selection of 43 photos at the Museo Nazionale dellAutomobile in Turin (Una
storia al futuro exhibition). The Archive was the protagonist of guided tours and educational activities at the Gallerie
d’ltalia - Torino and a course on Cataloguing, Archiving and Promotion of photographic assets for the CFP Bauer training
school in Milan. The Prints Project was started aimed at identifying and promoting the photographers in the Publifoto
Archive with original vintage prints (25,540 prints catalogued and over 250 photographers’ names identified).

Gallerie d'ltalia — Turin, Archivio Vivo. Ph. Andrea Guermani

Restituzioni

Intesa Sanpaolo contributes to safeguarding and promoting the country’s artistic
and architectural heritage through Restituzioni, considered the most important
restoration programme in the world and conducted by the Bank since 1989 in
collaboration with the Ministry of Culture.

Preparations for the 20th edition (which will end in 2025 with an exhibition in Rome)
continued in 2023: 400 restoration proposals received; 115 assets selected from all
the Italian regions; and the involvement of 50 Conservation Bodies, 61 Owner
Entities, 57 restoration laboratories, and around a hundred art historians. The start
of the restoration of Ludovico David’s 17th-century frescoes in the “Giacomo Acqua”
Barracks in Rome, in collaboration with the Superintendency of Rome, was officially
presented.

In the area of “Monumental” Restituzioni, on the occasion of Bergamo Brescia
Capital of Culture, the restoration of Romanino’s 16th century frescoes in Brescia’s
Duomo Vecchio was carried out, in cooperation with the Superintendency for the
Provinces of Bergamo and Brescia. The completion was also officially presented of
the restoration of Jacopo Sansovino’s 16th century monument Madonna del Parto in

the Basilica of Sant'/Agostino in Campo Marzio in Rome, in cooperation with the Glrolamo Romani, knowniss Romenino, Muskjans end.

audience (detail of the fresco), 1537-1538, Brescia,

Superintendency of Rome, the first of the “Monumental” Restituzioni in the capital. Duomo Vecchio. Restored as part of Restituzioni

Monumentali 2023
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National and international partnerships

Over the years, Progetto Cultura has built a network of
partnerships with public and private, national and international
institutions and museums for support to their activities and the joint
production of initiatives (exhibitions, festivals and other initiatives
related to art, photography, music, archives, books and reading,
restoration and social projects). The participation in numerous
initiatives throughout Italy reflects the central importance of the
connections with local areas and the active contribution to the

social and cultural growth of communities.
The collaborations carried out in 2023 included:

the main partnership in Bergamo Brescia lItalian Capital of
Culture 2023, also through the organisation of the Bank’s own
initiatives (in particular, the major exhibition at the Gallerie
d’ltalia-Milano dedicated to the rediscovery of Giambattista
Moroni, a 16th-century painter from Bergamo, accompanied
by a video project produced in collaboration with SkyArte on
the artist’s life and places of work) — the two cities welcomed
11.6 million visitors during the year;

the support, in partnership with the Ministry of Culture-
Museums General Directorate, for the production of the
prestigious volume published by Treccani for the exhibition at ~ Exbition MOROHI(1521-1580). & portrai of his ime”.

Palazzo del Quirinale in Rome dedicated to the bronzes of o

San Casciano;

ongoing relations with the bank foundations, including Fondazione Compagnia di San Paolo, Fondazione Cariplo,
Fondazione Cariparo, Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Firenze, Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Cuneo, Fondazione
Cassa dei Risparmi di Forli, and Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Pistoia e Pescia. The collaborations involved artistic
and cultural projects (for example, the showcasing of the “La Grande Fotografia Italiana” exhibition series from Gallerie
d’ltalia -Torino at Fondazione CR Firenze’s exhibition venue in Villa Bardini, Florence) and social welfare initiatives (such
as the “Salute al Centro” project, in partnership with Fondazione CR Cuneo, involving infrastructural improvements for
three Cuneo hospitals);

the main partnership in major modern and contemporary art fairs in the country, also involving the production of the
Bank’s own exhibition initiatives (see Exhibition Projects), namely the 27 edition of “Miart” in Milan and the 30™ edition of
“Artissima” in Turin;

partnerships with major Italian museums, such as Castello di Rivoli Museo d’Arte Contemporanea, Fondazione Museo
delle Antichita Egizie in Turin, Museo Nazionale del Risorgimento Italiano in Turin, Pinacoteca di Brera and Museo Poldi
Pezzoli in Milan, Fondazione Palazzo Strozzi in Florence, MANN-Museo Archeologico Nazionale in Naples, and
Fondazione Brescia Musei, Fondazione Accademia Carrara in Bergamo;

support for the Christmas exhibitions of the City of Milan and the City of Vicenza: the 15" traditional exhibition at Palazzo
Marino in Milan (dedicated to Perugino on the 5th centenary of the artist's death) and the exhibition in the Basilica
Palladiana in Vicenza,

the promotion of books and reading, with support to the 35" edition of the Turin International Book Fair as main partner
(as well as the associated initiatives: 3™ edition of “Un Libro Tante Scuole” and 16" edition of “Portici di carta”); Circolo
dei Lettori a Casa Manzoni in Milan; the 4™ edition of “NapoliCittaLibro”; the 11" edition of “La Grande Invasione” in
Ivrea; and the 1% edition of “Una Basilica di Libri” in Vicenza;

promotion of photography, with support for CAMERA-Centro Italiano per la Fotografia in Turin of which the Bank is a
founding partner; the 1 edition of the “Fondazione Paul Thorel” prize in Naples dedicated to young photographers; the
“Exposed-Torino Foto Festival” (15t edition in 2024);

the main partnership in the 6" edition of “Archivissima-Il Festival’ and “La Notte degli Archivi” in Turin and in the 2™
edition of “To listen To - Festival dell’ascolto sperimentale” in Turin;

support to 8 projects through donations in the form of Art Bonuses (including the renovation of the inner courtyard of the
Egyptian Museum in Turin, the transformation of the Palazzetto dello Sport in Bergamo into the new home of the GAMeC
museum, and the promotional and enhancement activities for the Museo e Real Bosco di Capodimonte in Naples);

in the area of cultural diplomacy, the exhibition at the Louvre Naples a Paris includes two masterpieces by Lotto and
Titian from the Museo di Capodimonte whose period frames were purchased and restored by the Bank.

Training and projects for young people in the arts and culture professions

Progetto Cultura dedicates initiatives to young people in the form of expressive and educational opportunities in professions
related to art and culture, also in view of the significant economic and employment contribution of this sector, particularly in
Italy.

Gallerie d’ltalia Academy: Advanced Training Courses for young cultural heritage managers, based on the sharing of
Progetto Cultura’s experience gained in the management of cultural assets and activities. Two courses were held in
2023: the 3" edition of the Course in “Management of Artistic and Cultural Heritage and Corporate Collections” was held
with Fondazione Compagnia di San Paolo, Fondazione Cariplo, the Ministry of Culture-Fondazione Scuola dei beni e
delle attivita culturali, Fondazione 1563; and Digit'ed, which involved over 150 applications, 30 students, 8 scholarships,
around 53 lecturers, and 162 hours of lessons at the Gallerie d’ltalia, and the summer course “Naples-Florence. The Art
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of Making Exhibitions”, with Fondazione Palazzo Strozzi, which involved 90 applications, 24 students, and 36 hours of
lectures at Gallerie d’ltalia - Naples and Palazzo Strozzi.

The 4" edition was also launched of the Course in “Management of Artistic and Cultural Heritage and Corporate
Collections” (100 applications received), along with the “ALUMNI di Gallerie d’ltalia Academy” project, aimed at creating
a community of former students.

— Officina delle Idee projects: the multi-year support for the Euploos Project continues in collaboration with Gallerie degli
Uffizi, involving the creation of a digital catalogue of the 70,000 drawings preserved by the Gabinetto dei Disegni e delle
Stampe degli Uffizi, by a multidisciplinary work group made up of young art historians, photographers and computer
scientists (1,903 scientific record cards and 3,250 images produced in 2023); and the educational activities continued
with the Fondazione Centro Conservazione e Restauro “La Venaria Reale” and the students of the Laboratory for the
Restoration of Paper and Photography in the Degree Course in Conservation and Restoration of Cultural Assets at the
University of Turin (projects on paper artworks from the Intesa Sanpaolo collections and on photographs and historical
machinery from the Historical Archive).

—  Gallerie d’ltalia-Torino projects with Turin academic institutions in the fields of design, graphics and visual and narrative
communications: with 1AAD - Istituto d’Arte Applicata e Design of Turin, implementation of the class thesis project with
students of the International Master's Degree Course in Digital Marketing & Communication Management; with 1ED-
Istituto Europeo di Design of Turin, completion of the second stage of the three-year thesis project “Bureau Metamorfosi”
entitled “Il margine fa la pagina” with students of the Photography Course (the artworks were exhibited in a digital version
in the museum’s Immersive Room and in an analogue version in an exhibition throughout the city); and with Scuola
Holden of Turin, implementation of a textual and visual storytelling project with the students of the Story Design College.

Digital promotion

Progetto Cultura continues its commitment to producing original content on the web and social media channels of Gallerie
d’ltalia and the Group, which accompany and enhance the “physical’ experience, engaging increasingly broad and diverse
audiences. They cover Gallerie d’ltalia’s initiatives (exhibitions, events, inclusion activities), the Bank’s art and archive assets,
and partnership projects, with interesting results in terms of views and interactions®.

Alongside the initiatives on the Gallerie d’ltalia and Group platforms, the work involved the dissemination of content on the
company intranet to promote staff engagement*.

A digital guide, the Gallerie d’ltalia App, has been developed — for the Gallerie di Torino from 2022 and for the Milan venue
from 5 December 2023 — offering an “enhanced” visitor experience providing exclusive information and content. Designed to
interact with the museum spaces and installations, it can also be enjoyed outside the museums (to date, the App has been
downloaded 17,622 times, with 17,788 images downloaded from Archivio Vivo in the Turin venue).

Publishing and musical initiatives

With regard to Edizioni Gallerie d’ltalia-Skira, 12 titles were published (including exhibition catalogues, books on restorations,
the Historical Archive, and music with the 20th edition of Vox Imago).

The dissemination of musical educational experiences aimed at teachers and students continues, alongside support for
musical events (such as Festival Milano Musica, Palazzo Marino in Musica, Societa del Quartetto di Milano, and Stresa
Festival) and projects dedicated to young people (Esperienza Orchestra with the Philharmonic Orchestra of Teatro Regio in
Turin), with a special focus on youths with vulnerabilities (programmes with Associazione Scarlatti of Naples). Classical,
operatic, contemporary, and pop music events were staged at the Gallerie d’ltalia, also linked to the collections and themes of
the exhibitions hosted.

Research projects aimed at measuring the impact of Progetto Cultura

A preliminary study has been initiated on the measurement of the impact that Progetto Cultura and Gallerie d'ltalia generate in
the cultural, social and economic spheres, through research projects conducted in collaboration with the Milan Polytechnic
and the University of Turin, aimed at assessing the capacity of the Bank’s cultural interventions to create value for society at
large.

39 This includes, for example, the data (provided by the Communications and Corporate Image Department) generated by the digital, organic social and
ADV content on the Gallerie d’ltalia and Intesa Sanpaolo channels dedicated to the exhibitions inaugurated and concluded in 2023: JR Déplacé e s in
Turin: 58 million impressions, 1.1 million interactions, 770 thousand clicks, and 83.7 thousand page views; Una collezione inattesa in Milan: 23.4 million
impressions, 871 thousand clicks, and 25 thousand page views; Mario Schifano in Naples: 22.7 million impressions, 49.5 thousand clicks, 1.5 million
interactions, and 19.2 thousand page views; and Elena Xausa in Vicenza: 9 million impressions, 20.8 thousand clicks, 9.5 thousand page views. The
#Inside public programme meetings also attracted considerable interest: 20.4 million impressions and 16.5 thousand clicks.

40 154 news items, 13 articles on Mosaic, and 14 clips/podcasts.
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Main risks and uncertainties

The main information on risks and uncertainties to which the Intesa Sanpaolo Group is exposed are described in the Report
on operations and in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In the introduction to this chapter, as usual, a summary description is provided of the macroeconomic situation and the main
associated risks, described in more detail in the specific chapter of the Report, to be read in conjunction with the forward-
looking guidance contained in the chapter on the business outlook.

This chapter also includes an update of the disclosure on the control of the main risk aspects for the Intesa Sanpaolo Group
related to the military conflict between Russia and Ukraine. Further information in this regard is provided in the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements, in Part E - Information on risks and relative hedging policies, in the section on credit risk,
where the valuation aspects of the exposures to Russia and Ukraine are discussed.

The information on risks at a general level, and in particular on financial risks (credit risks and market risks), operational risks
and the risks of insurance companies is as usual contained in Part E of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.
With regard to the recommendations contained in recent ESMA public statement (“European common enforcement priorities
for 2023 annual financial reports” of 25 October 2023), Part A of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements sets out
the characteristics and risk aspects related to the financial instruments in the context of the Group’s green financing activities,
while Part E describes the main issues related to Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) risks and climate risk. The
more strictly strategic aspects, as well as the updates on project activities and the main ESG targets achieved, are discussed
in the paragraph “Sustainability and Group strategy on Environmental, Social and Governance issues” in this chapter.

Lastly, with regard to the capital position, the Report on operations includes, as usual, the disclosure on own funds and
prudential ratios, which should be read in conjunction with Part F of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements and the
further details provided in the update of the Basel 3 Pillar 3 disclosure.

With regard to the going concern assumption, the Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo re-affirm that they have a reasonable certainty
that the Company and the Group will continue in operational existence in the foreseeable future and consequently the 2023
Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors have not detected any uncertainties in the
consolidated balance sheet and financial structure or in the operating performance of the Group that question the going
concern assumption.
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The macroeconomic context

The economy and the financial and foreign exchange markets

In 2023, world GDP growth is estimated to have slowed down to around 3%. The volume of world trade even contracted,
when measured at constant dollar prices. The slowdown in global economic activity was the result of very different
geographical trends. The growth of the Chinese economy returned to above 5%, despite the crisis in the real estate sector. In
the US, economic activity continued to grow strongly, reacting better than expected to the sharp rise in interest rates. GDP
growth was well above expectations, resulting in robust employment gains and a stable unemployment rate, despite a
moderate and gradual slowdown in demand. The reduction in inflation, in the US and in many other advanced economies, is
currently happening without leading to an economic recession. However, following the resurgence of armed conflicts in the
Middle East region, risks of new exogenous shocks on energy prices and transport costs emerged towards the end of 2023.
The Eurozone experienced a more pronounced slowdown in economic growth than in North America and Asia. High inflation
adversely affected household demand for goods and services. The European Central Bank’s rate hikes fed through to the real
economy, dampening the components of domestic final demand most sensitive to financial conditions, such as fixed
investments. Lastly, fiscal policy became less supportive and the weakness of foreign demand curtailed the contribution from
exports. As a result, GDP growth in the Eurozone was practically stagnant throughout 2023. Despite this, employment
continued to rise and the average annual unemployment rate of 6.5% was lower than in 2022. Inflation fell rapidly, settling at
an annual average of 5.4%, and the change in December compared to a year earlier was 2.7%. The shift in the price
dynamics primarily reflects the previous decline in energy prices, but is also being driven by undeniable improvements in the
prices of non-energy goods and services.

In ltaly, based on the preliminary growth estimate, GDP increased by 0.7% in 2023. The quarterly trend alternated between
negative and positive changes, with an average of almost zero since the fourth quarter of 2022. The economic stagnation
reflected the zero contribution of net exports and the negative trend in the inventory cycle, amid weaker final domestic
demand compared to 2022. Expenditure flows related to the NRRP projects were lower than planned, failing to boost
domestic demand as hoped. Fiscal policy is becoming less expansionary due to the phasing out of support measures in
response to the energy crisis and the scaling back of incentives for building renovations. However, limiting the deficit to 5.6%
of GDP has proved insufficient to ensure a significant decrease in debt, which is stabilising at above 140% of GDP. Despite
the economic stagnation, employment rose sharply until the second quarter, following which the pace slowed down, but still
remained in positive territory. This resulted in a slow but steady decline in the unemployment rate, which by December had
reached 7.2%, the lowest level since 2009. From a sector perspective, value added fell in manufacturing, rose marginally in
construction, and grew in the service sector.

Between February and September 2023, the ECB raised official rates from 2.0% to 4.0% (deposit rate) and signalled in
December that it would keep them at this level for some time. Alongside the increase in official rates, the ECB started to
reduce its monetary policy portfolios, cutting back the reinvestments of maturities in the APP portfolio from March 2023 and
then halting them altogether from July. The ECB also continued the accelerated repayment of TLTRO Il loans. As a result of
these measures, the level of excess reserves of the banking system in the Eurozone fell for the first time since 2019.

The transmission of the official rate hikes to market interest rates was gradually dampened by the build-up of expectations of
a reversal in the monetary policy cycle, which held back the short maturities of the curve more than the long ones. In
particular, medium- and long-term interest rates fell significantly in November and December. The spread between ten-year
and two-year rates remained significantly negative throughout the year. The Btp-Bund spread fell over the year down to 155-
160 basis points, seemingly unaffected by the greater need for absorption of the net offering and the rise in official intere st
rates. The offering of government bonds was mainly covered by an exceptional increase in net demand from lItalian
households, with a modest positive contribution from foreign investors.

In the US, the Federal Reserve raised the fed funds target four more times in 2023, but with smaller moves than in the
previous year. At the end of the year, the target range was 5.25-5.50%, 100 basis points above the level a year earlier. The
US Central Bank also continued to reduce the monetary policy portfolios by not reinvesting maturities. In response to the
crisis of several banks, the Fed introduced the Bank Term Funding Program in March, which allows banks to refinance
themselves for maturities of up to one year, subject to providing collateral.

On the foreign exchange markets, the euro strengthened sharply against the Japanese yen and fell significantly against the
Swiss franc, while the exchange rate against the dollar fluctuated without any clear direction.

In 2023, the international equity markets were bullish overall, but with considerable swings over the period. In the opening
months of the year, markets experienced substantial gains, fuelled by the reopenings in China and expectations of an
expansionary shift in central bank monetary policies, as the risks of a possible recession diminished.

In March, the crises of a few regional banks in the US and a major Swiss bank led to a broad correction in share prices.
Prompt action by governments and monetary authorities stemmed the effects of the crises, and the stock indices gradually
regained their previous levels, also supported by favourable quarterly results in the Eurozone.

In the second half of the year, equity markets initially experienced a decline in share prices, triggered by further increases in
interest rates and renewed concerns about the global economic outlook. Subsequently, the stock indices reached new highs
in the final months of the year, thanks to a faster-than-expected decline in inflation and a generally reassuring third-quarter
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earnings season. However, in the coming year risk premiums may still be affected by geopolitical uncertainties stemming from
the current conflicts.

The Euro Stoxx index ended 2023 up 15.7%. The CAC 40 posted positive performance (+16.5%), while the DAX
outperformed (+20.3%), as did the IBEX 35 (+22.8%). Outside the euro area, the Swiss SMI market index underperformed,
closing the period at +3.8%, on par with the FTSE 100 index in the UK (+3.8%).

The US equity market recorded robust gains: the S&P 500 index closed 2023 at +24.6%, while the Nasdag Composite
technology stocks index significantly outperformed (+43.4%). The results of the main stock markets in Asia diverged: the
NIKKEI 225 index closed the year at +28.2%, while China’s Shanghai Composite underperformed, with a fall of 3.8%.

The ltalian stock market outperformed the euro area benchmarks: the FTSE MIB index closed the year up 28.0% and the
FTSE lItalia All Share index recorded a gain of 26.3%. Mid-cap stocks largely underperformed, achieving only a slightly
positive result (+3.3%).

The European corporate bond markets ended 2023 in positive territory, with High Yield (HY) securities showing the strongest
gains, while Investment Grade (IG) securities saw a smaller narrowing of spreads (measured as Asset Swap Spreads - ASW).
The year was characterised by high volatility, with central bank monetary policy proving to be one of the main market drivers.
Following a positive start to the year, in March the markets went through a period of high risk aversion, triggered by proble ms
at several local banks in the United States and the crisis at Credit Suisse in Europe. The following months were characterised
by a gradual recovery. In the second half of the year, uncertainty regarding the economic scenario and the outbreak of the
crisis in Palestine led to a downturn, with a rise in volatility and spreads. The readjustment of expectations regarding the
timing of the shift in central bank monetary policies then led to a substantial recovery in bond prices in the final months of the
year.

In terms of performance, the spreads of IG securities closed 2023 at 91 basis points compared to 101 at the start of the year
(source: IHS Markit iBoxx), with better results for the financial issuers. HY securities performed better, with spreads closing at
334 basis points compared to 423 at the start of the year. The derivatives segment (iTraxx indices) also saw a general
decrease in the cost of hedging against default risk, ending 2023 at the lowest levels of the year and outperforming the cash
segment at investment grade level.

The primary market remained robust, +12% from 2022 (source: Bloomberg). ESG issuances were essentially stable (-3%).
The breakdown by type of sustainable bond shows stable green bond issuances (169 billion euro, around 73% of the total
issued), while KPI-based (sustainability-linked bonds) issuances declined by around 30%, to 27 billion euro.

The economies and markets of the countries where the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has a presence

In the main countries where ISP has a presence, in the first nine months of 2023, GDP in Central and Eastern Europe (CEE)
fell by 0.2% year-on-year (from +1.5% in the fourth quarter of 2022) in the wake of the decline in Hungary (-1.2%), the Czech
Republic (-0.5%) and Poland (-0.1%). In contrast, South-Eastern Europe (SEE) recorded economic growth of 2.2% year-on-
year (from +4.2% for the fourth quarter of 2022) thanks to the good performance of Croatia (+2.3%), Romania (+2.2%) and
Serbia (+2.1%). During the same period, in Eastern Europe (EE), GDP rose in Russia in the second and third quarters (+4.9%
and +5.5%), remained negative in the first two quarters in Moldova (-2.4% and -2.2%), and, after the fall in the first quarter,
rose sharply in the second quarter in Ukraine (-10.5% and +19.5% respectively). Lastly, Egypt grew by 2.9% year-on-year in
the second quarter, at a more moderate pace than in the first quarter (+3.9% yly).

In line with the global scenario, there was a slowdown in inflation in the year. In December, the year-on-year change in the
harmonised index of consumer prices was 6.1% in the CEE area and 6.9% in the SEE area, with the individual country rates
ranging from 3.8% in Slovenia to 7.7% in Serbia. In Eastern Europe, due to the significant weight of the figure for Russia,
inflation in December had risen by 7.2% year-on-year. In Egypt, the inflation rate rose for the first ten months, but started to
decline in November, settling at 33.7% at the end of the year.

Among the CEE countries where the ISP Group has a presence, the reversal of the policy rate cycle, which began in
September in Poland and October in Hungary, also began in December in the Czech Republic. In contrast, among the SEE
countries the monetary policy actions of the central banks of Romania and Serbia have paused, while in Albania monetary
tightening continued in December with the policy rate hike to 3.25%. In Russia, the key interest rate was raised by 8.5
percentage points in the second half of the year to 16% due to persistent inflationary pressures. In contrast, in Ukraine the
policy rate was cut by 10 percentage points from June (from 25% to 15%). In Moldova, the central bank has made five cuts
since the beginning of 2023, bringing the rate down from 20% to 4.75%. Lastly, in Egypt, the key interest rate was increased
to 20.25% (from 17.25% at the beginning of 2023).

In 2023, the MSCI Emerging Markets Equity Index, expressed in US dollars, rose moderately (+7.0%). Among the countries
with an ISP presence, in the CEE/SEE area some of the local currency stock indices recorded double-digit gains, with the
biggest rises seen in Hungary, Poland, Romania and Croatia, while Slovenia, the Czech Republic and Serbia posted more
moderate increases. Bosnia Herzegovina and Slovakia were marginally penalised by sales. The Russian stock market
experienced a significant rise in prices, while the Ukrainian market’'s operations continue to be affected by the conflict
between Kyiv and Moscow. In the Middle East and North Africa (MENA) region, the Egyptian stock exchange ended the year
well into positive territory.

In the foreign exchange markets, the Russian rouble weakened against the US dollar (USD/local currency) (+23.10%), while
in the other countries with ISP subsidiaries, all the main currencies appreciated in the CEE/SEE/EE area. In the MENA area,
the Egyptian pound weakened significantly. In relation to the Euro, worthy of note among the CEE/SEE countries was the
recovery of the Albanian lek, the Polish zloty and the Hungarian forint.

In 2023, there was a widespread narrowing of yield spreads between emerging market and US government bonds (EMBI Plus
-30 basis points) and a reduction in the cost of credit risk protection (CDS -72 basis points).
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The Italian banking system

Interest rates and spreads

The rises in monetary policy interest rates fed through to the lending and borrowing rates with different speeds and intensities.
The rapid and significant increase in interest rates on new loans to non-financial companies, which had started in the second
half of 2022, continued in 2023: the average rate on disbursements in December was 4.3 percentage points higher than two
years earlier, at 5.5%, reaching the peaks seen at the end of 2008. Interest rates on new home mortgage loans also rose
sharply, but less so than those on loans to businesses. After 2022, when the rises mainly involved the fixed rate, in 2023 the
biggest increases were experienced by the floating rate, which returned back to higher than the fixed rate. As a result of the
rate rises on new transactions and on outstanding floating-rate loans, the average rate on the stock of loans to households
and businesses also increased significantly, to 4.8% (+2.6 points on the end of 2021).

With regard to deposit interest rates, the rates on overnight deposits rose moderately, while rates on new time deposits were
highly reactive, with significant increases. The stickiness of the on-demand rates and the high proportion of overnight deposits
within the total deposits influenced the average deposit rate, which grew moderately. The overall cost of funding from
customers (+0.7 points on the end of 2021 to 1.2%) also reflected the gradual rise in the average rate on bonds. The spread
between lending and funding rates widened considerably, reaching an all-time high.

The considerable increase in the mark-down on on-demand deposits continued in 2023, reaching a record high in the second
half of the year, following eleven years below zero and a rapid return to positive territory since September 2022. In contrast,
the mark-up on short-term lending rates, after having fallen considerably at the end of 2022, substantially settled down over
the course of 2023, as increases in key interest rates were passed on to interest rates on loans.

Loans

In the credit market, the moderate tightening of the lending criteria continued, in line with the restrictive monetary policy
stance and the increase in perceived risks, while on the bank balance sheets side, no supply constraints emerged, with the
good liquidity and funding situation maintained, the degree of capitalisation further strengthened and credit quality stable, with
no particular signs of deterioration. The restrictive monetary stance, with the steep and rapid rise in interest rates, led to a
sharp reduction in the demand for loans from households and businesses.

Lending to businesses was mainly influenced by the significant increase in the cost of credit, the postponement of investment
decisions and the reliance on self-financing. As a result of the sharp fall in demand, loans to businesses declined rapidly,
reaching a low in September, with the downward trend slowing in the fourth quarter. Short-term lending fell sharply, following
the rebound in 2022. Medium- and long-term loans remained weak, with an increasingly negative rate of change to an all-time
low of -6.5%. This also reflected the absence of renewals of maturing loans, due to the rise in interest rates, and the
repayments of government-backed loans obtained during the pandemic.

Loans to households were impacted by the tightening of monetary conditions, resulting in a sharp slowdown that in little more
than a year led the stock to decline in the second half of 2023. Rising interest rates, lower consumer confidence and a
worsening outlook for the residential market led to a significant drop in demand for loans for house purchase. Mortgage loan
disbursements fell sharply, in line with the contraction in residential property sales and the slowdown in house prices. Lower
disbursements, combined with early repayments of floating-rate mortgages, caused the stock of mortgage loans to slow down
considerably, from a growth rate of 5% in the middle months of 2022, to a slightly negative change at the end of 2023.

In terms of credit quality, the stock of non-performing loans net of adjustments amounted to 1.1% of total loans in September
2023 for the significant banks, stable compared to mid-year and down slightly on 1.2% at the end of 2022. In the third quarter
of 2023, the default rate in terms of annualised flow of non-performing loans in relation to total performing loans remained at a
record low of 1.1%.

Funding from customers

The tightening of monetary policy also had a significant impact on bank funding, as a result of the reallocation of on-demand
deposits towards more remunerative financial instruments and the reduction of refinancing with the Eurosystem. The robust
growth of bank deposits that had lasted more than a decade was followed by the beginning of a decline, which intensified in
2023 reaching a record low of -6.5% in July. This was due to outflows from current accounts, which recorded double-digit
declines in the stock, as a result of a combination of several factors, including the use by businesses and households of the
considerable cash deposited with banks in previous years and the reallocation of savings towards domestic government
bonds. This was accompanied by a strong recovery in time deposits, boosted by the higher interest rates offered. During the
year, around 100 billion euro of cash flowed out of the current accounts of households and businesses, 60% of which was
offset by inflows to time deposits. Bank bonds also saw a return to growth, which reached double-digits after more than a
decade of contraction.
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Indirect deposits and asset management

The rise in market yields sparked renewed interest in direct investment in fixed-income securities, initiating a process of
household financial portfolio rebalancing. The substantial purchases of government bonds by savers fuelled assets under
administration, which continued the growth already initiated in 2022 with significant volumes of securities held in custody by
banks, creating a potential pool for subsequent transformation into assets under management.

However, the rise in interest rates negatively affected the asset management industry, which saw overall net outflows in 2023
for mutual funds, portfolio management schemes, and life insurance. During the year, funds recorded outflows of 22 billion
euro, caused by divestments from flexible and balanced funds. As expected, there was a pick-up in bond fund subscriptions,
which achieved significant inflows of 24 billion euro. On the other hand, the positive contribution from equity funds gradually
faded, leading to moderate outflows in the second half of the year.

Life insurance had a weak year, with net outflows both from traditional policies, which are less appealing than direct
investment in securities as interest rates rise, and unit-linked policies, which continued to see a double-digit decline in new
business.
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Economic results

General aspects

A condensed reclassified consolidated income statement has been prepared to give a more immediate understanding of
results. To guarantee comparison on a like-for-like basis, the income statement data referring to previous periods were
restated, where necessary and if material. In particular, the amounts are provided as consistently as possible with reference
to the different periods covered, above all in relation to intervening changes in the scope of consolidation. This uniformity is
achieved through “restated” figures, which include/exclude the values of the companies that entered or left the scope of
consolidation.

Even with the application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 by the Group’s insurance companies, the presentation in the 2023
reclassified income statement remains the same: there were no changes to the schedule, either at structure level or in terms
of the name of the captions, as the insurance items still mainly flow into Income from insurance business, thus retaining the
separate representation of the income for the segment.

As the reclassified income statement has not been changed, the detailed tables show no changes occurred, with the
exception of the tables regarding the Income from insurance business and insurance production, which show information
structures in line with the new standard and the provisions issued by IVASS.

In line with the adjustment of the comparison data in the consolidated financial statements due to the retrospective application

of the two standards, the comparison data presented in the reclassified schedules have also been adjusted on a like-for-like

basis.

Moreover, the first two quarters of 2022 have been restated to take account of the changes in the scope of consolidation, and

specifically:

- the entry of Compagnie de Banque Privée Quilvest (Fideuram Group)* at the end of June 2022, resulting in the start of
the consolidation of the income statement figures from July 2022; and

- the contribution to Intesa Sanpaolo Formazione of the Intesa Sanpaolo business line dedicated to the design and
provision of training services and products for Group employees based in Italy, which was carried out in preparation for
the disposal of Intesa Sanpaolo Formazione, finalised at the end of June 2022,

with the attribution by convention of net income to the caption Minority interests.

Lastly, the first quarter of 2022 includes the restatement of the costs of several incentive systems for employees of the

Group’s distribution networks from personnel expenses to fee and commission expense (the systems in question are funded

by fee and commission income generated by the networks in question on the basis of deterministic quantification criteria

correlated to the revenues at issue). With effect from the second quarter of 2022, these costs have been reclassified from

personnel expenses to fee and commission expense by analogy to the accounting treatment of incentive systems for non-

employee financial advisors.

Certain aggregations and reclassifications have been made with respect to the model provided in Circular 262 of the Bank of
Italy. Breakdowns of restatements, aggregations and reclassifications are provided in separate tables included in the
attachments to this report, as also required by Consob in its Communication 6064293 of 28 July 2006.

The reclassifications and aggregations of captions of the reclassified consolidated income statement refer to:

- dividends relating to shares or units in portfolio and dividends collected or paid within the framework of securities lending,
which have been reallocated to the caption Profits (losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value;

- insurance companies’ portions of Net interest income, Dividends, Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities
designated at fair value, Net losses/recoveries for credit risk associated with financial assets measured at amortised cost
and with financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, which are posted, along with the
Insurance service result and the Balance of financial income and expenses related to insurance operations, in the
specific caption Income from insurance business. The Insurance service result is considered excluding the related
operating costs (personnel expenses, administrative expenses and amortisation/depreciation) and the fees and
commissions paid to financial advisors of the Private Banking Division for placing and managing insurance products
which, in line with representation of costs by the nature of the expense, are attributed to the specific captions;

- differentials on derivatives, classified to the trading book and contracted to hedge transactions in foreign currencies,
which have been allocated among Net interest income owing to the close correlation;

- periodic fees and commissions on current accounts with positive balances applied to customers (excluding the retall
customers and SMEs segment), in accordance with the provisions of the term sheets, which are accounted for as net
interest income, inasmuch as they cover the financing cost incurred by the Bank;

- net fee and commission income, which includes the above-mentioned fees and commissions paid to financial advisors of
the Private Banking Division for placing and managing insurance products, in line with the representation of costs by the
nature of the expense;

- Profits (losses) on trading, Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting, Profits (losses) on other financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss, Profits (losses) on disposal or repurchase of financial assets

“lon1 January 2023, along with the incorporation of Fideuram Bank (Luxembourg) S.A., Compagnie de Banque Privée Quilvest S.A. took on the name

Intesa Sanpaolo Wealth Management S.A.
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measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and on the portion of the disposal or repurchase of financial
liabilities that contributes to the banking segment, which have been reallocated to the single caption Profits (losses) on
financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value, except for any amounts relating to adjustments on portions of
loans mandatorily measured at fair value which, as they relate to the measurements of credit positions, are reclassified to
the caption Net adjustments to loans in order to permit unitary representation of the adjustments relating to the same
position;

- the share of the premium on the issue of the certificates paid to the networks for their placement, which is reclassified
from Profits (losses) on trading and Profits (losses) on other financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss to Net fee and commission income;

- the return components of the insurance policies taken out to cover contractual indemnities and retention plans for
financial advisors, which are deducted directly from Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair
value, in accordance with the valuation effect of the assets in question, rather than being presented — as attributable to
the advisors — among Other net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets (for valuation effects) or among
Net fee and commission income or Other operating income (expenses), depending on the type of insurance policy used
(for effects from realisation);

- the operating income and costs of entities operating in sectors entirely distinct from banking and finance, synthetically
reallocated to Other operating income (expenses), including that of the entities not subject to management and
coordination within the framework of the Group (Risanamento and its subsidiaries);

- the costs of several incentive systems for employees of the Group’s distribution networks, where funded by fee and
commission income generated by the networks in question on the basis of deterministic quantification criteria correlated
to the revenues concerned, which are reclassified from Personnel expenses to Fee and commission expense by analogy
to the accounting treatment of incentive systems for non-employee financial advisors;

- recoveries of expenses, taxes and duties, which are deducted from Administrative expenses instead of being included
among Other income (expenses), and, with regard to the CIB Group, the amounts of the “bank tax” paid quarterly to the
Hungarian treasury, along with the “windfall tax”, levied by Hungary on bank profits which - given their nature - are
reclassified from Administrative expenses to Taxes on income;

- operating costs, which include the above operating costs relating to the Insurance service result attributed to the specific
captions (personnel expenses, administrative expenses and amortisation/depreciation), in line with the representation of
costs by the nature of the expense;

- profits and losses on disposal or repurchase of financial assets measured at amortised cost (loans and debt securities
representing loans), which have been allocated to Net adjustments to loans;

- the portion of net losses/recoveries for credit risk associated with financial assets measured at amortised cost and
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income contributed by the banking segment, the
effects on the income statement of the changes in contracts and the net provisions for risks and charges for credit risk
relating to commitments and guarantees given, attributed to the single caption Net adjustments to loans. The caption also
includes any amounts relating to credit risk adjustments to portions of loans mandatorily measured at fair value, which,
as they relate to the measurement of credit positions, are reclassified to the caption Net adjustments to loans to permit
unitary representation of the adjustments relating to the same position;

- the reversal in the time value of Employee termination indemnities and Allowances for risks and charges, which has been
included among Net interest income, as a phenomenon deriving directly from the application of the amortised cost
criterion, in the absence of changes in projected future cash flows, in keeping with the treatment of the time value of
financial assets measured at amortised cost;

- Net losses for credit risk associated with financial assets measured at amortised cost other than loans and net
impairment losses on equity investments, as well as property and equipment and intangible assets (including property
and other assets, also those resulting from the enforcement of guarantees or purchase at auction and intended for sale
on the market in the near future), which have been reclassified to Other net provisions and net impairment losses on
other assets. This last caption consequently includes — in addition to the provisions for risks and charges other than
those relating to commitments and guarantees — the valuation effects of the assets other than loans, with the sole
exception of impairment losses on intangible assets that have been reclassified to Impairment (net of tax) of goodwill and
other intangible assets;

- the costs incurred in the second quarter of 2022 regarding a one-off contribution to Intesa Sanpaolo people, excluding
those classified as managers or having equivalent remuneration, not linked to their work performance but to mitigate the
impact of inflation, which were reclassified from Personnel expenses to Other income (expenses);

- realised profits (losses) on financial assets measured at amortised cost other than loans, on equity investments and on
other investments, which have been reclassified to Other income (expenses). Accordingly, in addition to the income and
expenses not strictly related to operations, this caption represents the summary of the effects from the realisation of
assets other than loans. Profits (Losses) realised on debt securities represent an exception; in view of their business
model, which involves management closely correlated with the other financial instruments, they are classified to Profits
(Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value;

- Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives, which are reclassified from Personnel expenses, Administrative
expenses and other captions of the income statement to a separate caption;

- the Effects of purchase price allocation, net of tax, which are indicated in a specific caption. They normally represent
adjustments to and any impairment losses on financial assets and liabilities as well as property, equipment and intangible
assets which are measured at fair value as provided for by IFRS 3;

- levies and other charges aimed at maintaining the stability of the banking industry, which are reclassified, net of tax, to
the specific caption;

- Goodwill impairment and impairment losses on other intangible assets, which — where present — are shown, as stated
above, net of tax.
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Reclassified income statement

Net interest income
Net fee and commission income

Income from insurance business

Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value

Other operating income (expenses)

Operating income

Personnel expenses

Administrative expenses

Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets
Operating costs

Operating margin

Net adjustments to loans

Other net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets
Other income (expenses)

Income (Loss) from discontinued operations

Gross income (loss)

Taxes on income

Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives

Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax)

Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry (net of tax)

Impairment (net of tax) of goodwill and other intangible assets

Minority interests

Net income (loss)

31.12.2023

14,646
8,558
1,666

298
-30

25,138

-6,981

-3,002

-1,346

-11,329

13,809

-1,529

-570

348

12,058
-3,438
-222
-161

-485

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

31.12.2022

9,500
8,919
1,675
1,378
-32
21,440
-6,742
-2,912
-1,280
-10,934
10,506
-3,113
-270

202

7,325
-2,080
-140
-146

-576

4,379

(millions of euro)

Changes

amount %
5,146 54.2
-361 -4.0
-9 -0.5
-1,080 -78.4
-2 -6.3
3,698 17.2
239 35
90 3.1
66 5.2
395 3.6
3,303 314
-1,584 -50.9

300
146 72.3
4,733 64.6
1,358 65.3
82 58.6
15 10.3
-91 -15.8

24
3,345 76.4

75
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Quarterly development of the reclassified income statement

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income

Income from insurance business

Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at
fair value

Other operating income (expenses)

Operating income

Personnel expenses

Administrative expenses

Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets
Operating costs

Operating margin

Net adjustments to loans

Other net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets
Other income (expenses)

Income (Loss) from discontinued operations

Gross income (loss)

Taxes on income

Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives

Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax)

Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry (net
of tax)

Impairment (net of tax) of goodwill and other intangible assets
Minority interests

Net income (loss)

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

Fourth
quarter

3,995
2,110

391

1,602

Third
quarter

3,813
2,095
419

52

6,367
-1,612
-710
-328
-2,650
3,717
-357

-6

1,900

2023

Second
quarter

3,584
2,216
459
75

7
6,341
-1,625
-731
-319
-2,675
3,666
-367
-121
203
3,381

-1,000

First
quarter

3,254
2,137

397

1,956

Fourth
quarter

3,064
2,222
395

-2

-12
5,667
-1,021
-865
-344
-3,130
2,537
-1,185
114

55

(millions of euro)

2022
Third Second
quarter quarter
2,387 2,092
2,153 2,255
439 449
51 560
-12 -12
5,018 5,344
-1,632 -1,613
-695 -718
-313 -309
-2,640 -2,640
2,378 2,704
-496 -730
-42 -62
4 147
1,844 2,059
-560 -699
-23 -23
-32 -30
-266 -12
-6 8
957 1,303

First
quarter

1,957
2,289

392

2,129

-776

1,043

76
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Operating income

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group achieved an excellent performance in 2023 in terms of profitability, liquidity and capital position.
The main income margins reached never-before-seen levels; operating income amounted to 25,138 million euro, up by 17.2%
from 21,440 million euro in 2022. That trend was caused by the sharp increase in net interest income, which benefited from
the interest rate hikes by the ECB, only partially offset by the decline in profits (losses) on financial assets and liabilities
designated at fair value and net fee and commission income. Income deriving from insurance business and other operating
expenses did not show significant changes.

Net interest income

(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes

amount %
Relations with customers 13,750 8,954 4,796 53.6
Securities issued -3,343 -1,817 1,526 84.0
Customer dealing 10,407 7,137 3,270 45.8
Instruments measured at amortised cost which do not constitute loans 1,637 686 951
Other financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss 180 -22 202
Other financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,562 860 702 81.6
Financial assets and liabilities 3,379 1,524 1,855
Relations with banks 463 668 -205 -30.7
Differentials on hedging derivatives -650 -435 215 49.4
Other net interest income 1,047 606 441 72.8
Net interest income 14,646 9,500 5,146 54.2

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

Net interest income was 14,646 million euro, up considerably
(+54.2%) compared to 2022. Specifically, increased contributions
were made by customer dealing (+45.8%, equal to +3.3 billion
euro), which benefited from interest rate increases by the ECB,
and financial assets, which rose to 3,379 million euro from 1,524
million euro in the previous year, due to the positive performance
3813 299 of all components: securities measured at amortised cost (+951

3,584 million euro), other financial assets measured at fair value through

3,064 3,254 other comprehensive income (+702 million euro) and through profit

or loss (+202 million euro). By contrast, negative differentials on

a5y 2,02 2,387 hedging derivatives worsened, increasing by 49.4%, as did net

Quarterly development
Net interest income
(millions of euro)

interest income on relations with banks, which decreased by
30.7%, mainly related to the decrease in interbank operations.

The TLTRO operations outstanding with the ECB at the end of
2023 amounted to 45.1 billion euro nominal, giving rise to interest
expense of 1,958 million euro in the twelve months, compared to
96.1 billion euro nominal in the year ended 31 December 2022,
which had generated interest income of 615 million euro. It should
be noted that until 23 June 2022, interest on TLTRO funds
benefited from the special interest rate period, with an applied rate
of -1%. From 24 June to 22 November 2022 the interest rate applied and settled on maturity was the average rate on deposits
with the Central Bank (Deposit Facility Rate) calculated for the entire duration of the operation, whereas from 23 Nove mber
2022 the rate applied is equal to the rate in effect for the period.

In 2023 the liquidity invested in deposit transactions with the Central Bank generated interest income of 3,220 million euro,
benefiting from the increase in reference rates, which nonetheless remained in line with the cost of TLTRO funding. In 2022
the interest accrued on the reinvestment of additional liquidity with the Central Bank amounted to a positive 141 million euro,
conditioned by the application of negative rates that only returned to positive territory in the second half of the year.

1/22
2/22
3/22
4/22
1/23
2/23
3/23
4/23

Finally, other net interest income, inclusive of that accrued on non-performing assets, made a positive contribution of 1,047
million euro, an increase of 441 million euro.
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Relations with customers
Securities issued

Customer dealing

Instruments measured at amortised cost which do not
constitute loans

Other financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Other financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Financial assets and liabilities
Relations with banks
Differentials on hedging derivatives

Other net interest income

Net interest income

(millions of euro)

2023 Changes %

Fourth Third Second First

quarter quarter quarter quarter
(@ (b) (c) (d) (a/b) (blc) (c/d)
3,628 3,613 3,394 3,115 0.4 6.5 9.0
-1,032 -940 -775 -596 9.8 21.3 30.0
2,596 2,673 2,619 2,519 -2.9 2.1 4.0
463 424 441 309 9.2 -3.9 42.7
43 40 52 45 7.5 -23.1 15.6
485 434 364 279 11.8 19.2 30.5
991 898 857 633 10.4 4.8 35.4

245 142 54 22 72.5

-170 -154 -204 -122 10.4 -24.5 67.2
333 254 258 202 31.1 -1.6 27.7
3,995 3,813 3,584 3,254 4.8 6.4 10.1

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

The net interest income flow showed further progress in the fourth quarter of 2023, recording the highest quarterly value of

recent years.

Banca dei Territori

IMI Corporate & Investment Banking
International Subsidiary Banks
Private Banking

Asset Management

Insurance

Total business areas

Corporate Centre

Intesa Sanpaolo Group

(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes

amount %
6,549 3,992 2,557 64.1
2,797 2,107 690 32.7
2,332 1,592 740 46.5

1,267 419 848
18 - 18 -
12,963 8,110 4,853 59.8
1,683 1,390 293 21.1
14,646 9,500 5,146 54.2

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents.

Business areas
Net interest income

Banca dei Territori 50.5%

IMI Corporate &
Investment Banking 21.6%

International Subsidiary
Banks 18.0%

Asset Management 0.1%
Private Banking 9.8%

’4[

| Insurance -

78

The Banca dei Territori Division, which accounts for 50.5% of the
operating business areas results, recorded net interest income of
6,549 million euro, up sharply compared to 2022 (+64.1%, equal to
+2,557 million euro), due to the performance of market rates,
which favoured the profitability of customer dealing. Increased
contributions to net interest income were also made by the Private
Banking Division (+848 million euro), due to the higher contribution
from investments in securities and intermediation with banks and
customers, the International Subsidiary Banks Division (+46.5%,
or +740 million euro), due primarily to the favourable performance
of subsidiaries operating in Croatia, Slovakia, Serbia and Hungary,
and the IMI Corporate & Investment Banking Division (+32.7%, or
+690 million euro), mainly attributable to the greater contribution
from Global Markets, as well as the greater contribution from
customer deposits.

The Corporate Centre’s net interest income grew (+293 million
euro), benefiting from the significant rise of market rates.



Report on operations — Economic results

Net fee and commission income

Income Expense

Guarantees given / received 483
Collection and payment services 808
Current accounts 1,360
Credit and debit cards 899
Commercial banking activities 3,550
Dealing and placement of securities 1,040
Currency dealing 14
Portfolio management 3,502
Distribution of insurance products 1,512
Other 495
Management, dealing and consultancy activities 6,563
Other net fee and commission income 1,149
Net fee and commission income 11,262

(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes
Net | Income Expense Net amount %
-328 155 472 -226 246 -91 -37.0
-139 669 767 -144 623 46 7.4
- 1,360 1,386 - 1,386 -26 -1.9
-494 405 871 -457 414 -9 -2.2
-961 2,589 3,496 -827 2,669 -80 -3.0
-273 767 1,000 -318 682 85 12.5
-5 9 16 -7 9 - -
-993 2,509 3,655 -945 2,710 -201 -7.4
- 1,512 1,587 - 1,587 -75 -4.7
-207 288 435 -193 242 46 19.0
-1,478 5,085 6,693 -1,463 5,230 -145 -2.8
-265 884 1,265 -245 1,020 -136 -13.3
-2,704 8,558 | 11,454 -2,535 8,919 -361 -4.0

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

Quarterly development
Net fee and commission income
(millions of euro)

2289 2255 ,45q 2,222 2137 2216

2,095 2,110

1/22
2/22
3/22
4/22
1/23
2/23
3/23
4/23

The net fee and commission income earned in 2023 amounted to
8,558 million euro, down by 4% from the 8,919 million euro
recorded in 2022.

That result was due to the reduction in fees and commissions on
management, dealing and consultancy activities (-2.8%, or -145
million euro), on commercial banking activities (-3%, or -80 million
euro) and on other net fee and commission income (-13.3%, or -
136 million euro). In detail, in the first type of fees and
commissions, the contribution from portfolio management
schemes decreased (-7.4%, or -201 million euro), and specifically
collective portfolio management which was impacted by the
decrease in management and subscription fees and commissions
and the distribution of insurance products (-4.7%, or -75 million
euro). Fee and commission income on dealing and placement of
securities had a positive impact (+12.5% or +85 million euro),
driven by certificates transactions. In the banking and commercial
area, fee and commission income on guarantees given/received
fell (-37%, or -91 million euro) mainly in relation to higher fee and
commission expense on synthetic securitisations within the
framework of the Active Credit Risk Management programme -
GARC - and, to a lesser extent, on current accounts (-1.9%, or -26

million euro) and on ATM and credit card service (-2.2%, or -9 million euro), against an increase in fee and commission

income on collection and payment services (+7.4%, or +46 million euro).

Finally, other net fee and commission income decreased, primarily due to the effect of the decline in the positive components,

markedly those relating to the loans granted.

79
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Guarantees given / received
Collection and payment services
Current accounts

Credit and debit cards

Commercial banking activities
Dealing and placement of securities
Currency dealing

Portfolio management

Distribution of insurance products
Other

Management, dealing and consultancy activities

Other net fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income

(millions of euro)

2023 Changes %
Fourth Third Second First
quarter quarter quarter quarter
() (b) (c) (d) (a/b) (b/c) (c/d)
39 41 41 34 -4.9 - 20.6
180 169 164 156 6.5 3.0 5.1
336 339 344 341 -0.9 -1.5 0.9
929 105 107 94 -5.7 -1.9 13.8
654 654 656 625 - -0.3 5.0
190 154 193 230 23.4 -20.2 -16.1
2 3 2 2 -33.3 50.0 -
627 627 641 614 - -2.2 4.4
345 368 403 396 -6.3 -8.7 1.8
93 69 69 57 34.8 - 21.1
1,257 1,221 1,308 1,299 29 -6.7 0.7
199 220 252 213 -9.5 -12.7 18.3
2,110 2,095 2,216 2,137 0.7 -5.5 3.7

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

At the quarterly level, the value for the fourth quarter was slightly above that of the third quarter due to securities dealing and
placement, but below that of the first two quarters of the year.

Banca dei Territori

IMI Corporate & Investment Banking
International Subsidiary Banks
Private Banking

Asset Management

Insurance

Total business areas

Corporate Centre

Intesa Sanpaolo Group

(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes
amount %
4,630 4,739 -109 -2.3
1,112 1,146 -34 -3.0
583 574 9 1.6
1,858 1,980 -122 -6.2
816 913 -97  -10.6
3 3 - -
9,002 9,355 -353 -3.8
-444 -436 8 1.8
8,558 8,919 -361 -4.0

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents.

Business areas
Net fee and commission income

Banca dei Territori 51.4%

IMI Corporate &
Investment Banking 12.4%

International Subsidiary
Banks 6.5%

. Asset Management 9.1%

Private Banking 20.6%

Insurance -

With regard to business areas, the Banca dei Territori Division,
which accounts for 51.4% of the fee and commission income of
the business units, recorded a decrease in fee and commission
income in 2023 (-2.3%, or -109 million euro), specifically that
deriving from assets under management. Fee and commission
income also decreased for Private Banking (-6.2%, or -122 million
euro), specifically recurring fee and commission income, due to
the decrease in average assets under management, and upfront
fee and commission income, Asset Management (-10.6%, or -97
million euro), which was impacted by the decrease in management
fees related to the reduction in assets under management and
placements and, to a lesser extent, performance fees collected
during the period, as well as the IMI Corporate & Investment
Banking Division (-3%, or -34 million euro), due to the fall in fee
and commission income from commercial banking, only partly
offset by the positive performance of investment banking. The fee
and commission income of the International Subsidiary Banks
showed an increase (+1.6%, or +9 million euro), attributable to

subsidiaries operating in Hungary, Slovakia and Serbia. The Corporate Centre recorded a moderate worsening in the balance

of net fee and commission income.
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Income from insurance business

TECHNICAL MARGIN

Contractual service margin release

Claims, expected expenses and other amounts
Insurance revenue

Total actual claims and expenses

Other Insurance Expenses

Insurance expenses

NET INVESTMENT RESULT

Net financial income and expenses related to insurance contracts
issued

Net interest income

Dividends

Gains/losses on disposal

Valuation gains/losses

Net fee and commission income

Income from insurance business gross of consolidation
effects

Consolidation effects

INCOME FROM INSURANCE BUSINESS

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

Life

1,211
1,152
622
1,774
-704
141
-563

-51

-5,308
2,101
453
-1,227
3,689
241

1,160

40

1,200

31.12.2023

Non-life

462

71
1,106
1,177

-693

466

Total

1,673

1,223
1,728
2,951
-1,397
119
-1,278

-5,318
2,132
453
-1,234
3,689
231

1,626

40

1,666

Life

1,212
1,300
575
1,875
-803
140
-663

-44

3,674
2,168
414
-3,223
-3,263
186

1,168

72

1,240

31.12.2022

Non-life

443

52
1,102
1,154

-695

-39

435

435

Total

1,655

1,352
1,677
3,029
-1,498
124
-1,374

-52

3,691
2,175
420
-3,226
-3,302
190

1,603

72

1,675

(millions of euro)

Changes

amount %

18 1.1

-129 -9.5

51 3.0

-78 -2.6

-101 -6.7

-5 -4.0

-96 -7.0

-5 -9.6
-9,009

-43 -2.0

33 7.9

-1,992 -61.7
6,991

41 21.6

23 1.4

-32 -44.4

-9 -0.5

81
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Quarterly development
Income from insurance business
(millions of euro)

Income from insurance business includes the cost and revenue
captions of the insurance business, including the reinsurance
component, of the Group’s life and non-life companies, and is
presented on a continuity basis after application of IFRS 17 and
IFRS 9. In 2023 this figure was 1,666 million euro, down slightly
(-0.5%), but an improvement (+1.4%) before consolidation effects
compared to 2022. This improvement is attributable to the non-life
business, at the level of both the technical margin and net
investment result, whereas the life business recorded a

4 . . X .
449 439 & deterioration concentrated in the net investment result.
392 395 397 391
(] ™~ (3] o e [ne] [5g] [s2]
o o o = o o N o
- N o < — N ™ <
(millions of euro)
2023 Changes %
Fourth Third Second First
quarter quarter quarter quarter
(@ (b) (c) (d) (a/b) (b/c) (crd)
TECHNICAL MARGIN 406 428 431 408 5.1 -0.7 5.6
Contractual service margin release 266 316 273 368 -15.8 15.8 -25.8
Claims, expected expenses and other amounts 420 500 357 451 -16.0 40.1 -20.8
Insurance revenue 686 816 630 819 -15.9 29.5 -23.1
Total actual claims and expenses -308 -457 -186 -446 -32.6 -58.3
Other Insurance Expenses 28 69 -13 35 -59.4
Insurance expenses -280 -388 -199 -411 -27.8 95.0 -51.6
NET INVESTMENT RESULT -22 -20 18 -23 10.0
Net financial income and expenses related to insurance contracts issued -2,714 44 -1,264 -1,384 -8.7
Net interest income 577 538 592 425 7.2 9.1 39.3
Dividends 127 95 154 77 33.7 -38.3
Gains/losses on disposal -280 -647 -33 -274 -56.7 -88.0
Valuation gains/losses 2,227 -112 507 1,067 -52.5
Net fee and commission income 41 62 62 66 -33.9 - -6.1
Income from insurance business gross of consolidation effects 384 408 449 385 -5.9 -9.1 16.6
Consolidation effects 7 11 10 12 -36.4 10.0 -16.7
INCOME FROM INSURANCE BUSINESS 391 419 459 397 -6.7 -8.7 15.6

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

Income from insurance business, inclusive of the life and non-life segments, showed a lower value in the fourth quarter of
2023 than in the other three quarters of 2023, due to the downtrend in the technical margin.
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(millions of euro)

Business 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
of which
new
business
Life insurance business 13,165 12,835 13,072
Premiums issued on traditional products 9,693 9,566 3,981
Premiums issued on unit-linked products 1,198 1,023 1,963
Premiums issued on multi-line products 1,189 1,171 6,224
Premiums issued on pension funds 1,080 1,072 896
Premiums issued on capitalisation products 5 3 8
Non-life insurance business 1,467 264 1,436
Premiums issued 1,467 264 1,436
Premiums ceded to reinsurers -180 -33 -165
Net premiums issued from insurance products 14,452 13,066 14,343
Business on unit-linked contracts 2,139 2,094 3,150
Total business from investment contracts 2,139 2,094 3,150
Total business 16,591 15,160 17,493

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

In 2023 business in the insurance segment amounted to 16.6 billion euro, down on the business recorded in 2022 (17.5 billion
euro). The decline in premiums was driven by the drop in unit-linked policies, primarily Class Il financial unit-linked policies
(-1 billion euro), alongside a moderate increase in the non-life and life businesses. In detail, the life business recorded an
increase in premiums on traditional products (+5.7 billion euro) and pension funds (+0.2 billion euro), which more than offset
the decline in multi-line policies (-5 billion euro) and unit-linked policies of a mainly insurance nature (-0.8 billion euro); the
non-life business, in which the non-motor segment performed well, grew by 2.2%. New business totalled 15.2 billion euro,
accounting for over 90% of the total collected premiums of the Group's insurance companies.

Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value

(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes

amount %
Profits (losses) on trading and on financial instruments under fair value option -270 605 -875
Profits (losses) on hedges under hedge accounting -59 33 -92
Profits (losses) on assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss 190 125 65 52.0
Profits (losses) on dividends and on disposal of assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income and disposal of assets at amortised cost 402 589 -187 -31.7
Profits (losses) on the buyback of financial liabilities 35 26 9 34.6
Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value 298 1,378 -1,080 -78.4

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.
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Quarterly development
Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities
designated at fair value
(millions of euro)
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Profits (losses) on trading and on financial instruments under fair value
option
Profits (losses) on hedges under hedge accounting

Profits (losses) on assets mandatorily measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Profits (losses) on dividends and on disposal of assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income and disposal of assets at
amortised cost

Profits (losses) on the buyback of financial liabilities

In 2023, profits (losses) on financial assets and liabilities
designated at fair value, amounting to 298 million euro, declined
sharply compared to 2022. That performance should be
interpreted along with the sharp increase in the net interest
income, with specific reference to transactions in certificates,
which generated positive effects on the income in terms of greater
liquidity invested and negative effects on trading related to the
management of financial risks following the increase in market
rates.

The decrease, amounting to 78.4%, is attributable to profits
(losses) on trading and on financial instruments under fair value
option (-875 million euro), specifically foreign exchange
transactions as well as the decrease in the positive impact from
own credit risk (OCR) of certificates due to the tightening of the
Intesa Sanpaolo credit spread, and the profits (losses) on
dividends and on disposal of assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income and disposal of assets at
amortised cost (-187 million euro), which in 2022 benefited from
higher gains on the sale of debt securities, mainly government
securities. Profits (losses) on hedges under hedge accounting also
fell (-92 million euro).

(millions of euro)

Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair

value

2023 Changes%
Fourth Third Second First
quarter quarter quarter quarter
(a) (b) (c) (d) (a/b) (b/c) (c/d)
-71 -155 -40 -4 -54.2
-31 28 -42 -14
-20 66 50 94 32.0 -46.8
16 110 97 179 -85.5 13.4 -45.8
15 3 10 7 -70.0 42.9
-91 52 75 262 -30.7 -71.4

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

The result for the fourth quarter of 2023 was negative, compared to the positive, yet gradually declining, results of the other

three quarters of 2023.
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Other operating income (expenses)

In 2023 other operating expenses were -30 million euro, compared with -32 million euro recorded in 2022. This caption
includes both operating income and expenses — including those of subsidiaries not subject to management and coordination
operating in sectors completely distinct from banking and finance — and profits on equity investments carried at equity. The
performance of the caption was driven by the greater contribution (+3 million euro) of dividends and profits of investments
carried at equity, against a slight increase in other operating expenses (+1 million euro).

Operating costs

Wages and salaries
Social security charges
Other

Personnel expenses

Information technology expenses
Management of real estate assets expenses
General structure costs

Professional and legal expenses
Advertising and promotional expenses
Indirect personnel costs

Other costs

Indirect taxes and duties

Recovery of expenses and charges
Administrative expenses

Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Adjustments

Operating costs

(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes
amount %
4,889 4,757 132 2.8
1,240 1,187 53 4.5
852 798 54 6.8
6,981 6,742 239 35
868 838 30 3.6
395 317 78 24.6
404 399 5 13
276 299 -23 -7.7
159 152 7 4.6
171 157 14 8.9
560 577 -17 -2.9
197 202 -5 -2.5
-28 -29 -1 -3.4
3,002 2,912 90 3.1
556 566 -10 -1.8
790 714 76 10.6
1,346 1,280 66 5.2
11,329 10,934 395 3.6

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

Quarterly development
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In 2023 operating costs amounted to 11,329 million euro, higher
than the 2022 figure (+3.6%) but lower than the average inflation
level in 2023 in Italy.

Personnel expenses of 6,981 million euro increased (+3.5%)
compared to 2022, mainly due to higher costs relating to renewal
of the national bargaining agreement, only partly offset by savings
on negotiated exits with trade unions.

Administrative expenses amounted to 3,002 million euro, up by
3.1%. Specifically, the increases were mainly recorded in property
management expenses (+78 million euro), especially related to
electricity and natural gas price increases, information technology
expenses (+30 million euro) connected with the higher cost of
outsourcing and indirect personnel costs (+14 million euro),
against savings on legal and professional fees (-23 million euro)
and other expenses (-17 million euro), markedly on category
association dues.

Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets, which
in accordance with IFRS 16 also include the share relating to
rights of use acquired under operating leases, increased (+5.2%)
on 2022, attributable to the intangible assets due to technology
investments aimed at development.

The cost/income ratio for 2023 fell further to 45.1% compared to 51% in 2022, the lowest annual value in the history of the

Intesa Sanpaolo Group.
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Wages and salaries
Social security charges
Other

Personnel expenses

Information technology expenses
Management of real estate assets expenses
General structure costs

Professional and legal expenses
Advertising and promotional expenses
Indirect personnel costs

Other costs

Indirect taxes and duties

Recovery of expenses and charges

Administrative expenses

Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Adjustments

Operating costs

2023

Fourth Third Second
quarter quarter quarter

@ (b) (©)
1555 1,125 1,130
389 282 290
240 205 205

2,184 1,612 1,625

242 210
114 97
103 99
85 66
70 31
52 40
201 131
57 43
-7 -7
917 710
140 138
227 190
367 328

217
92
103
71
39
42
127
a7
7
731
137

182
319

3,468 2,650 2,675

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

First
quarter
(d)
1,079
279
202
1,560

199
92
99
54
19
37

101
50

644

141
191
332

2,536

(a/b)

38.2
37.9
17.1
355

15.2
17.5

4.0
28.8

30.0
53.4
32.6

29.2

14
195
11.9

30.9

(millions of euro)

Changes %

(b/c)

-0.4
-2.8

-0.8

-3.2
5.4
-3.9
-7.0
-20.5
-4.8
31
-8.5

-2.9

0.7
4.4
2.8

(c/d)

4.7
3.9
15
4.2

9.0

4.0
315

135
25.7
-6.0

135

2.8
-4.7
-3.9

515

Operating costs in the fourth quarter of 2023 were higher than in previous quarters, in terms of personnel expenses, mainly
due to the aforementioned effect of the renewal of the National Collective Bargaining Agreement and administrative

expenses.

Banca dei Territori

IMI Corporate & Investment Banking
International Subsidiary Banks
Private Banking

Asset Management

Insurance

Total business areas

Corporate Centre

Intesa Sanpaolo Group

Figures restated, where necessary and material

31.12.2023

-6,555
-1,502
-1,197
-983
-245
-379
-10,861

-468
-11,329

31.12.2022

-6,397
-1,419
-1,118
-921
-222
-385

-10,462

-472

-10,934

, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents.

(millions of euro)

Changes

amount

158
83
79
62
23

%

25
5.8
7.1
6.7
10.4
-1.6
3.8

-0.8
3.6




Report on operations — Economic results

Business areas
Operating costs

Banca dei Territori 60.3%

IMI Corporate &
Investment Banking 13.8%

International Subsidiary
Banks 11.0%

\. Asset Management 2.3%
’ Private Banking 9.1%

Insurance 3.5%

Operating margin

In terms of operating costs, the Banca dei Territori Division, which
records 60.3% of the costs of the operating areas, reported an
increase (+2.5%, or +158 million euro), attributable to
administrative expenses and personnel expenses, also due to the
higher costs tied to the renewal of the National Collective
Bargaining Agreement. There were cost increases in [MI
Corporate & Investment Banking (+5.8%, or +83 million euro),
International Subsidiary Banks (+7.1%, or +79 million euro), and in
Private Banking (+6.7%, or +62 million euro), in relation to greater
administrative and personnel expenses, and in Asset Management
(+10.4%, or +23 million euro), essentially correlated to
administrative expenses. Conversely, there was a slight reduction
in the operating costs of Insurance (-1.6%, or -6 million euro),
owing in particular to administrative expenses, and the Corporate
Centre (-0.8%, or -4 million euro), due to higher charge backs by
the Corporate Centre to business units.

Operating margin came to 13,809 million euro in 2023, up by 31.4% on the amount recorded in 2022, due to a significant
increase in revenues, while operating costs increased modestly.

Net adjustments to loans

(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes
amount %
Bad loans -536 -534 2 0.4
Unlikely to pay -661 -1,091 -430 -39.4
Past due loans -295 -230 65 28.3
Stage 3 loans -1,492 -1,855 -363 -19.6
of which debt securities -3 - 3 -
Stage 2 loans -78 -999 -921 -92.2
of which debt securities -2 -7 -5 -71.4
Stage 1 loans 20 -45 65
of which debt securities 19 -3 22
Net losses/recoveries on impairment of loans -1,550 -2,899 -1,349 -46.5
Profits/losses from changes in contracts without derecognition -29 -5 24
Net provisions for risks and charges for credit risk associated with
commitments and financial guarantees given 50 -209 259
Net adjustments to loans -1,529 -3,113 -1,584 -50.9

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.
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Adjustments to loans amounted to 1,529 million euro, including
additional provisions for de-risking measures, a sharp decline on
the 3,113 million euro recorded in 2022. The latter included the
valuation effects relating to Russia-Ukraine risk, for a total of 1,298
million euro, and adjustments of 1,174 million euro, including
components relating to management overlay and de-risking
measures, only partially mitigated by recoveries on overlays
covering the vulnerability of moratoria (721 million euro).

The performance of the caption mainly reflects an improvement of
921 million euro on loans in Stage 2 and a reduction of 363 million

Quarterly development
Net adjustments to loans
(millions of euro)

1,185 euro in adjustments to non-performing loans in Stage 3, as a result

of a significant drop in adjustments to unlikely-to-pay loans

702 730 616 (-430 million euro), against an increase in past-due loans (+65
496 million euro) and the substantial stability of adjustments to bad

180 s6f 857 loans (+2 million euro). Positive effects were also exerted by net

provisions relating to commitments and guarantees given with

. I I recoveries of 50 million euro, compared to adjustments of -209

N N N N Q @ Q 2 million euro recorded in 2022, as well as by Stage 1 loans with
= N @ b = & & ¥ recoveries of 20 million euro (-45 million euro in adjustments in the

previous year).
In December 2023, the ratio of gross non-performing loans to total

loans was 2.3%, in line with the December 2022 figure.

The cost of credit, expressed as the ratio of net adjustments to net loans, decreased to 36 basis points in 2023 compared with
70 basis points for the year in 2022 (30 basis points when excluding the adjustments for the Russia-Ukraine exposure, the
additional adjustments to capture the elements of risk inherent in the scenario and those relating to the overlays and to favour
de-risking, net of the release of generic provisions set aside in 2020 for the expected impacts of COVID-19). The performance
of the cost of credit was favoured by very low inflows from performing to non-performing loans during the year (2.5 billion euro
net of outflows from non-performing to performing loans).

The coverage of non-performing loans in December 2023 amounted to 49.8%. In detail, bad loans required net adjustments
of 536 million euro, substantially stable compared to the 2022 figure (534 million euro), with a coverage ratio of 72.4%. Net
adjustments to unlikely-to-pay loans, totalling 661 million euro, were down (-39.4%) from 1,091 million euro recorded in 2022;
the coverage ratio for these positions amounted to 39.3%. Net adjustments to past-due loans amounted to 295 million euro
(230 million euro in 2022), with a coverage ratio of 27%. The coverage ratio for forborne positions within the non-performing
loan category was 44%. Finally, the coverage of performing loans was 0.6% and incorporated the physiological risk inherent
in the loan portfolio.
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Bad loans
Unlikely to pay
Past due loans
Stage 3 loans
of which debt securities

Stage 2 loans
of which debt securities

Stage 1 loans
of which debt securities

Net losses/recoveries on impairment of loans
Profits/losses from changes in contracts without derecognition

Net provisions for risks and charges for credit risk associated with
commitments and financial guarantees given

Net adjustments to loans

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

Fourth
quarter
(@
-261
-167
-83
-511

-163

16

-616

2023
Third Second First
quarter quarter quarter
(b) (c) (d)
-90 -95 -90
-212 =77 -205
-61 -90 -61
-363 -262 -356
- -3 -
-3 -23 111
-7 2 -2
-1 -76 15
3 6 12
-367 -361 -230
8 -3 6
2 -3 35
-357 -367 -189

(millions of euro)
Changes %

(a/b) (b/c) (c/d)

-5.3 5.6
-21.2 -62.4
36.1 -32.2 475
40.8 38.5 -26.4
-87.0
-98.7
-50.0 -50.0
61.3 1.7 57.0
72.5 -2.7 94.2

At the quarterly level, the fourth quarter of 2023 shows greater adjustments to loans than other periods of the year, due to the
effect of the greater adjustments to Stage 3 loans, inclusive of a component of 148 million euro relating to de-risking, and

Stage 2 loans.

Other net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets

Other net provisions

Net impairment losses on instruments measured at amortised cost
and on instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Net impairment losses on other assets

Other net provisions and net impairment losses on other
assets

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
-256 -106
-117 -22
-197 -142
-570 -270

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

(millions of euro)
Changes

amount %

150

95
55 38.7

300
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Quarterly development
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Within the layout of the reclassified income statement, this caption
primarily consists of other net provisions for risks and charges and
net impairment losses on other assets and on securities measured
at amortised cost and at fair value. In 2023, other net provisions
and net impairment losses on other assets amounted to 570
million euro, a value in excess of the 270 million euro recognised
in 2022. The increase should be viewed in relation to all
components of the caption: the other net provisions (+150 million
euro), which, in addition to provisions for legal disputes, include 32
million euro as the estimate of the cost of the new Reward prize
contest “Intesa Sanpaolo 2024”, launched to raise the loyalty of
customers, and 114 million euro, in addition to the 80 million euro
already set aside in December 2022, undertaken during
consolidation of the investee Banca Intesa Russia in order to write
off its financial contribution to the consolidated financial
statements; net adjustments to securities measured at amortised
cost and securites measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (+95 million euro), mainly attributable to
the credit risk component; net impairment losses on other assets
(+55 million euro) attributable to the Parent Company, which
reflect the higher impairment finalised in 2023 on equity

investments subject to significant influence or joint control and the valuation effects of other activities.

(millions of euro)
2023 Changes %

Fourth Third Second First
quarter quarter quarter quarter
(@ (b) (c) (d) (a/b) (b/c) (crd)

Other net provisions -113 -46 -61 -36 -24.6 69.4
Net impairment losses on instruments measured at amortised cost and on

instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income -34 4 -50 -37 35.1
Net impairment losses on other assets -185 -5 -10 3 -50.0

Other net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets -332 -47 -121 -70 -61.2 72.9

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

In terms of economic performance, the fourth quarter of 2023 recorded more provisions than in the first three quarters of
2023, mainly owing to the greater net impairment losses on other assets.
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Other income (expenses)

In this caption of the reclassified income statement, the “profits (losses) on financial assets measured at amortised cost other
than loans, equity investments and other investments” are aggregated together with other income and expenses not strictly
linked to operations.

In 2023, other income amounted to 348 million euro, including 192 million euro in profits on the disposal of the stake held in
Zhong Ou Asset Management Company Limited (ZOAM)*? and 116 million euro in profits on the disposal to Nexi of the
acquiring business line of the subsidiary operating in Croatia. The figure was higher than the 202 million euro recorded in
2022, which included capital gains of 195 million euro on the sale of Intesa Sanpaolo Formazione and 41 million euro of costs
of contributions and solidarity measures benefiting the people of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group.

Gross income (loss)
In 2023, income before taxes on income from continuing operations came to 12,058 million euro, up sharply (+64.6%)
compared to the 7,325 million euro in 2022.

Taxes on income

Current and deferred taxes came to 3,438 million euro (including a benefit of 352 million euro arising from the recognition of
deferred tax assets relating to the former UBI Banca), corresponding to a 28.5% tax rate, in line with that recorded in 2022
(28.4%).

Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives
This caption, the main component of which relates to adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets, rose to 222
million euro from 140 million euro in 2022, reflecting the loss of the positive effects referring to personnel expenses.

Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax)

This caption comprises amounts attributable to the revaluation of loans, debts, real estate and the recognition of new
intangible assets, in application of IFRS 3, upon recognition of acquisition of equity investments and/or aggregate assets. In
2023 this caption amounted to -161 million euro, compared to the -146 million euro recorded in the previous year.

Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry (net of tax)

The caption includes the levies imposed by legislative provisions and/or aimed at maintaining the stability of the banking
industry and consequently outside the company management. In 2023 these charges amounted to 485 million euro,
compared with the 576 million euro of 2022, thanks to the reduction of costs relating to deposit resolution and guarantee
funds and the revaluation of the Atlante Fund.

The charges recognised during the reporting period may be broken down as follows: 221 million euro attributable to resolution
funds, 253 million euro to deposit guarantee funds and 20 million euro to levies recognised by international subsidiary banks,
with a positive effect of 9 million euro from the revaluation of the Atlante Fund.

Minority interests
In 2023 the caption showed net income of 28 million euro attributable to minority interests relating to companies subject to
line-by-line consolidation, compared with 4 million euro in 2022.

Net income (loss)

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group closed 2023 with a net income of 7,724 million euro, up on the same period of 2022 (+76.4%).
This result represents the best performance since 2007, confirming a diversified business model with leadership in Wealth
Management and Protection and Advisory, efficient and ready in particular to seize the potential effects of a recovery by
assets under management. The sharp increase is attributable to the positive trend in revenues, driven by the interest
component, the small flow of adjustments to loans and the focused management of operating costs, which incorporate the
effects of the renewal of the national bargaining agreement.

42 The gain shown takes into account the remaining amount received from the buyer, as consideration, following the payment of the Chinese local tax on
the gain, made by Intesa Sanpaolo in September and recognised under the caption taxes. Considered net of tax, the capital gain contribution remained
unchanged at 154 million euro, as already reported in the Half-yearly Report as at 30 June 2023.



Balance sheet aggregates

General aspects

A reclassified condensed Balance sheet has been prepared to permit a more immediate understanding of the Group's assets
and liabilities.

Even with the application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 by the insurance companies, the structure of the Reclassified balance sheet

remained unchanged, preserving the separate indication of the balance sheet captions pertaining to the insurance segment

from those regarding banking operations, also for the component now valued based on the same accounting standard,

IFRS 9. More specifically, with regard to the main balance sheet captions common to the banking and insurance segments:

- the financial assets and liabilities of the insurance segment continue to be presented separately, without detailed sub-
captions, but condensing the amounts in dedicated rows of the Reclassified balance sheet;

- hedging derivatives related to insurance captions are presented within the insurance captions (different from those
relating to banking captions, which are included in the captions “Other assets” and “Other liabilities”);

- the technical reserves of the insurance segment were replaced (in line with the balance sheet schedule) with Insurance
liabilities under IFRS 17;

- the valuation reserves of financial instruments of insurance companies continue to be presented separately, including
both the IFRS 17 component and the IFRS 9 component of insurance captions.

The substantially unchanged presentation of the Reclassified balance sheet schedule is also matched by the continued

separate presentation of comments between balance sheet captions of banking operations, substantially in complete

continuity, and insurance operations, whose tables breaking down the captions have been aligned with the provisions of

IFRS 17 and the application of IFRS 9.

The Reclassified balance sheet shows the amounts related to 31 December 2023, as well as the comparison figures related
to 31 December 2022. In line with the adjustment of the comparison data in the consolidated financial statements due to the
retrospective application of the two standards, the 2022 year-end data in the reclassified schedules have also been adjusted
on a like-for-like basis.

There were no restatements of the data as at 31 December 2023 due to changes in the scope of consolidation.

Certain aggregations and reclassifications have been made with respect to the model provided in Circular 262/2005 of the
Bank of Italy. Breakdowns of those aggregations and reclassifications are provided in separate tables included in the
attachments to this report, as also required by Consob in its Communication 6064293 of 28 July 2006.

Aggregatlons and reclassifications of captions of the reclassified balance sheet refer to:
the separate presentation of financial assets of the banking segment constituting Due from banks and Loans to
customers, regardless of the accounting portfolios to which they have been allocated;

- the separate presentation of financial assets of the banking segment not constituting loans, divided into financial assets
measured at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, net of the amounts reclassified to Due from banks and Loans to customers;

- the separate presentation of financial assets and liabilities of the insurance segment, grouped based on the valuation
method adopted for the purposes of IFRS 9 (fair value or amortised cost);

- the aggregation in one single caption of Property, equipment and intangible assets, broken down into the sub-captions
Assets owned and Rights of use acquired under leases;

- the inclusion of Hedging derivatives and Fair value change of financial assets/liabilities in hedged portfolios of the
banking segment under Other assets/Other liabilities;

- the inclusion of Insurance assets in Other assets;

- the separate presentation of Due to banks at amortised cost of the banking segment;

- the aggregation of Due to customers at amortised cost and Securities issued of the banking segment into one caption;

- the aggregation in one single caption (Allowances for risks and charges) of allowances for specific purposes (Employee
termination indemnities and Allowances for risks and charges regarding: commitments and guarantees given, post-
employment benefits and other allowances for risks and charges);

- the reclassification of Lease payables to a specific sub-caption of Other liabilities;

- the presentation of Reserves as an aggregate and net of any own shares.
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Reclassified balance sheet

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from banks

Loans to customers
Loans to customers measured at amortised cost

Loans to customers designated at fair value through other comprehensive income and
through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at amortised cost which do not constitute loans
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets pertaining to insurance companies measured at amortised cost

Financial assets pertaining to insurance companies measured at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets pertaining to insurance companies measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Investments in associates and companies subject to joint control
Property, equipment and intangible assets
Assets owned
Rights of use acquired under leases
Tax assets
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Due to banks at amortised cost
Due to customers at amortised cost and securities issued
Financial liabilities held for trading
Financial liabilities designated at fair value
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost pertaining to insurance companies
Financial liabilities held for trading pertaining to insurance companies
Financial liabilities designated at fair value pertaining to insurance companies
Tax liabilities
Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Other liabilities
of which lease payables
Insurance liabilities
Allowances for risks and charges
of which allowances for commitments and financial guarantees given
Share capital
Reserves
Valuation reserves
Valuation reserves pertaining to insurance companies
Interim dividend
Equity instruments
Minority interests

Net income (loss)

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

31.12.2023

89,270
31,216

429,540
427,806

1,734
59,965
42,026
67,716

5

101,718

72,135
2,501
19,349
17,975
1,374
14,533
264
33,332

963,570

31.12.2023

92,497
546,206
43,486
21,344
2,199
90
51,438
1,946
2
15,096
1,217
119,849
5,290
524
10,369
42,560
-1,711
-298
-2,629
7,948
164
7,724

963,570

31.12.2022

112,924
31,273

446,854
444,244

2,610
52,690
46,546
48,008

3

103,052

69,792
2,013
19,742
18,248
1,494
18,130
638
22,922

974,587

31.12.2022

137,489
528,795
46,512
8,795
2,522
171
54,212
2,021
15
9,399
1,321
117,575
5,812
711
10,369
43,002
-1,939
-519
-1,400
7,211
166
4,379

974,587

(millions of euro)
Changes

amount %

-23,654 -20.9

-57 -0.2
-17,314 -3.9
-16,438 -3.7

-876 -33.6
7,275 13.8
-4,520 -9.7
19,708 41.1
2 66.7
-1,334 -1.3
2,343 3.4
488 24.2
-393 -2.0
-273 -1.5
-120 -8.0
-3,597 -19.8
-374 -58.6

10,410 45.4

-11,017 -1.1
Changes
amount %

-44,992 -32.7

17,411 3.3
-3,026 -6.5
12,549
-323 -12.8
-81 -47.4
-2,774 -5.1
-75 -3.7
-13 -86.7
5,697 60.6
-104 -7.9
2,274 19
-522 -9.0
-187 -26.3
-442 -1.0
-228 -11.8
-221 -42.6
1,229 87.8
737 10.2
-2 -1.2
3,345 76.4
-11,017 -1.1
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Quarterly development of the reclassified balance sheet

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from banks
Loans to customers
Loans to customers measured at amortised cost

Loans to customers designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income and through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at amortised cost which do not constitute
loans

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets pertaining to insurance companies measured at
amortised cost

Financial assets pertaining to insurance companies measured at fair
value through profit or loss

Financial assets pertaining to insurance companies measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Investments in associates and companies subject to joint control
Property, equipment and intangible assets
Assets owned
Rights of use acquired under leases
Tax assets
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Due to banks at amortised cost

Due to customers at amortised cost and securities issued
Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial liabilities designated at fair value

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost pertaining to insurance
companies

Financial liabilities held for trading pertaining to insurance companies

Financial liabilities designated at fair value pertaining to insurance
companies

Tax liabilities

Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

Other liabilities
of which lease payables
Insurance liabilities
Allowances for risks and charges
of which allowances for commitments and financial guarantees given
Share capital
Reserves
Valuation reserves
Valuation reserves pertaining to insurance companies
Interim dividend
Equity instruments
Minority interests

Net income (loss)

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

31/12
89,270
31,216

429,540
427,806

1,734

59,965
42,026

67,716

101,718

72,135
2,501
19,349
17,975
1,374
14,533
264
33,332

963,570

31/12

92,497
546,206
43,486
21,344

2,199
90

51,438
1,946

2
15,096
1,217
119,849
5,290
524
10,369
42,560
-1,711
-298
-2,629
7,948
164
7,724

963,570

2023
30/9
85,585
30,116
433,710
431,824

1,886

57,626
45,652

60,310

99,226

69,136
2,558
18,888
17,486
1,402
15,871
256
28,198

947,134

2023
30/9

97,390
533,143
47,428
16,388

2,422
193

50,715
3,116

13
11,138
1,231
115,616
4,897
538
10,369
42,464
-1,917
-466
7,939
164
6,122

947,134

30/6
79,875
30,128

437,497
435,583

1,914

60,052
48,434

59,369

102,480

71,724
2,599
18,892
17,457
1,435
16,080
614
27,458

955,205

30/6

94,077
532,468
47,639
13,608

2,326
96

53,160
2,938

22,107
1,260
119,381
4,944
539
10,369
42,585
-1,709
-375
7,217
152
4,222

955,205

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

31/3
77,700
30,468

449,860
447,419

2,441

58,744
45,988

53,314

103,096

72,562
2,395
19,462
17,995
1,467
17,104
243
24,236

955,175

31/3

120,018
515,369
45,681
10,893

2,275
111

54,099
1,964

17,716
1,292
119,815
5,630
673
10,369
45,538
-1,794
-420
-1,400
7,214
141
1,956

955,175

(millions of euro)
2022

31/12
112,924
31,273
446,854
444,244

2,610

52,690
46,546

48,008

103,052

69,792
2,013
19,742
18,248
1,494
18,130
638
22,922

974,587

2022
31/12

137,489
528,795
46,512
8,795

2,522
171

54,212
2,021

15
9,399
1,321

117,575
5,812
711
10,369
43,002
-1,939
-519
-1,400
7,211
166
4,379

974,587

94



Report on operations — Balance sheet aggregates

BANKING BUSINESS

Loans to customers

Loans to customers: breakdown
(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes
% % amount %
breakdown breakdown

Current accounts 21,488 5.0 22,970 5.1 -1,482 -6.5
Mortgages 225,521 52.4 242,299 54.3 -16,778 -6.9
Advances and other loans 155,080 36.1 154,477 34.6 603 0.4
Commercial banking loans 402,089 93.5 419,746 94.0 -17,657 -4.2
Repurchase agreements 16,636 3.9 15,366 3.4 1,270 8.3
Loans represented by securities 5,850 1.4 6,246 14 -396 -6.3
Non-performing loans 4,965 1.2 5,496 1.2 -531 -9.7
Loans to customers 429,540 100.0 446,854 100.0 -17,314 319

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

As at 31 December 2023, loans to customers of the Group amounted to 429.5 billion euro, down (-3.9%) year on year. This
performance was essentially the result of the decrease in commercial banking loans (-4.2%, or -17.7 billion euro), attributable
to the downturn in mortgage loans to individuals and businesses and, to a lesser extent, in overdraft facilities. The substantial
rise in interest rates, which stabilised in the final months of the year, prompted businesses to use their liquidity to limit their
use of bank loans. Advances and loans moved in the opposite direction, rising slightly (+0.4%, or +0.6 billion euro).

Among the other components, which represent a less significant proportion of the total aggregate, there were decreases in
non-performing loans (-9.7% or -0.5 billion euro) and loans represented by securities (-6.3%, or -0.4 billion euro), whereas
repurchase agreements increased by 8.3% (+1.3 billion euro).

In the domestic medium/long-term loan market, disbursements to households in 2023 (including the small business customers
having similar needs to family businesses) amounted to approximately 14.4 billion euro, while disbursements to businesses
under the Banca dei Territori scope (including customers with turnover of up to 350 million euro) came to 9.8 billion euro.
Loans granted by the Agribusiness segment exceeded 1.6 billion euro. The medium/long-term disbursements to customers of
the IMI Corporate & Investment Banking Division amounted to 13.7 billion euro, excluding the international portion. Overall
disbursements within Italy, inclusive of the loans to the non-profit sector, disbursements through third-party networks and
Prestitalia totalled 40.3 billion euro. If the activities of the international subsidiary banks and the international part of IMI C&IB
are included, the Group’s medium/long-term disbursements totalled 60.4 billion euro.

As at 31 December 2023, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s share of the Italian domestic market was estimated at 18.4% for total
loans to customers. This estimate was based on the sample deriving from the ten-day report of the Bank of Italy as the global
banking system figures for the end of December are not yet available.

With reference to the specific measures to support the production system set out due to the COVID-19 pandemic, it is
highlighted that Intesa Sanpaolo, the first Bank in Italy to sign the collaboration protocol with SACE, has provided an overall
credit line of 50 billion euro dedicated to loans for businesses. Overall, at the end of 2023, a total of 49 billion euro* of loans
backed by government guarantee had been granted, also through the SME Fund, since the beginning of the pandemic (in
application of the “Liquiditd” Law Decree no. 23 of 8 April 2020), of which 13.4 billion euro SACE and approximately
35.6 billion euro the SME Fund, without significant changes compared to December 2022. The data regarding the monitoring
of the guarantees from the “Fondo Centrale di Garanzia” (Central Guarantee Fund) do not present significant risks, thanks to
careful and timely management.

At consolidated level, also considering the operations in the other countries where the Group has a presence, as at December
2023 the residual debt of exposures subject to government guarantee schemes totalled 24.5 billion euro, compared to
33.2 billion euro in December 2022. The decrease, essentially attributable to the Parent Company, was correlated with the
redemptions during the period.

Information regarding loans subject to public guarantees is provided at the bottom of several tables in the sections on the
balance sheet and on credit risk of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements, as required by the Bank of Italy.

As part of its mission to support Italy’s economy, also note that, in relation to the measures established by the “Rilancio”
Decree (Law Decree 34/2020) for the relaunch of the construction sector, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has developed specific
solutions not only for those who want to transfer their tax credit directly but also for businesses that use invoice discounts for
the purchase of tax credits and the related settlement, with predefined prices and a dedicated advisory service through a
partnership with the company Deloitte. The process of acquiring tax credits is subject to comprehensive controls that allow the
Bank to demonstrate the effective fulfilment of the specific due diligence requirements.

From the launch of operations — carried out through the Banca dei Territori Division and IMI Corporate & Investment Banking
Division — to the end of December 2023 tax credits for a total of 27.1 billion euro have been purchased, in addition to
4.4 billion euro of contracts signed and an additional 5.7 billion euro in the process of being acquired. Net of decreases of

43 Including the former UBI Banca Group and considering the sale of branches carried out in the first half of 2021.
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around 7 billion euro (attributable to offsetting carried out during the year, deferrals recognised, resales carried out and the
adjustment to fair value, where required by the business model of reference), as at 31 December 2023 tax credits of
20.1 billion euro were recognised in the financial statements, under caption 130 Other assets of the Consolidated balance
sheet and Other assets of the Reclassified consolidated balance sheet.

Banca dei Territori

IMI Corporate & Investment Banking
International Subsidiary Banks
Private Banking

Asset Management

Insurance

Total business areas
Corporate Centre

Intesa Sanpaolo Group

(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes
amount %
232,411 247,913 -15,502 -6.3
127,167 129,791 -2,624 -2.0
42,050 40,212 1,838 4.6
14,372 15,104 -732 -4.8
243 282 -39 -13.8
416,243 433,302 -17,059 -3.9
13,297 13,552 -255 -1.9
429,540 446,854 -17,314 -3.9

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued

operations.

Business areas
Loans to customers

Banca dei Territori 55.7%

IMI Corporate &
Investment Banking 30.6%

International Subsidiary

Banks 10.1%
Asset Management 0.1%
Al Private Banking 3.5%

Insurance -

L4
|

In the analysis by business area, the Banca dei Territori Division,
which accounts for 55.7% of the aggregate of the Group’s
business areas, recorded a decrease compared to the previous
year (-6.3%, or -15.5 billion euro), due above all to loans to
businesses, which used their liquidity to reduce their credit
facilities and, to a lesser extent, loans to retail customers, who
decreased the demand for mortgage loans, in response to the
sudden rise in rates. The loans of the IMI Corporate & Investment
Banking Division also decreased (-2%, or -2.6 billion euro), mainly
attributable to Global Corporate loans, which more than offset the
growth in Global Markets and in business with financial institutions
customers, as did those of the Private Banking Division (-4.8%, or
-0.7 billion euro), consisting mainly of short-term credit facilities.
The loans of the International Subsidiary Banks Division increased
(+4.6%, or +1.8 billion euro), in connection with the greater
contribution of the subsidiaries operating in Slovakia, Croatia,
Hungary and Serbia, partly offset by the decline of loans in Egypt.
The loans of the Asset Management Division, which are relatively

modest in scope owing to its line of business, decreased by 13.8%.
The Corporate Centre’s loans on central assets declined moderately (-1.9%).
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Loans to customers: credit quality

(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Change
Net exposure % Net exposure %  Net exposure
breakdown breakdown
Bad loans 937 0.2 1,131 0.2 -194
Unlikely to pay 3,571 0.9 3,952 0.9 -381
Past due loans 457 0.1 413 0.1 44
Non-Performing Loans 4,965 1.2 5,496 1.2 -531
Non-performing loans in Stage 3 (subject to
impairment) 4,917 1.2 5,463 1.2 -546
Non-performing loans measured at fair value through
profit or loss 48 - 33 - 15
Performing loans 418,630 97.4 435,026 97.4 -16,396
Stage 2 36,186 8.4 43,865 9.8 -7,679
Stage 1 381,755 88.8 390,278 87.4 -8,523
Performing loans measured at fair value through
profit or loss 689 0.2 883 0.2 -194
Performing loans represented by securities 5,850 1.4 6,246 14 -396
Stage 2 339 0.1 815 0.2 -476
Stage 1 5,511 1.3 5,431 12 80
Loans held for trading 95 - 86 - 9
Total loans to customers 429,540 100.0 446,854 100.0 -17,314
of which forborne performing 4,781 6,920 -2,139
of which forborne non-performing 1,800 2,063 -263
Loans to customers classified as non-current 139 368 229

assets held for sale

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

Net non-performing loans of the Group amounted to 5 billion euro at the end of the year, a new record low. The reduction
compared to the previous year (-531 million euro; -9.7%) confirms the virtuous trend already recorded in previous years. The
ratio of net non-performing loans to total net loans to customers came to 1.2% (0.9% according to the EBA definition) with the
coverage of non-performing loans amounting to 49.8% compared to 48.4% at the end of 2022.

In further detail, in December 2023 bad loans amounted to 937 million euro (-17.2%), net of adjustments, representing 0.2%
of total net loans with a coverage ratio of 72.4%. Loans included in the unlikely-to-pay category amounted to 3.6 billion euro,
down by 9.6%, accounting for 0.9% of total net loans to customers, with a coverage ratio of 39.3%. Past due loans amounted
to 457 million euro (+10.7%), with a coverage ratio of 27%. Within the non-performing loan category, forborne exposures,
generated by forbearance measures for borrowers experiencing difficulty in meeting their financial obligations, amounted to
1.8 billion euro, with a coverage ratio of 44%. Forborne exposures in the performing loan category amounted to 4.8 billion
euro.

At 31 December 2023, net performing loans amounted to 418.6 billion euro, down over the year by 16.4 billion euro (-3.8%),
recording an overall coverage ratio of 0.58% of which 4.59% (from 4.23% at the end of 2022) in respect of loans in Stage 2
and 0.18% (from 0.17% at the end of December 2022) in respect of those in Stage 1. In terms of stock, net loans in Stage 1
decreased by 2.2% to 381.8 billion euro and those in Stage 2 fell by 17.5% to 36.2 billion euro.

The decreases in Stage 2 were mainly due to the effects of repayments and reductions as a result of management and
portfolio dynamics, accompanied — with a lesser impact — by transfers to non-performing status and the additional de-risking
actions on the Russia portfolio, as well as reclassifications to Stage 1 of forborne portfolios (mainly originating from COVID
moratoria) following the successful completion of the probation period. There were also classifications to Stage 2 in the fourth
quarter due to adjustments to the results of the models.
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(millions of euro)
31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Change

Gross Total Net Gross Total Net Net
exposure adjustments exposure exposure adjustments exposure exposure

Bad loans 3,390 -2,453 937 3,667 -2,536 1,131 -194
Unlikely to pay 5,880 -2,309 3,571 6,423 -2,471 3,952 -381
Past due loans 626 -169 457 552 -139 413 44
Non-Performing Loans 9,896 -4,931 4,965 10,642 -5,146 5,496 -531
Non-performing loans in Stage 3 (subject to impairment) 9,818 -4,901 4,917 10,597 -5,134 5,463 -546
Non-performing loans measured at fair value through
profit or loss 78 -30 48 45 -12 33 15
Performing loans 421,066 -2,436 418,630 437,616 -2,590 435,026 -16,396
Stage 2 37,927 -1,741 36,186 45,801 -1,936 43,865 -7,679
Stage 1 382,450 -695 381,755 390,932 -654 390,278 -8,523
Performing loans measured at fair value through profit or
loss 689 - 689 883 - 883 -194
Performing loans represented by securities 5,875 -25 5,850 6,274 -28 6,246 -396
Stage 2 358 -19 339 838 -23 815 -476
Stage 1 5,517 -6 5511 5,436 -5 5,431 80
Loans held for trading 95 - 95 86 - 86 9
Total loans to customers 436,932 -7,392 429,540 454,618 -7,764 446,854 -17,314
of which forborne performing 5,118 -337 4,781 7,473 -553 6,920 -2,139
of which forborne non-performing 3,217 -1,417 1,800 3,480 -1,417 2,063 -263

Loans to customers classified as non-current assets

held for sale 181 -42 139 754 -386 368 £229

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

As at 31 December 2023 the Group’s gross non-performing loans amounted to 9.9 billion euro, a decrease of 0.7 billion euro
(-7%) over the twelve months, of which 0.6 billion euro attributable to the fourth quarter. As a percentage of the total they
remained stable at 2.3% of 2022 (1.8% in 2023 and 1.9% in 2022 in accordance with the EBA definitions).

The process of reducing non-performing loans benefited from modest inflows from performing loans, due to the performances
of non-performing loans prevention initiatives, as well as the de-risking initiatives carried out during the year.

Gross inflows in 2023 totalled 3.3 billion euro, of which 1.1 billion euro in the fourth quarter. In 2022 the gross inflow was
3.8 billion euro, inclusive of 0.5 billion euro attributable to exposures to Russia and Ukraine*4.

In net terms, that is, net of outflows to performing loans, inflows amounted to 2.5 billion euro (0.9 billion euro attributable to the
fourth quarter). In 2022 net inflows from performing loans totalled 2.8 billion euro.

The table shows that the decrease in gross non-performing loans was comprised of 0.5 billion euro in unlikely-to-pay
exposures (-8.5%) and 0.3 billion euro in bad loans (-7.6%), whereas past due positions increased slightly, by 0.1 billion euro
(+13.4%).

At the end of December 2023, loans classified among assets held for sale, primarily non-performing, amounted to 181 million
euro gross and 139 million euro net (754 million euro and 368 million euro, respectively, at the end of 2022).

44 0.2 billion euro net of value adjustments.
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Other banking business financial assets and liabilities: breakdown

(millions of euro)

Type of financial instruments Financial assets measured Financial assets measured Instruments measured at TOTAL Financial liabilities
at fair value through profit  at fair value through other amortised cost which do financial held for trading
or loss comprehensive income not constitute loans assets *)

Debt securities issued by

Governments

31.12.2023 5,953 44,764 37,834 88,551 X
31.12.2022 7,511 33,959 29,523 70,993 X
Changes amount -1,558 10,805 8,311 17,558 X
Changes % -20.7 31.8 28.2 24.7 X
Other debt securities

31.12.2023 4,379 21,660 22,131 48,170 X
31.12.2022 3,075 12,701 23,167 38,943 X
Changes amount 1,304 8,959 -1,036 9,227 X
Changes % 42.4 70.5 -4.5 23.7 X
Equities

31.12.2023 2,385 1,292 X 3,677 X
31.12.2022 1,352 1,348 X 2,700 X
Changes amount 1,033 -56 X 977 X
Changes % 76.4 -4.2 X 36.2 X
Quotas of UCI

31.12.2023 3,817 X X 3,817 X
31.12.2022 3,739 X X 3,739 X
Changes amount 78 X X 78 X
Changes % 2.1 X X 2.1 X
Due to banks and to customers

31.12.2023 X X X X -8,713
31.12.2022 X X X X -7,241
Changes amount X X X X 1,472
Changes % X X X X 20.3
Financial derivatives

31.12.2023 24,217 X X 24,217 -25,050
31.12.2022 29,933 X X 29,933 -30,540
Changes amount -5,716 X X -5,716 -5,490
Changes % -19.1 X X -19.1 -18.0
Credit derivatives

31.12.2023 1,275 X X 1,275 -1,137
31.12.2022 936 X X 936 -935
Changes amount 339 X X 339 202
Changes % 36.2 X X 36.2 216
TOTAL 31.12.2023 42,026 67,716 59,965 169,707 -34,900
TOTAL 31.12.2022 46,546 48,008 52,690 147,244 -38,716
Changes amount -4,520 19,708 7,275 22,463 -3,816
Changes % -9.7 41.1 13.8 15.3 -9.9

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

(*) The amount of the item does not include certificates which are included in the direct deposits from banking business table.

The table above shows the breakdown of other financial assets and liabilities, excluding those pertaining to insurance
companies. Financial liabilities held for trading do not include certificates, which are included in the direct deposits from
banking business aggregates.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s other financial assets, excluding those of the insurance companies, amounted to 169.7 billion
euro, up by 22.5 billion euro compared to the previous year (+15.3%). Financial liabilities held for trading declined (-9.9%) to
34.9 billion euro.

The increase in total financial assets was essentially due to the performance of debt securities (+26.8 billion euro), only partly
offset by the decline in financial derivatives (-5.7 billion euro). The trend in financial liabilities held for trading was due to
decrease in financial derivatives (-5.5 billion euro), partially offset by the increase in amounts due to banks and customers
(+1.5 billion euro).

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, amounting to 42 billion euro, were down (-9.7%, or -4.5 billion
euro) due to the decline in financial derivatives and government debt securities, partially offset by the increase in other debt
securities and equities.

Instruments measured at amortised cost which do not constitute loans amounted to 60 billion euro, up by 13.8%, due to the
performance of debt securities issued by governments. HTC debt securities have primarily been classified to Stage 1 (88.3%).
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Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, which reached 67.7 billion euro, also increased
year on year (+41.1%), due to the performance of debt securities. HTCS debt securities have been classified almost
exclusively to Stage 1 (97.5%).

Debt securities: stage allocation
(millions of euro)

Debt securities: stage allocation Financial assets measured Instruments measured at TOTAL
at fair value through other amortised cost which do not
comprehensive income constitute loans
Stage 1
31.12.2023 64,736 52,961 117,697
31.12.2022 46,475 49,502 95,977
Changes amount 18,261 3,459 21,720
Changes % 39.3 7.0 22.6
Stage 2
31.12.2023 1,688 6,982 8,670
31.12.2022 185 3,180 3,365
Changes amount 1,503 3,802 5,305

Changes %

Stage 3

31.12.2023 - 22 22
31.12.2022 - 8 8
Changes amount - 14 14

Changes % -

TOTAL 31.12.2023 66,424 59,965 126,389
TOTAL 31.12.2022 46,660 52,690 99,350
Changes amount 19,764 7,275 27,039
Changes % 42.4 13.8 27.2

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

The increase since December in securities classified as Stage 2, which totalled 5.3 billion euro, related for the most part
(72%) to instruments measured at amortised cost which do not constitute loans. Indeed, the latter received inflows from Stage
1, mainly attributable to securitisations — including one involving performing loans arising from leases (Teseo), which entered
the Parent Company’s portfolio at the end of 2022.
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Customer financial assets

(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes
% % amount %
breakdown breakdown
Direct deposits from banking business 576,136 44.1 545,386 45.3 30,750 5.6
Direct deposits from insurance business 172,746 13.3 173,672 14.4 -926 -0.5
Indirect customer deposits 722,194 55.3 656,663 54.6 65,531 10.0
Netting (a) -165,543 -12.7 -171,872 -14.3 -6,329 -3.7
Customer financial assets 1,305,533 100.0 1,203,849 100.0 101,684 8.4

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.
The amount for indirect customer deposits as at 31 December 2022 has been restated, for the assets under administration and in custody component, as a result of the delisting
of shares, which, as they are no longer listed, are included at nominal value.

(a) The netting relates to components of indirect customer deposits that also constitute types of direct deposits (financial liabilities of the insurance segment measured at fair value
and insurance liabilities).

As at 31 December 2023 customer financial assets, after netting, reached 1,306 billion euro, up year on year (+8.4%, or
+101.7 billion euro), driven by indirect customer deposits (+10%, or +65.5 billion euro) and by direct deposits from banking
business (+5.6%, or +30.8 billion euro). Direct deposits from insurance business were down slightly (-0.5%, or -0.9 billion
euro).

Direct deposits from banking business
The table below sets out amounts due to customers, securities issued, including those designated at fair value and
certificates, which represent an alternative form of funding to bonds.

(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes
% % amount %
breakdown breakdown

Current accounts and deposits 407,910 70.8 432,976 79.4 -25,066 -5.8

Repurchase agreements and securities lending 13,009 2.3 1,284 0.2 11,725
Bonds 78,321 13.6 52,364 9.6 25,957 49.6
Certificates of deposit 2,334 0.4 2,094 0.4 240 11.5
Subordinated liabilities 12,158 2.1 12,474 2.3 -316 -2.5
Other deposits 62,404 10.8 44,194 8.1 18,210 41.2
of which designated at fair value (*) 29,930 5.2 16,591 3.0 13,339 80.4
Direct deposits from banking business 576,136 100.0 545,386 100.0 30,750 5.6

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

(*) Figures relating to investment certificates and other forms of funding included in the Balance sheet under “Financial liabilities held for trading” and “Financial liabilities
designated at fair value”. Specifically:

- as at 31 December 2023, this caption consisted of 8,586 million euro of certificates classified under “Financial liabilities held for trading” and 21,344 million euro of certificates
(21,340 million euro) and other forms of funding (4 million euro) classified under “Liabilities designated at fair value”;

- as at 31 December 2022, this caption consisted of 7,796 million euro of certificates classified under “Financial liabilities held for trading” and 8,795 million euro of certificates
(8,791 million euro) and other forms of funding (4 million euro) classified under “Liabilities designated at fair value”.

Bearer instruments issued are conventionally fully attributed to funding from customers.
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The Group’s direct deposits from banking business came to 576.1 billion euro, growing year on year (+5.6%, or +30.8 billion
euro).

That performance was the result of an increase in time direct deposits (bonds, repurchase agreements, and certificates of
deposit) totalling 37.9 billion euro and other funding (+18.2 billion euro), including certificates and commercial paper, which
more than offset the downturn in current accounts and deposits (-25.1 billion euro).

This recomposition within the direct deposits aggregate should be viewed in relation to a scenario of increases in interest
rates, where companies used their liquidity to reduce their use of bank loans, and retail customers redirected a portion of their
available funds held on current accounts to more remunerative investment products, such as bonds and certificates, as well
as government and corporate bond issues, which increased the dossiers of assets under administration (+51.7 billion euro).
As at 31 December 2023, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group's direct deposits (deposits and bonds) represented a share of the
domestic market of 22.1%. As described above with reference to loans, this estimate is based on the sample deriving from the
ten-day report produced by the Bank of Italy.

(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes

amount %
Banca dei Territori 270,365 291,089 -20,724 -7.1
IMI Corporate & Investment Banking 113,450 94,785 18,665 19.7
International Subsidiary Banks 57,910 54,364 3,546 6.5
Private Banking 45,805 50,447 -4,642 -9.2
Asset Management 16 26 -10 -38.5
Insurance - - - -
Total business areas 487,546 490,711 -3,165 -0.6
Corporate Centre 88,590 54,675 33,915 62.0
Intesa Sanpaolo Group 576,136 545,386 30,750 5.6

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.

In the analysis of funding by sector, the Banca dei Territori

Business areas Division, which accounts for 55.4% of the aggregate attributable to

Direct deposits from banking business the Group’s operating units, came in below the levels of the

previous year (-7.1%, or -20.7 billion euro), in view of the decrease

in amounts due to customers. In response to a quick rise in

Banca dei Territori 55.4% interest rates, business customers used their liquidity to limit the

use of bank loans, and households, whose purchasing power was

eroded by inflation, redirected a portion of their available funds on
current accounts to more remunerative investment products.

Private Banking was also down (-9.2%, or -4.6 billion euro), due to

IMI Corporate &
Investment Banking 23.3%

International Subsidiary the reduction in current account deposits only partly offset by the

Banks 11.9% increase in time deposits. In contrast, direct deposits increased for

S Asset Management - IMI Corporate & Investment Banking (+19.7%, or +18.7 billion
, Private Banking 9.4% euro) as a result of the growth in transactions in certificates and
securities issued by the Luxembourg and Irish subsidiaries and, to

| Insurance -

a lesser extent, for International Subsidiary Banks (+6.5%, or +3.5
billion euro), driven by the positive performance of the subsidiaries
operating in Slovakia, Serbia and Hungary.

The growth in Corporate Centre funding was mainly attributable to transactions in wholesale securities and repurchase
agreements.
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Indirect customer deposits
(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes
% % amount %
breakdown breakdown

Mutual funds @ 155,524 21.6 149,790 22.8 5,734 3.8
Open-ended pension funds and individual pension plans 16,667 2.3 11,986 1.8 4,681 39.1
Portfolio management 80,066 111 73,591 11.2 6,475 8.8
Insurance liabilities and insurance financial liabilities 165,543 22.9 171,872 26.2 -6,329 -3.7
Relations with institutional customers 26,231 3.6 22,926 35 3,305 14.4
Assets under management 444,031 61.5 430,165 65.5 13,866 3.2
Assets under administration and in custody 278,163 38.5 226,498 345 51,665 22.8
Indirect customer deposits 722,194 100.0 656,663 100.0 65,531 10.0

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.
The amount for assets under administration and in custody as at 31 December 2022 has been restated as a result of the delisting of shares, which, as they are no longer listed,
are included at nominal value.

(a) This caption does not include funds held by Group insurance companies and managed by the Group’s asset management companies, whose values are included in the
insurance liabilities and insurance financial liabilities, and the funds established by third parties and managed by Group companies, whose values are included in assets under
administration and in custody.

As at 31 December 2023, indirect customer deposits, which came
to 722.2 billion euro, increased by 10% year on year. The trend
was due to assets under administration and assets under
management, which also benefited from strong market
performance.

Quarterly development
Indirect customer deposits
(millions of euro)

3 Assets under management, which at 444 billion euro accounted for
E © = = o almost two-thirds of the total aggregate, were up (+3.2%, or
5 © @ o o 0 I HIF H
B @ - 8 5 @ s ~ +13.9 billion euro), due to the performance of portfolio
© © § 8 5 & 8 management schemes (+6.5 billion euro), mutual funds
© 7 © (+5.7 billion euro), open pension funds and individual pension
policies (+4.7 billion euro) and relations with institutional
customers (+3.3 billion euro), partially offset by the decline in
insurance liabilities and insurance financial liabilities (-6.3 billion
euro). In 2023, the new life business of the insurance companies
of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, including pension products,
amounted to 14.9 billion euro. Assets under administration,

) . ; 0
§ 8 8 8§ 8 8§ 8 8§  I507hilsn euro), concenrated i securtics and third-pary
& & & o s & 8 o ; -party
- 2 = = = 3 = < products in custody, to which investors have directed part of their

liquidity in order to benefit from higher yields.

Amounts due from and to banks - net interbank position

Starting in September 2022, excess liquidity is no longer deposited on the account of the Reserve Requirement aggregate
under “Due from banks”, but in on-demand deposits (overnight deposits) at the Central Bank, recognised in the caption “Cash
and cash equivalents”. At the end of 2023, this amount was 75.2 billion euro, of which 64 billion euro attributable to the Parent
Company (94.5 billion euro in December 2022, of which 89 billion euro attributable to the Parent Company)“°.

Calculated considering the liquidity referred to above, as at 31 December 2023 the Group’s net interbank position had a
positive imbalance of 13.9 billion euro compared to -11.8 billion euro at the end of 2022. This change primarily reflected the
significant reduction in amounts due to banks during the year (-32.7% to 92.5 billion euro), as a result of repayments, both
early and upon maturity, of the funds raised through the TLTRO operations, despite the decrease, in a smaller percentage, in
the aggregate of cash and cash equivalents and due from banks (-15.4% to 106.4 billion euro).

As at 31 December 2023, TLTRO Il refinancing was outstanding for a nominal 45.1 billion euro — almost all attributable to
Intesa Sanpaolo — of which 36 billion euro maturing in March 2024, 9 billion euro in June 2024 and 60 million euro in
September 2024. The amount was down from 96.1 billion euro twelve months earlier: in January 2023 Intesa Sanpaolo repaid
a nominal 20 billion euro in advance (4 billion euro obtained from the March 2020 auction, maturing in March 2023 and
16 billion euro in partial repayment of funds obtained in the June 2020 auction, maturing in June 2023), whereas the 31 billion
euro still outstanding from the loan obtained in the June 2020 auction matured on 28 June 2023.

45 In order to better represent the Group’s liquidity position, in addition to those held by the Parent Company, as a borrower of TLTRO funds, the
overnight deposits of the Group’s other euro area banks have been considered, even when those banks are not recipients of TLTRO funds.
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INSURANCE BUSINESS

Financial assets and liabilities pertaining to insurance companies

Financial assets
pertaining to
insurance companies
measured at fair
value through profit
or loss and

Hedging derivatives

Type of financial
instruments

Debt securities issued by Governments

31.12.2023 4,536
31.12.2022 2,754
Changes amount 1,782
Changes % 64.7
Other debt securities

31.12.2023 3,185
31.12.2022 3,640
Changes amount -455
Changes % -12.5
Equities

31.12.2023 5,523
31.12.2022 5,004
Changes amount 519
Changes % 10.4
Quotas of UCI

31.12.2023 87,998
31.12.2022 90,680
Changes amount -2,682
Changes % -3.0
Due from banks and loans to customers
31.12.2023 425
31.12.2022 876
Changes amount -451
Changes % -51.5
Due to banks

31.12.2023 X
31.12.2022 X
Changes amount X
Changes % X
Financial derivatives

31.12.2023 51
31.12.2022 98
Changes amount -47
Changes % -48.0
Credit derivatives

31.12.2023 -
31.12.2022 -
Changes amount -
Changes % -
TOTAL 31.12.2023 101,718
TOTAL 31.12.2022 103,052
Changes amount -1,334
Changes % -1.3

Financial assets
pertaining to

insurance companies

measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income

55,834
55,283
551
1.0

16,294
14,502
1,792
12.4

X X X X

72,135
69,792
2,343
3.4

Financial assets
pertaining to
insurance companies
measured at
amortised cost

66.7

X X X X

3
2
66.7

TOTAL
Financial
assets
pertaining to
insurance
companies

60,370
58,037
2,333
4.0

19,479
18,142
1,337
7.4

5,530
5,011
519
10.4

87,998
90,680
-2,682

-3.0

430
879
-449
-51.1

X X X X

51
98

-48.0

173,858
172,847
1,011
0.6

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

(millions of euro)

Due to Banks and
Financial
Derivatives
pertaining to
insurance
companies (*)

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

X X X X

740
637
103
16.2

90
171

-47.4

830
808
22
27

(*
)

(***)
(***)

(***)
(***)

(*) This amount does not include “Financial liabilities pertaining to insurance companies designated at fair value" included in the table on direct deposits from insurance business.

(**) Value included in the Balance sheet under “Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost pertaining to insurance companies”.

(***) Value included in the Balance Sheet under “Financial liabilities held for trading pertaining to insurance companies ".
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Financial assets and amounts due to banks, and financial derivatives pertaining to insurance companies, summarised in the
table above, amounted to 173.9 billion euro and 830 million euro, respectively. Financial assets were up moderately
compared to the previous year (+0.6%, or +1 billion euro) due to the increase in debt securities (+3.7 billion euro) and equities
(+0.5 billion euro), largely offset by the decrease in units of UCls (-2.7 billion euro) and, to a lesser extent, in amounts due
from banks and customers (-0.4 billion euro).

Direct deposits from insurance business

(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes
. Non- % . Non- %
HiE e "°@ preakdown itz e 1°%® preakdown
amount %

Liabilities for remaining
coverage (*) 117,353 944 118,297 68.4 115,236 1,042 116,278 67.0 2,019 1.7

of which: Present value of

cash flows 108,482 193 108,675 62.9 106,227 216 106,443 61.3 2,232 2.1

of which: Adjustment for non-

financial risks 387 16 403 0.2 268 1 269 0.2 134 49.8

of which: Contractual service

margin 8,484 336 8,820 5.1 8,741 328 9,069 5.2 -249 -2.7
Liabilities for incurred claims 667 885 1,552 1.0 758 539 1,297 0.7 255 19.7
Total Insurance liabilities 118,020 1,829 119,849 69.4 115,994 1,581 117,575 67.7 2,274 1.9
Investment contracts
Unit linked (**) 51,438 - 51,438 29.8 54,212 - 54,212 31.2 -2,774 -5.1
Total Financial liabilities 51,438 - 51,438 29.8 54,212 - 54,212 31.2 -2,774 -5.1
Other insurance deposits (***) 1,459 - 1,459 0.8 1,885 - 1,885 1.1 -426  -22.6
Direct deposits from
insurance business 170,917 1,829 172,746 100.0 172,091 1,581 173,672 100.0 -926 -0.5

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

(*) The value of the Liabilities for remaining coverage in the Non-Life columns also includes the liabilities measured using the simplified Premium Allocation
Approach, which does not require the opening in the individual breakdown captions.

(**) Values included in the Balance Sheet under “Financial liabilities designated at fair value pertaining to insurance companies”.
(***) Values included in the Balance Sheet under “Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost pertaining to insurance companies”. The caption includes
subordinated liabilities.

Direct deposits from insurance business stood at 172.7 billion euro as at 31 December 2023, down slightly (-0.5%, or -0.9
billion euro) compared to the end of 2022. The change was attributable to the reduction in the financial liabilities of the life
business (-5.1%, or -2.8 billion euro), consisting of unit-linked products, almost entirely offset by the increase in insurance
liabilities (+1.9%, +2.3 billion euro), particularly the liability for remaining coverage. Other insurance deposits, which represent
a marginal component of the total aggregate and include subordinated liabilities, decreased by 0.4 billion euro.
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND RELATED
LIABILITIES

This caption contains assets and related liabilities which no longer refer to continuing operations as they are being disposed
of. As at 31 December 2023 assets held for sale amounted to 264 million euro — consisting primarily of unlikely to pay loans
and performing positions subject to a de-risking operation expected to be concluded in the first half of 2024 — and associated
liabilities of 2 million euro. At the end of 2022, assets held for sale amounted to 638 million euro — essentially attributable to
non-performing assets and equity investments, the transactions for which were all concluded in the first half of 2023 — against
associated liabilities of 15 million euro.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s Shareholders’ equity came to 63,963 million euro, compared to 61,103 million euro at
the end of the previous year, which registered the interim dividends on the 2022 net income paid in November 2022 (1.4
billion euro). In December 2023 the aggregate included 7,724 million euro in net income accrued in 2023 and reflects the
payment of the remaining dividends on 2022 net income in May 2023 (1.6 billion euro), the interim dividend on 2023 net
income paid in November 2023 (2.6 billion euro), and the purchases of own shares for annulment (buyback), finalised in early
May 2023 (1.7 billion euro).

Valuation reserves

(millions of euro)

Reserve Change Reserve

31.12.2022 of the period 31.12.2023
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt
instruments) -1,774 266 -1,508
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(equities) -258 -218 -476
Property and equipment 1,749 114 1,863
Foreign investment hedges -10 -14 -24
Cash flow hedges -466 148 -318
Foreign exchange differences -1,247 -1 -1,248
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations - - -
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
(change in its creditworthiness) -45 -80 -125
Actuarial profits (losses) on defined benefit pension plans -238 51 -187
Portion of the valuation reserves connected with investments carried at equity 39 -38 1
Legally-required revaluations 311 - 311
Valuation reserves (excluding valuation reserves pertaining to insurance
companies) -1,939 228 -1,711
Valuation reserves pertaining to insurance companies -519 221 -298

Bank valuation reserves were negative (-1,711 million euro), down by 228 million euro compared to 31 December 2022
(-1,939 million euro). Positive changes came mainly from reserves on debt securities, cash flow hedges and property and
equipment, while negative changes came essentially from reserves on equities. Valuation reserves of the insurance
companies amounted to -298 million euro, compared to -519 million euro at the end of 2022.
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Reconciliation of the Parent Company’s shareholders’ equity and net income (loss) with consolidated
shareholders’ equity and net income (loss)
(millions of euro)

Shareholders’ of which

equity Netincome (loss)

as at

31.12.2023

Parent Company’s balances as at 31 December 2023 56,040 7,292

Effect of consolidation of subsidiaries 1,454 6,615
Effect of valuation at equity of companies subject to joint control and other

significant equity investments -284 43

Elimination of adjustments to equity investments and recognition of impairment of goodwill 6,768 13

Dividends collected during the period - -6,209

Other -15 -30

Consolidated balances as at 31 December 2023 63,963 7,724

OWN FUNDS AND CAPITAL RATIOS

(millions of euro)

Own funds and capital ratios 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
* IFRS 9 IFRS 9
"Fully loaded" "Transitional"
Own funds
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) net of regulatory adjustments 41,476 40,019 40,772
Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1) net of regulatory adjustments 7,707 7,207 7,207
TIER 1 CAPITAL 49,183 47,226 47,979
Tier 2 capital net of regulatory adjustments 8,799 9,127 8,381
TOTAL OWN FUNDS 57,982 56,353 56,360

Risk-weighted assets

Credit and counterparty risks 260,815 259,924 259,528
Market and settlement risk 12,621 10,338 10,338
Operational risks 28,471 25,486 25,486
Other specific risks (a) 203 91 91
RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS 302,110 295,839 295,443

% Capital ratios

Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio 13.7% 13.5% 13.8%
Tier 1 capital ratio 16.3% 16.0% 16.2%
Total capital ratio 19.2% 19.0% 19.1%

(*) The IFRS 9 transition period ended on 31 December 2022 and the amounts shown in the column as at 31 December 2023 are therefore comparable with the previous IFRS 9
fully loaded period.
(a) The caption includes all other elements not contemplated in the foregoing captions that are considered when calculating total capital requirements.

Own Funds, risk-weighted assets and the capital ratios as at 31 December 2023 were calculated according to the harmonised
rules and regulations for banks and investment companies contained in Directive 2013/36/EU (CRD IV) and in Regulation
(EVU) 575/2013 (CRR) of 26 June 2013, as amended respectively by Directive 2019/878/EU (CRD V) and by Regulation (EU)
876/2019 (CRR II), which transpose the banking supervision standards defined by the Basel Committee (the Basel 3
Framework) to European Union laws, and on the basis of the related Bank of Italy Circulars.

With reference to IFRS 9, the transitional period (2018-2022) introduced by Regulation (EU) no. 2395/2017, of which the
Group applied the “static” approach, ended on 31 December 2022.

With regard to the effects of the application of IFRS 17 and the end of the period of application of the deferral approach for
IFRS 9 for the insurance companies, refer to the section “Accounting policies” of this document.

Own funds

As at 31 December 2023, Own funds amounted to 57,982 million euro.

Even if the transitional period of IFRS 9 has ended, own funds take account of the provisions of the 2019 Budget Act, which
temporarily called for - up to 2028 - the adjustments upon first-time adoption of the Standard to be applied in instalments for
tax purposes, with the recognition of the resulting DTAs. These DTAs were fully included in the elements to be deducted from
own funds, over the same time period. Moreover, it is noted that the Intesa Sanpaolo Group did not apply either the new
transition regime for IFRS 9 (in force up to 31 December 2024), or the FVOCI prudential filter (ended on 31 December 2022).
These were both introduced by Regulation (EU) no. 873/2020 (Quick Fix) in the context of the pandemic.
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Own Funds also take into account the applicable amount, object of deduction from CET1, related to the minimum coverage of
losses on non-performing exposures, known as Minimum Loss Coverage, based on the provisions of Regulation (EU)
630/2019 of 17 April 2019.

Moreover, in compliance with Article 3 of the CRR (“Application of stricter requirements by institutions”), for the purpose of
calculating Own Funds as at 31 December 2023, the voluntary deduction of calendar provisioning*® on exposures within the
scope of Pillar 2 was included, which entailed the deduction of an impact of around 30 basis points from CET 1.

Since 30 June 2023, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has been complying with EBA Q&A 2021_6211, which clarifies that the
amount of goodwill to deduct from an institution’s CET 1 must be that relating to directly controlled insurance companies,
recognised at the date of acquisition of the significant investment in those companies, without considering the goodwill
referring to subsequent acquisitions made. The latter amount was included in the calculation of risk-weighted assets (RWA),
thus falling under the ordinary treatment that the Group reserves for equity investments in insurance companies.

With regard to AT1, following the authorisation for the repurchase and redemption granted by the ECB in July 2023, with
effect from the reporting date of 30 September 2023 the instrument issued in May 2017 with a nominal value of 750 million
euro has no longer been included, while the new perpetual bond issued in September with a nominal value of 1.25 billion euro
has been included.

For the purposes of calculating own funds as at 31 December 2023 the net income for 2023 was considered, less the related
dividend and other foreseeable charges®’.

Risk-weighted assets

As at 31 December 2023, risk-weighted assets came to 302,110 million euro, resulting primarily from credit and counterparty
risk and, to a lesser extent, operational and market risks.

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital and risk-weighted assets as at 31 December 2023 take account of the impact of the application
of the “Danish Compromise” (Art. 49.1 of Regulation (EU) 575/2013), as per the specific authorisation received from the ECB
in 2019, according to which insurance investments are treated as risk-weighted assets instead of being deducted from capital.

Solvency ratios

On the basis of the foregoing, solvency ratios as at 31 December 2023 amounted to a Common Equity ratio of 13.7%, a Tier 1
ratio of 16.3% and a total capital ratio of 19.2%.

Finally, on 30 November 2023, Intesa Sanpaolo announced that it had received notification of the ECB’s final decision
concerning the capital requirement that the Bank has to meet, on a consolidated basis, as of 1 January 2024, following the
results of the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP). Following the additional Article 3 CRR deduction made to
Own funds in June 2023 (for the calendar provisioning on exposures included in the scope of Pillar 2), the Supervisor updated
the Pillar 2 Requirement (P2R) applicable in 2023 (SREP 2022). As a result, from the second half of 2023, the P2R on Total
Capital is 1.50% (compared to 1.72% previously).

The overall requirement to be met in terms of Common Equity Tier 1 ratio is 8.83% (to be met in 2023) and 9.33% (to be met
in 2024), inclusive of the Capital Conservation Buffer, O-SIlI Buffer and Countercyclical Capital Buffer*® requirements.

46 The addendum to ECB Guidance on non-performing loans of 2018 contemplates the possibility that banks “deduce” on their own initiative specific
amounts from CET 1, to anticipate supervisory requests, in the event of divergence between the prudential framework, which expects adjustments not
based on credit risk measurement criteria, and the accounting framework.

47 Coupons accrued on Additional Tier 1 issues (341 million euro) and proposed assignment to the Allowance for charitable, social and cultural
contributions (22 million euro).

48 The Countercyclical Capital Buffer is calculated taking into account the exposure as at 31 December 2023 in the various countries where the Group
has a presence, as well as the respective requirements set by the competent national authorities and relating to 2025, where available, or the most
recent update of the reference period (requirement was set at zero per cent in Italy for 2023 and for the first quarter of 2024).
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Reconciliation of Shareholders’ equity and Common Equity Tier 1 capital

(millions of euro)

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Captions
Group Shareholders' equity 63,963 61,655
Minority interests 164 166
Shareholders' equity as per the Balance Sheet 64,127 61,821
Interim dividend (a) 2,629 1,400

Adjustments for instruments eligible for inclusion in AT1 or T2 and net income for the period
- Other equity instruments eligible for inclusion in AT1 -7,707 -7,207
- Minority interests eligible for inclusion in AT1 - -
- Minority interests eligible for inclusion in T2 - -

- Ineligible minority interests on full phase-in -164 -166
- Ineligible net income for the period (b) -5,787 -3,165
- Own shares included under regulatory adjustments (c) 165 169
- Other ineligible components on full phase-in (d) -325 -100
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) before regulatory adjustments 52,938 52,752
Regulatory adjustments (including transitional adjustments) (e) -11,462 -11,980
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) net of regulatory adjustments 41,476 40,772

(a) As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 the Shareholders’ Equity as per the Balance Sheet does not include the interim dividend, of 2,629 million euro and 1,400
million euro respectively (net of the amount not distributed in respect of own shares held at the record date).

(b) Common Equity Tier 1 capital as at 31 December 2023 includes the net income as at that date, less the related dividend and other foreseeable charges (accrued coupon on
Additional Tier 1 instruments, net of the tax effects and charity allowance).

(c) The amount includes, in addition to the book value of own shares, the unused portion of the ceiling for which the Bank has received the buyback authorisations.

(d) As at 31 December 2023, the amount includes a deduction of 246 million euro following the authorisation for the repurchase of an AT1 instrument as part of a liability
management transaction carried out in August.

(e) Regulatory adjustments as at 31 December 2023 no longer include the impact of the application of the IFRS 9 transitional filter - the applicability of which ended in 2022 -
conversely, they include 891 million euro in additional deductions pursuant to Art. 3 of the CRR (relating to the voluntary deduction of calendar provisioning on exposures included
in the scope of Pillar 2).

Performance of risk-weighted assets

(millions of euro)

Risk-weighted assets as at 31.12.2022 295,443
Credit and counterparty risk 1,287
Market and settlement risk 2,283
Operational risks 2,985
Other specific risks 112
Risk-weighted assets as at 31.12.2023 302,110

The overall change in risk-weighted assets in 2023 was an increase of around 6.7 billion euro due to the model effect on
credit risk. Excluding this effect, there would have been a significant decrease in the total aggregate due to the reduction in
the remaining components of credit risk which more than offset the increase in the absorption of market risks and operational
risks. Below is the commentary on individual risks.

Risk-weighted assets for credit and counterparty risk increased by around +1.3 billion euro, mainly attributable to the model
effect, following the implementation of the ECB authorisations, partially offset by the changes in volumes and an improvement
in the credit quality of the portfolio.

The increase in risk-weighted assets related to market and settlement risks (+2.3 billion euro) was mainly attributable to the
movements in the VaR and Stressed VaR measures as a result of portfolio movements and risk factors, and interest rates in
particular.

The increase in risk-weighted assets for operational risks (around +3 billion euro) was mainly attributable to the update of the
components measured using internal models and, to a lesser extent, to the increase in the relevant indicator for the
components measured using the standard approach.

Other specific risk-weighted assets were essentially stable.
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Breakdown of consolidated results by business area
and geographical area

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group organisational structure is based on Business Units. In addition, there is the Corporate Centre,
which is charged with providing guidance, coordination and control for the entire Group.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group

International Private Banking Asset Insurance Corporate
Subsidiary Management

Centre
Banks

*)

) Includes the Group’s Treasury and the NPE Head Office Department

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s segment reporting is based on the elements that management uses to make its own operating
decisions (the “management approach”) and is therefore consistent with the disclosure requirements of IFRS 8.

In addition to reflecting the operating responsibilities assigned in accordance with the Group’s organisational structure, the
business areas are an aggregation of business lines similar in the type of products and services they sell.

With regard to the application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 by the Group’s insurance companies, in line with the adjustment of the
comparison data in the consolidated financial statements due to the retrospective application of the two standards, the
division data for the periods presented for comparison were also adjusted on a like-for-like basis.

Moreover, division figures for the comparative periods are also restated to reflect the changes in scope of the Business Units,

where necessary and if they are material. It is specifically noted that the 2022 data recorded:

- the inclusion in the Private Banking Division of the income statement and balance sheet results of the Luxembourg
private bank Compagnie de Banque Privée Quilvest*®, consolidated at the end of June 2022;

- the contribution to Intesa Sanpaolo Formazione of the Intesa Sanpaolo business line dedicated to the design and
provision of training services and products for Group employees based in Italy, which was carried out in preparation for
the disposal of Intesa Sanpaolo Formazione, finalised at the end of June 2022;

- the reclassification from the caption Personnel expenses to the caption Net fee and commission income, of the charges
relating to several incentive systems for employees of the Banca dei Territori Division and the Private Banking Division,
where funded through fee and commission income generated based on deterministic quantification criteria correlated
with that income, in line with the accounting treatment envisaged for the incentive systems for non-employee financial
advisors (reclassification introduced in 2022).

The table below shows the main data summarising the trend of the business areas of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group in 2023
compared to the like-for-like comparison data.

The following itemised analysis of the business areas contains a description of the products and services offered, the type of
customers served and the initiatives carried out in the year; it also illustrates income statement figures and the main balance
sheet aggregates. Finally, for each business area, the capital absorbed based on Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs) was also
calculated. RWAs were determined in accordance with the provisions in force (Circular 285) issued by the Bank of Italy
following the implementation of Directive 2013/36/EU (CRD IV) and Regulation (EU) 575/2013 (CRR) of 26 June 2013,
amended by Regulation (EU) 876/2019 of 20 May 2019, known as CRR I, which transpose the banking supervision
standards defined by the Basel Committee (the Basel 3 Framework) to European Union laws. Absorbed capital also takes
account of the regulatory changes introduced by the ECB with effect from 12 March 2020, allowing the Pillar 2 requirement to
be met partially using equity instruments not classified as Common Equity Tier 1. For each Division, the absorbed capital is
supplemented, where necessary, with management data on "economic” capital to take into account the risks not covered by

490n1 January 2023, along with the incorporation of Fideuram Bank (Luxembourg) S.A., Compagnie de Banque Privée Quilvest S.A. took on the name
Intesa Sanpaolo Wealth Management S.A.
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the regulatory metric.

Operating income
2023
2022

% change

Operating costs
2023
2022

% change

Operating margin
2023
2022

% change

Net income (loss)
2023
2022

% change

Loans to customers
31.12.2023
31.12.2022

% change

Banca
dei
Territori

11,285
8,847
27.6

-6,555
-6,397
25

4,730
2,450
93.1

1,945
494

Banca
dei
Territori

232,411
247,913
-6.3

Direct deposits from banking

business
31.12.2023
31.12.2022

% change

Risk-weighted assets
31.12.2023
31.12.2022

% change

Absorbed capital
31.12.2023
31.12.2022

% change

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.

270,365
291,089
-7.1

80,484
84,302
-4.5

6,914
7,242
-4.5

IMI
Corporate
&
Investment
Banking

3,910
4,298
-9.0

-1,502
-1,419
5.8

2,408
2,879
-16.4

1,478
656

IMI
Corporate
&
Investment
Banking

127,167
129,791
-2.0

113,450
94,785
19.7

110,836
101,018
9.7

9,537
8,698
9.6

International
Subsidiary
Banks

2,925
2,227
313

-1,197
-1,118
7.1

1,728
1,109
55.8

1,173
504

International
Subsidiary
Banks

42,050
40,212
4.6

57,910
54,364
6.5

36,071
35,056
2.9

3,905
3,793
3.0

Private
Banking

3,184
2,475
28.6

-983
-921
6.7

2,201
1,554
41.6

1,366
1,034
32.1

Private
Banking

14,372
15,104
-4.8

45,805
50,447
-9.2

11,924
12,757
-6.5

1,111
1,154
-3.7

Asset
Management

908
962
-5.6

-245
-222
10.4

663
740
-10.4

475
550
-13.6

Asset
Management

243
282
-13.8

16
26
-38.5

1,990
1,798
10.7

212
195
8.7

Insurance

1,613
1,589
15

-379
-385
-1.6

1,234
1,204
25

876
933
-6.1

Insurance

4,156
4,954
-16.1

(millions of euro)

Corporate
Centre

1,313
1,042
26.0

-468
-472
-0.8

845
570
48.2

411
208
97.6

Total

25,138
21,440
17.2

-11,329
-10,934
3.6

13,809
10,506
314

7,724
4,379
76.4

(millions of euro)

Corporate
Centre

13,297
13,552
-1.9

88,590
54,675
62.0

60,805
60,512
0.5

3,175
3,487
-8.9

Total

429,540
446,854
-3.9

576,136
545,386
5.6

302,110
295,443
2.3

29,010
29,523
-1.7
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BUSINESS AREAS

Banca dei Territori

(millions of euro)

Net interest income 6,549 3,992 2,557 64.1
Net fee and commission income 4,630 4,739 -109 -2.3

Income from insurance business - - - -

Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value 111 120 -9 -7.5
Other operating income (expenses) -5 -4 1 25.0
Operating income 11,285 8,847 2,438 27.6
Personnel expenses -3,482 -3,430 52 1.5
Other administrative expenses -3,071 -2,964 107 3.6
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -2 -3 -1 -33.3
Operating costs -6,555 -6,397 158 2.5
Operating margin 4,730 2,450 2,280 93.1
Net adjustments to loans -1,318 -1,239 79 6.4
Other net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets -114 -68 46 67.6
Other income (expenses) 17 11 6 54.5
Income (Loss) from discontinued operations - - - -
Gross income (loss) 3,315 1,154 2,161

Taxes on income -1,088 -386 702

Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -70 -41 29 70.7
Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) -24 -32 -8 -25.0
Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry (net of tax) -188 -214 -26 -12.1

Impairment (net of tax) of goodwill and other intangible assets - - - -

Minority interests - 13 -13

(millions of euro)

Loans to customers 232,411 247,913 -15,502 -6.3
Direct deposits from banking business 270,365 291,089 -20,724 -7.1
Risk-weighted assets 80,484 84,302 -3,818 -4.5
Absorbed capital 6,914 7,242 -328 -4.5

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued
operations.

Banca dei Territori’s operating income was 11,285 million euro in 2023, amounting to 45% of the Group’s consolidated
revenues, showing significant growth (+27.6%) on the previous year.

In detail, net interest income increased sharply (+64.1%), attributable to the trend in market interest rates, which favoured the
profitability of customer dealing. Net fee and commission income decreased (-2.3%), specifically due to assets under
management, against an increase in fees on the placement of certificates, on dealing in securities and on advisory. As part of
commercial banking fees, loans and guarantees decreased due to lower disbursements, partly offset by fee and commission
income from cards and other payment services, related to the gradual increase in the amount transacted. The other revenue
components, which provide a marginal contribution to the Division’s operating income, Profits (Losses) on financial assets and
liabilities designated at fair value came to 111 million euro (-7.5%) and other operating expenses to -5 million euro (-4 million
euro in 2022). Operating costs, amounting to 6,555 million euro, were up (+2.5%), due to administrative expenses, which,
moreover, were affected by high inflation levels, and personnel expenses, also due to the higher costs related to the renewal
of the national collective bargaining agreement. As a result of the above, the operating margin rose to 4,730 million euro,
compared to 2,450 million euro in the previous year. Gross income amounted 3,315 million euro, almost triple the amount of
2022, despite higher adjustments to loans and other net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets in relation to
legal disputes. After allocation to the Division of taxes of 1,088 million euro, charges for integration of 70 million euro and the
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effects of purchase price allocation for 24 million euro and levies and other charges concerning the banking industry for 188
million euro, net income came to 1,945 million euro (494 million euro in the previous year).

In quarterly terms, the operating margin decreased on the third quarter of 2023, mainly attributable to the increase in
operating costs, specifically in personnel expenses, due to the above-mentioned effect of renewing the National Collective
Bargaining Agreement, and administrative expenses, against slight growth in fee and commission income. Gross income and
net income also showed a declining trend, impacted by higher adjustments to loans.

The balance sheet figures at the end of December 2023 showed a decline in total intermediated volumes of loans and
deposits compared to the previous year (-6.7%). In detail, loans to customers, amounting to 232,411 million euro, decreased
(-6.3%, or -15.5 hillion euro), mainly due to the trend in loans to businesses which, in the presence of rising interest rates,
decided to use their liquidity to limit the use of bank credit, and to individuals, who decreased the demand for mortgage loans.
Direct deposits from banking business, equal to 270,365 million euro, amounted to levels down from the previous year (-7.1%,
equal to -20.7 billion euro) in relation to the decrease in amounts due to customers. Businesses used their excess liquidity to
reduce the use of credit lines. Households, whose purchasing power was eroded by inflation, redirected a portion of their
available funds on current accounts to more remunerative investment products such as government/corporate bond issues,
which increased the dossiers of assets under administration, and Intesa Sanpaolo certificates structured by the IMI Corporate
& Investment Banking Division.
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Traditional lending and deposit collection operations in Italy and associated financial services.

To serve Retail, Exclusive, and Small and Medium Enterprise customers, including Agribusiness

and non-profits, creating value through:

— widespread local coverage;

— focus on the characteristics of local markets, and the needs of customer segments serviced,;

— development of service levels to customers using different channels in order to improve the
efficiency of the commercial offering;

development and management of products and services for the target customers, as well as of leasing, factoring and subsidised

finance products for the Group in Italy;

the centrality of the roles of the officers responsible for the Regional Governance Centres, Area Governance Centres and

branches as points of reference for the Group at local level.

Wealth Management &
Protection Sales &
Marketing; Digital Retail
Sales & Marketing and SME
Sales & Marketing
Departments

Agribusiness Department

Impact Department

Isybank

Product companies

Overseeing the Retail sector, which consists of the segments Individuals, Affluent and Retail
Companies, the Exclusive sector (retail customers with high asset and wealth standing and
complex financial needs) and the SME area (small businesses, businesses and top businesses
with high complexity and potential for growth).

Serving agriculture and agribusiness.

Aimed at developing the initiatives of Impact Bank and serving non-profit organisations.

The Group’s new digital bank developed for customers that primarily use on-line channels, who
can carry out operations that meet their needs autonomously and remotely, using the app and with
the support of the Digital Branch.

Prestitalia: a financial intermediary operating in the Italian market of consumer credit, specialising
in the salary-backed loans segment.

Over 3,000 branches, including Retail, Exclusive and Business branches, distributed broadly
throughout Italy, the Agribusiness branches dedicated to companies operating in agribusiness, and
Impact branches dedicated to the non-profit sector. The territorial structure is divided into 14
Governance Centres: Agribusiness, Impact and 12 Regional Governance Centres. In the latter, (to
favour the commercial focus and guarantee a better control of the service level) there are three
Commercial Managers, specialised for "commercial territory" (Retail, Exclusive and SME), which

report directly to the Regional Director and that coordinate around 330 commercial areas. These were joined by the Isybank
Department, as part of the strategic initiatives to develop the new digital bank, and the Digital Branch Department, to oversee
commercial relations with customers via the telephone channel and other related channels (chat, video calls) and the remote offering.
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Wealth Management & Protection Sales & Marketing, Digital Retail Sales & Marketing and SME Sales & Marketing
Departments

The advanced advisory paid service “Valore Insieme”, launched in 2017, proposes a global
advisory model over all of the customer’s assets, including real estate, also assisting
customers in planning the transfer of wealth to their loved ones. Starting in April, several
changes were introduced in the “Valore Insieme” range of services, to extend the service to
an increasing number of customers and ensure a wider dissemination of the “Immobiliare”
and “Passaggio Generazionale” Modules. This evolution involved eliminating the Specialist Package 2.0, which remains
momentarily in stock for customers that previously signed up for it, and improving the access conditions for the Exclusive
Package.
With the goal of assisting customers in transforming from savers to investors, and to preserve direct deposits, a range of
opportunities were developed as alternatives to a current account, capable of providing returns on investments even in the
short term and to guarantee customers the peace of mind of knowing their capital is protected and a preset amount will be
distributed. Specifically, for individuals, the offering of savings certificates was expanded, also combining them with the
subscription of asset management products, with returns consistent with the performance of market interest rates. Likewise,
an offering on time deposits and time cash was activated for businesses. The range of protected funds (“Epsilon Protetto 1
anno” and “Epsilon Protetto 1 anno Plus” and “Epsilon Protezione 1 anno”) was also expanded, which, in addition to
guaranteeing protection of 100% of capital, distribute a preset amount on expiry which varies, depending on the issues, from
1.50% to 2.50%. The range of mutual funds was expanded, with the gradual entry into the equity markets with the “Eurizon
Target Solution 40” fund and the “Eurizon Target Solution 40 Plus” fund. To enrich the bond offering, a new Individual Savings
Plans fund was launched, providing tax benefits to customers after 5 years (“Eurizon PIR Obbligazionario”), as well as the
“Eurizon Valore Obbligazionario 3 anni” fund, focusing on corporate bonds, which distributes a preset amount of 3.5% for the
first 2 years. Moreover, the highly diversified new range of mutual funds, Eurizon Next 2.0, was created, which is simple, clear
and personalised. To favour increased financial inclusion and facilitate access to investments by an ever-increasing base of
customers, the thresholds for access to all funds were decreased to 50 euro, and the free collective insurance policy was
extended to all Luxembourg endowment policies in mutual funds. Among insurance investment products, three new Class |
policies of Intesa Sanpaolo Vita were launched: “Patrimonio Garanziansuyrance”, “Patrimonio Dedicatonsurance” and “Patrimonio
Garanzia e Reddito”. The latter specifically allows customers to supplement their income due to the payment, in the first three
years, of an amount equal to 2% of the invested premium, achieved through partial planned surrender. In the event of a claim,
it also provides an increased amount on death, included for the first time for Class | policies, varying from 0.25% to 15%
based on the age of the insured at the time of death. The “Bonus” initiative of Intesa Sanpaolo Life was also activated, in force
up to November. This reserved to customers subscribing a new contract of “Doppio Centrosurance”, “Patrimonio Projnsyrance” OF
“Exclusivensurance” @ bonus of 1% of the amount of single, additional and/or recurring premiums paid during the period, while it
reserved to existing customers a bonus of 1.5% of the amount of additional payments and/or recurring premiums activated ex-
novo during the period of the promotion. Within the unit-linked policy of Intesa Sanpaolo Life “Prospettiva Sostenibile” a new
internal, flexible bond fund was created, “Obbligazionario Tattico” and a new decumulation option was issued - a partial
planned surrender that provides customers with periodic cash flows to integrate their available funds on their current
accounts. This specific option was also issued for the “Prospettiva Stabilitansurance” policy. In the second half, the “Patrimonio
Profilomsurance” policy was made available: this is a whole life multi-line insurance investment product to gradually access the
financial markets through three investment processes, differentiated by level of risk. Moreover, the new unit-linked range, “IS
Vita Dublin Branch”, was created, improving death coverage. Lastly, for companies, “Patrimonio Aziende nsurance” Was made
available. This is a multi-line policy for managing liquidity of legal persons, with the goal of combining the stability of separate
portfolio management with the search for returns on internal funds available.
In the area of complementary pension funds, a new process was issued to sign up on the Intesa Sanpaolo Mobile App and
carry out after-sales operations on Mobile App and Insurance App of Intesa Sanpaolo Vita on supplementary pension
products in a simple, fully autonomous manner, enriching the offering channels already available (branch, Remote Offering,
Out-of-branch Offering and Internet Banking).
The placement of certificates continued, with a significant increase in the range offered, differentiated by type of structure,
protection levels, currency and, above all, with shorter time horizons. Customers were particularly interested in this type of
investment, which accounted for a significant percentage of the total placements of investment products during the year. In
2023, with the goal of improving the efficiency and quality of financial advisory services, new functionalities of Robo4Advis or
were introduced for the entire network of Banca dei Territori, which generate personalised investment suggestions for
individual customers, and in September, Finanza Insieme was launched, the new platform to train and develop financial
awareness, dedicated to all customers and individuals interested in increasing their knowledge of these topics.

In the of 2023, Intesa Sanpaolo provided new solutions, with a specific focus on all that is
“Green” and on the Young People segment. The offering of loans in the “Green” range
continued, providing even greater benefits in May (-35 bps) and additional benefits in the last
two months, with dedicated interest rate conditions for those purchasing properties with high
energy efficiency (class = B) or renovating properties in order to increase their energy
efficiency. In November, that offering, which can be combined also with the province-based promotion and the promotion for
young people, could also be combined with mortgage loans for the purpose of subrogation, extending the incentives which, to
date, were reserved for purchases. For people under 36, Intesa Sanpaolo relaunched an offering dedicated to a fixed rate on
mortgage loans with a high LTV (over 80%) backed by coverage from the Primary Residence Guarantee Fund (at the end of
November it was made possible to combine the Consap guarantee also to subrogations of mortgage loans already secured
by the Fund) and introduced two new dedicated initiatives in February. The first, regarding mortgage loans with a duration of
35-40 years and a distinctive feature of the Group’s offering on the market, benefits from the highly competitive interest rate
quotes, which make it possible to significantly reduce the amount of the monthly payment, in addition to a 50% discount on
the application fees. The second reserves highly favourable conditions to mortgage loan applications from young people

118



Report on operations - Breakdown of consolidated results by business area and geographical area

brokered directly through online comparison sites. Two new business development agreements were also signed with the
online brokers Crea.Re Digital and Idealista Mutui. Lastly, to support customers with floating rate mortgage loans to handle
the increase in instalments, in the second half an initiative was launched with the Italian Banking Association to renegotiate
mortgage loans from floating rate to fixed rate or to extend their duration or suspend the payment of instalments.

The package of measures the Bank put in place last year for households to deal with the

problem of “high bills” continued in 2023, with the “OGGI INSIEME” loan at special low fixed-

rate conditions, with no additional costs and repayable over up to 20 years, for customers

aged between 18 and 75 and households resident in Italy, with an ISEE (Equivalent Financial

Situation Index) of up to 40 thousand euro and a net average monthly income of at least 500
euro, who need subsidised loans to meet current expenses (rent, medical expenses, mobility, bills). Moreover, on 2 May, due
to changes to the agreements signed between Intesa Sanpaolo and Prestitalia, the product “XME Prestito Pensionati INPS”
(pension-backed loans) moved from a promotional model with placement to a promotion with recommendation, just as that
provided for salary-backed loans and advances on severance indemnities. In order to meet customer needs, two new
promotions were also activated with exclusive interest rate conditions on salary-backed loans, one reserved for employees of
leading private and semi-public companies, and the other to young employees (44 years and 11 months on expiry of the
loan). Lastly, with a view to improving the process of selling the Facile/Giovani/Diretto and Spensierata personal loans, from
the end of November, it was made possible to obtain an initial assessment of the loan application in order to guide the
customer/relationship manager and steer them to the most sustainable combination of instalment and duration. That initial
assessment will not be binding in any way, as it is a mere consultation on filling out the application, and will not influence the
approval process, which will remain the process currently validated.

“XME Protezione” is a flexible multi-guarantee insurance solution that allows customers to

purchase coverage (Modules) in the areas they need, relating to the home, healthcare and

family. as part of the “Soluzione Domani” programme, the mix of protection, investment and

loan products dedicated to seniors and family caregivers was enriched with the “Sostegno e

Assistenza” and “Caregiver” Modules, and the development of “Ricoveri e Interventi” and
“Tutela Legale+” in January. The first two Modules apply to emergencies or unforeseen events linked to illness or accidents,
suffered by the senior or a family member caregiver, offering a wide range of healthcare and social assistance services, also
in home. For subscribers of “Ricoveri e interventi”, the possibility to retain coverage was extended up to age 90, while the
“Tutela Legale+” Module now intervenes also for disputes linked to events in daily life, home ownership and rental and
employment relationships (for example, defense in the event of negligent injury or disputes with legally hired domestic
workers). In May, the “ProteggiMutuo Smart” policy with annual premium became available (which replaces the version with a
single, prepaid premium). This policy is dedicated to people interested in adding coverage to their mortgage loan to financially
protect themselves from unforeseen events that could compromise their ability to repay their instalments. In the motor sector,
in June it was made possible to pay online policies in instalments, with zero interest, and a restyling was issued that make
new coverage available with the same premium amount for the “Assistenza Base” and “Cristalli” guarantees. In November,
the “Polizza Protezione Smartphone” was launched, the first policy that can be fully purchased through self operations, which
insures accidental, partial or total property damages to smartphones purchased form the selection of products of the Bank’s
partners, on Internet Banking or via App. In the business sector, the process of digitising the offering continued, with the
dematerialisation in July of the “Cyber Protection Business” and “RC Amministratori Sindaci e Dirigenti” products and, in
November, of the “Tutela Business - Commercio” and “Tutela Business - Manifattura” policies, which have been reworked,
introducing the new "Eventi Catastrofali” coverage to protect company assets from natural catastrophes such as earthquakes
and floods. Moreover, during the period, numerous promotions were activated: for motor policies, the “Porta la tua polizza”
promotion, which offers the Legal expenses guarantee for 1 euro to customers that already have motor policies that insure
another vehicle, and for ViaggiaConMe a Consumo policies, the extension of the promotion providing free assistance for
travel by bicycle; for individuals, the promotion "A prima vista" (to bring even more customers to the “XME Protezione”
healthcare offering) and for the business world, “Proteggi la tua attivita” (30% discount for new subscribers of “Tutela
Business - Commercio” and “Tutela Business - Manifattura”).

Intesa Sanpaolo continued to bring young people closer to the banking world through

personalised, free solutions, such as “XME Conto UP!”, a current account for children under

the age of 18, and “XME Conto under 35”. In addition to the offers mentioned regarding

mortgage loans, the StudioSi Fund was extended to 15 December 2023. Through this fund,

the Bank offers a loan for education, at a fixed-rate of 0%. Prestitalia also launched the new
offering “Cessione del Quinto Giovani”, a loan at subsidised rates for government and private employees who have not
reached age 45 on expiry of the loan. The “Giovani e Lavoro” project also continued. This project supports the employment of
young people aged 18 to 29, offering targeted training, free of charge, both for young people and for the participating
businesses, favouring the effective matching of labour demand and supply. Moreover, in the business sector, as part of the
“CresciBusiness” programme, the offering dedicated to young entrepreneurs (18-35) was launched, with a complete range of
solutions and services to start up, develop and protect a business, due to the offering of products and services at subsidised
conditions, the dissemination of financial education on public incentives and the promotion of instruments that favour the
access to credit.

During 2023, various initiatives were activated on new “XME Conto” contracts, providing
discounts differentiated by age bracket and the elimination of the fee, and on “Card Plus”
contracts, for new online applications. In February, savings books were eliminated from the
product catalogue and dedicated promotions were made available to facilitate the move to
the range of current accounts for customers that hold savings books who decide to close
them. In October, Bancomat Pay® was made available as a payment option on Amazon.it: the new service allows customers
to make payments in real time using just their mobile phone number, without having to indicate their payment card data. In the
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business segment, “Debit Plus” was launched in April, the first co-badge card (fully made of eco-friendly material) equipped
with a dual circuit (Bancomat®, PagoBancomat® and MasterCard or Visa), and Instant Issuing service that can be activated
from the website and App. At the end of November, the Instant Issuing digital activation service was also extended to
Commercial Prepaid cards. Promotions continued for POS, with the launch of offers dedicated to freelance professionals and
sole traders. Specifically, the initiative Micropagamenti was also activated for 2023. This enables small business owners to
obtain refunds of the commissions charged on transactions of amounts up to 10 euro, and in July the Anticipo Transato POS
and POS Virtuale services were made available. In September, the SoftPOS was made available for all business customers.
This allows customers to accept contactless digital payments from smartphones/tablets, without the need for a POS terminal,
while in mid-November, the catalogue was redeveloped to provide POS terminal customers with the best technology and
simplify the commercial offering.

In 2023, the development of multi-channel and digital banking continued, with the
introduction of new multi-channel customer journeys and the expansion of those available, to
improve the offering and the customer experience, increasing the remote usability of the
services offered by the digital channels. Specifically, for business customers, the elimination
of the paper-based process for the Commercial Cards Customer Journey and the Short-term
Loans and Unsecured Commitments Allocation Customer Journey was completed for all customers with digital identities. In
April, a new Use of Short-term Loans Customer Journey was released, in June implementations were carried out on the POS
Customer Journey, and at the end of November the Credit User Journey was released, a new process with the goal of
simplifying the process of granting credit products.
During the period, the “Digitalizziamo” Project continued, which supports Italian enterprises capable of digitally transforming
their businesses. The most deserving enterprises were selected to participate in the celebratory events and to benefit from
digital services and advice provided by the partners.
In March for individuals, due to the partnership between the startup Switcho and Intesa Sanpaolo, the range of functionalities
on the Intesa Sanpaolo Mobile App was expanded, adding a service that supports Italian households in saving money on their
electricity and gas bills in a free, digital and innovative way.
At the Digital CX Awards, organized by The Digital Banker, Intesa Sanpaolo was recognised for the first time in the category
Outstanding Digital CX - Trade Finance Initiative in Europe. The Bank stood out from its competitors due to its constant
commitment along the path of digitalisation, automation and innovation, both of processes and of the services offered,
specifically with reference to the Inbiz "Modulo Estero”, the digital platform that allows customers to have, in a single
dashboard, the tools and information needed to optimise their international trade activities. Moreover, for the second year
running, the US research company Forrester Research judged the Intesa Sanpaolo Mobile App as the “Global Mobile Banking
Apps Leader’, the absolute leader among all banking apps assessed in the world, with the best functionalities and customer
experience. Lastly, in December, the new ESG platform was made available, providing customers with a simple, interactive
platform to understand their positioning, free of charge, and increase their awareness of their environmental and social impact
and that of their governance practices.

In 2023, Intesa Sanpaolo confirmed and increased its support to the tourism segment, with

an agreement signed with Confindustria Alberghi, Federalberghi, Federterme and

Federturismo, increasing the credit line to support companies in the sector up to a new

amount of 10 billion euro and committing the Bank and Associations in a joint process of

supporting companies in the sector. The agreement with Faita Federcamping, the leading
association of open-air tourism operators, was renewed, and an agreement was signed with Fipe-Confcommercio, a leading
association in the food service, entertainment and tourism sectors, to promote investments in the segment. In April, an
agreement was signed with ANCI, the Association of Italian Municipalities, in line with the Green New Deal and the Repower
EU Plan, promoted by the European Commission, and the Bank’s “Motore ltalia Transizione Energetica” programme, to
promote the development and spread of renewable energy projects, with a specific focus on the issue of RECs (Renewable
Energy Communities). With regard to the issue of ecological transition, the partnership with Enel X was expanded to favour
the energy autonomy of companies and the country. The agreement with Enel X, along with the partnership with Regalgrid
Europe, are part of the “Motore lItalia Transizione Energetica” programme, which confirmed support of 76 billion euro for
investments in renewable energy plants as part of the over 410 billion euro made available by Intesa Sanpaolo to support the
goals of the NRRP missions. Also as part of the “Motore Italia Transizione Energetica”, a three-year agreement was signed
with Confindustria that makes liquidity of 150 billion euro available to companies. Regarding ESG issues, an agreement was
signed with GSE - Gestore Servizi Energetici, to foster the promotion of environmental factors in the financial sector and to
support training initiatives and assistance to businesses on energy transition issues and innovative models of sustainable
growth. Two new agreements were signed with the Sardinia Special Economic Zone (SEZ) and the Adriatic Interregional
Puglia Molise SEZ, to support the development of business investments within the areas of the SEZ. The agreement with
Autorita del Sistema Portuale del Mare Adriatico Orientale to favour modernisation and increase the competitiveness of the
port system. Intesa Sanpaolo, along with Digit'Ed, the company created last year through the transfer of Intesa Sanpaolo
Formazione and the combination with the top companies in the sector, gave rise to an important commercial agreement to
offer distinctive training courses for corporate customers. The sale of the new training programmes was launched at
Corporate Branches: high-profile courses developed with prominent members of the academic world. Regarding tax bonuses
for construction, numerous agreements for the reassignment to customers of the tax credits linked to the Construction
Bonuses and the Superbonus (Universita Luiss Guido Carli, Gruppo Battistolli, Gruppo Walter Tosto, Gruppo Zanutta,
Quellogiusto, Piva Group, etc.). Intesa Sanpaolo was the first Italian bank to fully implement the “Decreto Aiuti”, immediately
setting up the model for reassigning the credits, thereby freeing up tax capacity that was immediately made available to
contribute to supporting businesses and households. With the goal of promoting the world of freelance professionals and
facilitate access to credit for freelance professionals, Intesa Sanpaolo signed an agreement with ADJEPP (Association of
Private Pension Entities), making available a credit line of 1 billion euro to support persons enrolled in the associated ADEPP
Professional Pension Funds. Due to the agreement with SIMEST, corporate customers can access loans at subsidised rates
and non-repayable grants allocated on the Revolving Fund pursuant to Italian Law 394/81. At the end of September, the
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national CresciBusiness agreement was integrated, with the Confartigianato and Anita Confindustria associations, with an
addendum which sets out joint initiatives to support micro and small member businesses in their processes of digitalisation,
energy sustainability and commercial activities. In that regard, the Bank has set up measures for liquidity and guaranteed
loans for 5 billion euro, part of the more than 410 billion euro allocated by the Group to support the objectives of the NRRP
Missions. Thanks to the NRRP, National Research Centres were also created, which are a new system for cooperation
between the world of research and businesses, with the goal of relaunching Italy’s competitive development and the growth of
businesses in innovative sectors. Intesa Sanpaolo is a founding partner of four of the five National Research Centres, the only
Bank on the board: specifically, the National Sustainable Mobility Centre (MOST), invested in by Intesa Sanpaolo as a
founding partner, published the first financing tenders in September, regarding air mobility and land transport.

In line with the NRRP, Intesa Sanpaolo has established a credit line, in support of the Italian

economy over the entire duration of the plan, for a total of 410 billion euro of medium/long-

term loans, of which 270 billion euro will go to businesses. Through “Motore Italia”, the

programme supporting the relaunch of the entire Italian production system, and based on the

key priorities of the NRRP, the Bank supports measures mainly in areas related to the
Recovery Plan such as the green and circular economy and green transition, infrastructure, transport, and urban regeneration
projects. In March, the “Circolante Impresa SACE Supportltalia” loan was made available, to satisfy the requirements set out
in art. 15 of Law Decree no. 50 of 17 May 2022, to support businesses impacted by the Russia Ukraine crisis, backed by a
SACE Supportltalia guarantee. Moreover, the “CresciBusiness” programme, to assist small and very small companies in a
process of digital, sustainable growth, continued to support the trade sector with initiatives dedicated to medium/long-term
loans to be used for investments. In April, “CresciBusiness” was enriched with a new offering designed to promote the world
of freelance professionals: the “Sviluppo MLT Crescita Liberi Professionisti” initiative to support retail company customers
interested in investing in their business through a loan with favourable terms on the application fees, in addition to the
dedicated POS offering and the “Tutela Business Uffici e Studi” policy, to protect office assets and guarantee business
continuity. In May, 5 billion euro was made available to support Italian cinema and audiovisual production, in addition to the
2.4 billion euro in loans already dedicated to the sector since 2009. In July, Cassa Depositi e Prestiti (CDP) made available to
the Bank a dedicated line of funding of 1 billion euro to grant loans to Italian SMEs and Mid Caps, with discounts differentiated
based on whether government guarantees are present and the duration of the loan. Also in July, the first Private Debt Fund
complementary to bank debt was launched, through a partnership between the Banca dei Territori Division, the IMI Corporate
& Investment Banking Division and Eurizon, to support the development of SMEs and Mid Caps. Using ever more evolved
types of financing, the Group thus strengthens its positioning to support the real economy to accompany the growth,
internationalisation, generational turnover and sustainable transition of Italian small and medium-sized enterprises. In July, the
SAL-based (Progress of Works) method of disbursing M/LT Loans with SACE Green guarantees (for projects that pursue
environmental objectives as defined by the Green MEF agreement signed with SACE) was activated. At the end of 2023, in
line with the technological trends at European level, the topics of Nova+, the line of medium/long-term loans to support
research, development and innovation projects were updated. In the second half of 2023, a new funding agreement was
signed with the EIB for 300 million euro, to dedicate to investment projects for Mid Caps, with a focus on innovation. At the
end of the year, another EIB Funding Agreement was signed for 100 million euro, to dedicate to the agricultural sector and the
bioeconomy, with a focus on investment projects in environmental sustainability and climate action.

The “Sviluppo Filiere Programme” is designed to support businesses of all sectors and sizes

by facilitating access to credit and focusing on the relationship between the lead companies

and their network of direct and indirect suppliers and/or their reseller network, enabling a

better understanding of the financial needs of the individual sectors. In this context, the Bank

decided to develop offerings dedicated to the sectors that felt the greatest impact of the
NRRP, containing products and services to support the specific characteristics of the various businesses, also with regard to
ESG and digitalisation. In April, in the ESG area, the “Programma Sviluppo Filiere - Filiere Sostenibili” was created, which
assists lead companies and suppliers in the process of improving their sustainability profile.

Agribusiness Department

The Agribusiness Department is the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s national network dedicated to the agrifood sector, which aims to
promote the link with local areas and tap the potential of one of Italy’s most important production sectors, where lItaly is in third
place in terms of added value among large European countries. The Department avails of 224 branches located throughout
Italy, containing specialist professionals, concentrated in the most agricultural areas of the country, at the service of around 75
thousand customers. The Agribusiness Department positions itself as the main qualified interlocutor to assist operators in all
phases of development, supporting their investments and promoting new business projects, with specific attention to the
criteria of sustainability and the circular economy. The activities of this Department contributed to the finalisation of important
agreements. Specifically, in May, an agreement was signed with Consorzio del Prosciutto di San Daniele to favour credit
access for member companies, through a revolving pledge on the hams produced. Intesa Sanpaolo allocated a credit line of
40 million euro to support the initial loan operations, and in November, with CSQA (leading certification body in Italy), an
addendum to the existing agreement was signed to define the operating process for launching the first transactions
guaranteed by the pledge on legs of Prosciutto di Parma DOP. Agreements were also signed with Federpesca, in February,
and Assica (Industrial Association of Meats and Cured Meats) in May, to simplify credit access by the member companies in
the fishing segment and the meat segment. The continuing occurrence of extreme natural events of various types and the
spread of infectious diseases and parasite attacks on crops and livestock made it necessary for the Bank to take ongoing,
long-lasting action to support the businesses impacted. In October, the “Calamita Agribusiness” solution was created and
added to the offering, whose interest rates will be updated monthly, to quickly meet the needs that may arise for agricultural
and agrifood companies under the Agribusiness Department and all the Regional Governance Centre. The loans may be
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activated via a simplified process based on a self-certification of the damages incurred or a quotation of expenses and
expenditure documentation (invoices).

Impact Department

The Impact Department is dedicated to managing non-profit customers and coordinating the activation and management of
social impact funds created to foster the financial inclusion of individuals, households and non-profit organisations.
Specifically, the Fund for Impact, with a value of 300 million euro, has made it possible to disburse new loans up to 1.5 billion
euro, specifically targeted to categories that have difficulty in accessing credit, for the purpose of realising their projects. The
first beneficiaries were University students, working mothers, families involved in their children’s education and growth
processes, unemployed persons nearing retirement, caregivers dealing with assisting non-self-sufficient family members and
civil service volunteers. This is accompanied by the “Solidarity and Development Fund”, with a value of over 50 million euro,
which enables loans to non-profit organisations with important projects, which would otherwise be excluded from ordinary
credit. To acquire new customers, various initiatives were renewed, with joint “Account+POS” Welcome Packs offers, and
various solutions alternative to each other, based on the customers’ operating requirements, and the new agreement
exclusively dedicated to customers in the Non-Profit sector without a POS acquiring contract was activated. During the year,
the “Diamo voce all'impatto” tour was held, which visited 12 Italian towns and involved around 400 organisations, developing
new relationships and projects, the launch of the first edition of the Philanthropy Monitor, to illustrate the performance of
services and tenders offered by philanthropic entities, the Finance and the Non-Profit Sector Monitor, and an event to present
the Impact Counter, a proprietary tool to detect impact. With regard to the latter, in 2023 the results for 2022 were published,
which were detected by recognising the expected effects of the impact of credit on the non-profit sector organisations. 620
questionnaires were filled in, which correspond to loans of around 194 million euro. The official results show that in two-thirds
of cases there would have been no alternatives to the loan from Intesa Sanpaolo and that each million euro loaned will
generate 15 new jobs and save an additional 100.

The beneficiaries of the initiative are estimated to be around 1.85 million, and over 22 thousand jobs will be created in the
financed organisations, and a further 31 thousand due to the indirect effect on the communities where they operate.

In the area of donations, in 2023 the For Funding platform confirmed its leadership in Italian crowdfunding donation in support
of non-profit sector projects, encouraging donations throughout the country.

Isybank

Isybank is the new digital bank of Intesa Sanpaolo, based on state-of-the-art technology, which targets both Intesa Sanpaolo
customers who do not use the physical branches as they are mainly digital users of banking services and oriented to mobile
banking, and to new customers. Isybank offers customers a complete experience through the App, with the support of the
Digital Branch. Following an initial pilot phase, which began in March 2023, on 15 June it was presented to the markets and
opened to new customers, and in October a business line of Intesa Sanpaolo relating to around 300 thousand customers was
contributed to it.

Product companies

Prestitalia is the “product company" of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group for salary-backed loans and advances on employee
termination indemnities.

A financial company that operates in the consumer credit market, highly specialised in salary-backed loans, it is one of the
leading operators in the sector, with an average stock of around 2.4 billion euro.

As at 31 December 2023, with 47 thousand applications finalised, it disbursed loans totalling 954 million euro, through four
main channels: Intesa Sanpaolo branch network, third-party agencies, “light” agents (tied agents that are natural persons) to
support the entire Intesa Sanpaolo branch network and online channel.

The range of products includes” XME Prestito Pensionati INPS”, “XME Anticipo TFS” (a product reserved to former
government employees interested in using all or part of their severance indemnity without waiting the long time periods typical
of the public authorities) and “XME Prestito Cessione del Quinto”, which offers a solution for government employees as well
as one reserved for private sector employees. Moreover, the agents supporting Intesa Sanpaolo branches may also propose
current accounts, payment cards and POS to customers.

On 2 May, the new distribution model for “XME Prestito Pensionati INPS” entered into force, which is reported by the Intesa
Sanpaolo branches to Prestitalia and no longer placed directly at the branch, which strengthens the synergies between
channels and reduces the administrative activities carried out by the branches.
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IMI Corporate & Investment Banking

(millions of euro)

Net interest income 2,797 2,107 690 32.7
Net fee and commission income 1,112 1,146 -34 -3.0

Income from insurance business - - - -

Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value 3 1,047 -1,044 -99.7
Other operating income (expenses) -2 -2 - -
Operating income 3,910 4,298 -388 -9.0
Personnel expenses -559 -528 31 5.9
Other administrative expenses -924 -870 54 6.2
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -19 -21 -2 -9.5
Operating costs -1,502 -1,419 83 5.8
Operating margin 2,408 2,879 -471 -16.4
Net adjustments to loans -11 -1,564 -1,553 -99.3
Other net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets -182 -131 51 38.9

Other income (expenses) - - - -

Income (Loss) from discontinued operations - - - _

Gross income (loss) 2,215 1,184 1,031 87.1
Taxes on income -711 -508 203 40.0
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -26 -21 5 23.8

Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) - - - -
Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry (net of tax) - - - -
Impairment (net of tax) of goodwill and other intangible assets - - - -

Minority interests - 1 -1

(millions of euro)

Loans to customers 127,167 129,791 -2,624 -2.0
Direct deposits from banking business @ 113,450 94,785 18,665 19.7
Risk-weighted assets 110,836 101,018 9,818 9.7
Absorbed capital 9,537 8,698 839 9.6

(1) The item includes certificates.

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued
operations.

In 2023, the IMI Corporate & Investment Banking Division recorded operating income of 3,910 million euro (representing
over 15% of the Group’s consolidated total), down 9% compared to the previous year.

In detail, net interest income, amounting to 2,797 million euro, grew by 32.7%, mainly attributable to Global Markets
operations, as well as a greater contribution from customer deposits. Net fee and commission income amounted to 1,112
million euro, down 3%, due to the decrease in fee and commission income in the commercial banking segment, only partially
offset by the positive trend in investment banking. The profits (losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair
value were marginal (3 million euro) compared to 1,047 million euro in 2022, mainly as a result of the management of trading
in the Global Markets area. The segment was negatively impacted by the management of financial risks related to funding in
certificates due to the growth in market interest rates, which also had positive effects on net interest income in terms of
greater liquidity used. Lower gains on the sale of HTCS debt securities and the lower contribution of Own Credit Risk (OCR)
of certificates, due to the tightening of Intesa Sanpaolo’s credit spread, also had an impact.

Operating costs amounted to 1,502 million euro, an increase of 5.8%, attributable to administrative and personnel expenses.
As a result of the above revenue and cost trends, the operating margin fell by 16.4% to 2,408 million euro. Gross income,
amounting to 2,215 million euro, increased significantly (+87.1%) on the value of 2022, which included significant adjustments
allocated in relation to the events in Russia and Ukraine. Lastly, net income came to 1,478 million euro, more than double the
656 million euro realised in the previous year.
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In the fourth quarter 2023, the IMI Corporate & Investment Banking Division saw growth in the operating margin compared to
the third quarter, due to the increase in revenues, which more than offset the higher operating costs, essentially related to the
renewal of the national collective bargaining agreement. Gross income and net income showed a similar trend, benefiting
from lower adjustments to loans than those recorded in the previous quarter.

Intermediated volumes of the Division grew on an annual basis (+7.1%). In detail, loans to customers, amounting to 127,167
million euro, decreased (-2% to -2.6 billion euro), mainly due to loans in the global corporate segment, which fully offset the
growth in loans in the global markets segment and loans to financial institution customers. Direct deposits from banking
business, equal to 113,450 million euro, increased year on year (+19.7%, equal to +18.7 billion euro), essentially due to the
development of operations in certificates and the growth in securities issued of the Luxembourg and Irish subsidiaries.

Starting from the beginning of 2023, in line with the targets of the 2022-2025 Business Plan, the IMI Corporate & Investment
Banking Division updated its organisational structure, by identifying three business coordination areas, as illustrated below.

Corporate and transaction banking, investment banking, public finance and capital markets, in Italy
and abroad.

To act as a strategic, global partner in supporting companies and financial institutions in achieving
balanced, sustainable growth, including at the international level, through a specialised network of
hubs, branches, representation offices and subsidiaries that engage in corporate banking
operations. To foster collaboration between the public and private sectors with the aim of
supporting the creation of infrastructure and sustainable investments, including by pursuing
international growth opportunities in countries of strategic interest to the Group. To provide all customers of the Intesa Sanpaolo
Group with specialised skills in the areas of Investment Banking, Structured Finance, Capital Markets and Transaction Banking.

This structure develops and handles relations with Italian and international Global Corporate

Client Coverage & Advisory custom_ers, availi_ng, at cer_1tra| level, of the commercial action of the Industry units (Autpm_otivg &

Coordination Area Industrials; Basic Materials & Healthcarg; Energy; Food & Beveragg and Distribution;

Infrastructure & Real Estate Partners; Retail and Luxury and Telecom, Media and Technology)

and at local level of the Italian and international network of the Distribution Platform & GTB

Coordination Area. The Department is responsible for commercial relationships with financial institutions on domestic and

international markets, with a dedicated service model organised by customer segment (i.e., Banks, Insurance Companies, Asset

Managers, Financial Sponsors, Sovereign Funds and Governments).

The Department guarantees the oversight and development of origination and advisory activities for customers, including M&A, Debt

and ESG issues, also through specifically dedicated units, pursuing the cross-selling of products and services with an Originate to
Share approach, maximising the synergies between corporate, institutional investor and product desk relations.

S The structure oversees the development of the Italian and international network of the Division,

Distribution Platform & ensuring the correct handling of operating and commercial activities for its major customers,

Global Transaction Banking  through a specialised network of local structures in Italy and abroad. It guarantees the oversight,

Coordination Area for the entire Group, of a wide range of transactional services, such as cash management, trade &

export finance and securities services, also through Inbiz, the Corporate Internet Banking platform.

It contributes to identifying and distributing loans and marketable assets through a single hub which mobilises and optimises the
Division’s credit balance sheet, in line with the Originate to Share process.

The scope of this structure includes capital markets, structured finance and primary markets
. equity and debt capital markets) supporting all Group customers, including medium-sized
Global Banking & Markets Een(iergrises. P ) supp g P g
Coordination Area Moreover, portfolio management and ownership risk are monitored through direct or indirect
access to the markets.

In ltaly, the IMI Corporate & Investment Banking Division has a total of 6 geographical areas
dedicated to corporate customers and public customers. At the international level, it operates in 25
countries in support of the cross-border operations of its customers through a specialised network
of hubs, branches, representative offices and subsidiaries that engage in corporate banking
activity.
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Client Coverage & Advisory Coordination Area

In a highly volatile and complex market situation, the structures of the Client Coverage & Advisory Coordination Area
continued to assist their customers in complex, strategic financial operations, confirming its leadership on the market and
positive performance in terms of the results achieved in the last few years. Specifically, the Customer Relations, Global
Corporate and Institutional Clients worked in synergy with the new Corporate Finance & Advisory structure and Product Desk,
pursuing the goal of favouring and consolidating strategic dialogue with its target customers, making it possible to identify
numerous significant business opportunities.

In 2023, the Bank confirmed its role as strategic and financial partner to its Italian and international Global Corporate
customers, supporting them by organising and patrticipating in a number of financing and investment banking transactions,
thanks to its specialised expertise linked to the Industry model and the cooperation with the other structures of the Division
dedicated to developing strategic operations. The actions to support corporate customers in handling the complex
macroeconomic and geopolitical scenario, marked by profound changes, continued. The Bank continued to play an active role
in supporting the revival of the Italian economy, supporting the National Recovery and Resilience Plan (NRRP), including
through development of its production chains, an indispensable driver for Italy and the heart of its economic and
entrepreneurial system. In this area, Intesa Sanpaolo, along with a pool of banks, finalised a complex financial package for
Ansaldo Energia, a strategic company for Italy, to support its new Business Plan. The Group participated in numerous
syndicated loans, including those for Terna, Carnival, Saipem, Cellnex, Edison, TRIG, AGSM AIM, Pirelli, PPF Telecom,
General Motors and Ventient. During the period, the coverage of ESG issues was expanded further, coordinating with a
specialised team of the Division, to offer the best service to our customers to support their sustainability and energy transition
strategies, providing green, social, sustainability and sustainability-linked financial products and instruments. Due to its skills
developed on ESG issues, the Group participated in several syndicated loans, including those for Hera, Campari, Prysmian,
Lavazza, Italo NTV, Fincantieri, Iberdrola, Engie, Aena, 2i Aeroporti and City Green Light. Bilateral ESG loans specifically
included those to Feralpi, Endesa and Ferrovie dello Stato Italiane. In the ESG area, the Group also signed an agreement
with Carrefour Italia that involves activating a credit line with ESG characteristics, for the purpose of issuing guarantees. The
Parent Company participated in numerous project financing transactions, including financing to H2 Green Steel to build a
green hydrogen steel production plant in Sweden (PFI Europe Sustainability Deal of the Year 2023), Aguas Horizonte
(Marubeni Group) to build a desalination plant in Chile, Low Carbon to develop projects in the renewable energy sector in the
United Kingdom and the Netherlands, OPDEnergy to build two photovoltaic solar packs in Virginia and Louisiana, Bruc to
develop a portfolio of renewable energy projects in Spain. Of particular importance was the participation, as coordinating lead
arranger, joint bookrunner and co-green loan structuring agent, in the loan to Pattern Energy to implement the SunZia project,
which involves building the largest wind energy plant in the Western hemisphere. We also note the loan to support a
consortium formed by GIP and Perdaman Industries to build and manage a urea production plant in Australia, as well as
various actions in the digital infrastructure segment (fibre, towers and data centres) including the loan to AT&T to establish a
JV with Blackrock, the loan to support the spin-off of A1Towers and the loan to QTS to build a new facility in Atlanta, Georgia
(USA). It is worth noting the support to acquisition financing in important operations carried out during the period, including the
acquisition of a stake in GD Towers held by Deutsche Telekom by DigitalBridge and Brookfield and the acquisition of the
leading European group of data centres Data4 by Brookfield. In the Debt Capital Markets, the Bank acted as bookrunner in
numerous issues, including Volkswagen Bank, AT&T, Kering, General Motors, Ford Motor, Stellantis, CA Auto Bank, Leasys,
CNH Industrial, Piaggio, Davide Campari, Abertis, Engineering, Assa Abloy, RCI Banque, 2i ReteGas and Nestlé. It also
completed the placement of Green bonds, including those issued by Ferrovie dello Stato Italiane, Iberdrola, Engie, TAQA,
Volkswagen Leasing, Telefonica and Covivio. With regard to M&A activities, the Group consolidated its position of leadership
on the Italian market, ranking in first place in the LSEG Refinitiv classification by value of transactions concluded in 2023,
further developing its business in a complex market scenario, finalising various operations, including the role of sole financial
advisor for the Marcegaglia Group in the acquisition by the Finnish Outokumpu of the Long Products Division, for Masdar in
the joint investment with Iberdrola in the Baltic Eagle offshore wind farm, for ATM in the acquisition of a stake in M4, and the
role of advisor for Autogrill in the merger with Dufry following the mandatory Public Takeover Bid. In Equity Capital Markets, in
a weak equity market context featuring persisting risk aversion by investors, equity origination was aimed at promptly seizing
the best business opportunities, with the goal of maintaining the leading position on the ECM and equity-linked markets in
Italy and successfully continuing the process of internationalisation through participation in highly visible operations. In this
context, the Bank completed the listing of EuroGroup Laminations on the Euronext Milan with the role of joint global
coordinator and, at international level, the IPOs of Thyssenkrupp Nucera and Arm, the latter being the most important listing
of the year. The Group also participated in the voluntary takeover bid on Mediaset Espafia as bookrunner and financial
advisor, in the spin-off of Kenvue by Johnson & Johnson and in the issue of a structured convertible bond with green
characteristics by Nordex, as joint bookrunner.

With regard to Institutional Clients, in the banking sector, Intesa Sanpaolo carried out numerous issues on the primary market
for refinancing and securitisation. The roles held at domestic level include roles held in the inaugural senior preferred bond
issue of Cassa Centrale Banca, in the covered bond (CB) issues of Unicredit, Credit Agricole Italia and Banco BPM, which
now account for the total CB issues under the new regulations, and in the senior non-preferred issue of Credem. Senior loans
to support customers in securitisations continued to be provided, despite the complex market scenario. Also at the domestic
level, in the first half of 2023, an innovative agreement was finalised between the Group and the European Investment Bank
(EIB) to support several investments set out in the NRRP. Also on international markets, numerous operations were
concluded. Specifically, the Bank held the role of joint bookrunner in the senior benchmark issue in euro of HSBC Holdings,
and in the covered bond issues of Bawag, Erste Bank and LBBW, and the role of joint lead manager in the senior dual
tranche HoldCo issue of UBS. Also at European level, Intesa Sanpaolo acted as joint bookrunner in the issue of the first social
covered bond of La Banque Postale and in the senior preferred issue of Banco Santander. The Group was particularly active
on the Greek market, where it reached a strong position due to roles as structuring and placing agent in two synthetic
securitisations for a leading Greek bank and the role of joint lead manager in the senior preferred benchmark issues of
Eurobank, Alpha Bank and Piraeus Bank, confirming that it has strengthened its position also in the Mediterranean area.
Lastly, in the United States, the Bank acted as joint bookrunner for the second year running in the bond issue in euro of
Toronto-Dominion Bank and completed the important dual tranche issue in USD, the Group’s largest deal on the US market in
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the last ten years, confirming the significant appreciation of the Bank’s name by US investors. Operations with non-banking
financial institutions and with governments continued to achieve highly positive results, with specific regard to the
management of public debt, in a scenario of high interest rate volatility. In this area, it is worth noting the role of joint
bookrunner for the Ministry of the Economy and Finance in the placement of BTP, and for CDP in the placement of its first
green issue and its first issue in USD and, internationally, the roles of joint lead manager and bookrunner on issues by
government bodies in the Middle East. In addition, on the domestic market, we note the role of placement manager in the
issue by CDP of the bond reserved to retail customers for the purpose of supporting Italy’s growth. As regards operations with
domestic and international asset managers, sound volumes were confirmed, both on cash flow operations and on derivatives,
as well as greater interest in repo transactions. In the near-banking sector, we specifically note the portfolio financing
transactions through the subscription of senior tranches of securitisations, such as Banca Progetto, Sigla and Fincontinuo and
the role of joint bookrunner in two securitisation transactions of consumer assets: the first for the inaugural public issue of
receivables for salary-backed loans originated by IBL Banca and the second for auto loan transactions originated by
Santander Consumer Bank. The Bank was also joint bookrunner for the senior preferred bond issued by Banca Ifis and the
bilateral loans finalised with the leading operators in the consumer credit sector, specifically Compass and Agos. With regard
to the insurance area, in a difficult market context, the Bank’s activities mainly focused on derivative hedges on the separate
portfolio management of the life business, on repo transactions to support liquidity management and on structures for Class lI
retail products. In the real estate sector, the focus on transactions respecting ESG issues and innovation continues, both with
regard to income-generating investments and urban regeneration projects. In that area, as mandated lead arranger, the
Group structured a sustainability—linked loan for the redevelopment of the former Manifattura Tabacchi di Firenze promoted
by Aermont and a loan to support the project for residential renovation and development of an area located in Rome by Savills
IM SGR and RedTree Capital, and a loan to support the renovation project of Torri dell’Eur in Roma by Alfiere and CDP Real
Asset SGR. Transactions with financial institutions on emerging markets in 2023 were marked by significant caution in relation
to the difficult economic and financial scenario. Thus, the Bank merely selectively took on credit risk, mainly to support the
commercial operations of its corporate customers and promote Global Markets products. In this area, we note the finalisation
of initial repo transactions with Turkish banks in the second half of 2023. Loans for supply chain financing remained of
considerable interest to the Bank. Following a phase of relative decline in 2022, operations grew gradually, though selectively,
both in terms of volumes and counterparties financed. As regards activities linked to Private Equity funds, the Group recorded
a good number of operations concluded with its customers in the reference period, in a market scenario that internationally
certainly impacted the origination of new transactions. Mid-market operations, which are typically domestic, remained stronger
in terms of volumes. On the Italian market, the Bank acted as M&A advisor, bookrunner and MLA in the acquisition financing
to support NB Renaissance in acquiring U-Power, the leading Italian group in the safety shoe sector, as well as global
coordinator, bookrunner and MLA in the acquisition financing to support SK Capital in acquiring Ecopol, an Italian group that
is the European leader in the manufacture of water-soluble and biodegradable films. On international markets, where the
Group continues to consolidate its presence, the Bank acted as bookrunner to support Blackstone in two transactions to
refinance a portion of maturing debt of Merlin Entertainment, global leader in the amusement park sector and, on the US
market, the role of lending bank to support Cinven in the incremental loan for Drake Software, leading tech company in the tax
software sector. With regard to Fund Financing, we specifically note the operations in favour of NB Aurora and Fondo Italiano
di Investimento, where the Bank acted as arranger and sole lender. Internationally, the Group acted as lender and co-
arranger for several subscription lines of leading flagship funds, including funds managed by Blackstone, Blackrock, KKR,
HPS and Ardian. Business with Sovereign Wealth Funds (SWF) and Pension Funds (PF) was particularly vigorous and fruitful
in the year, involving a wide range of areas of operations in the “core” sectors (TMT, Energy and Infra) and privileging projects
with ESG characteristics, such as direct support to SWF, the participation in competitive processes for investment in target
companies by SWF/PF and the financing of portfolio companies. As a result of its consolidated relationships with the main
SWEF in the Middle East and Far East, the Bank held important roles in numerous operations directly supporting their needs,
including a green term loan to support the construction of an infrastructural project, the refinancing of lines for a Sovereign
Fund of Abu Dhabi and the subscription of bonds from SWF issuers. With regard to activities relating to investment
processes, the Group acted as underwriter, bookrunner and MLA in loans for the acquisition of a stake in Lyntia Networks
(TMT Spagna) by Swiss Life AM/HRL Morrison, the acquisition of the TLC towers from Vodafone by a consortium comprised
of KKR and GIP and supported by PIF, and the acquisition of NGGT (gas transmission in the UK) by BCI (a Canadian PF)
and Macquarie AM. Lastly, we note the operations carried out with the portfolio companies of SWFs, including the project
financing in the Far East in favour of Renew Power (CPPIB/ADIA), the refinancing of two gas pipelines in the US/Mexico
(Esentia/Mubadala Capital) and Brazil (TAG/CDPQ), as well as various infrastructure operations, further confirming the
Group’s sound positioning as a qualified partner recognised at international level of the main SWP/PF.
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Distribution Platforms & GTB Coordination Area

Financial products and services aiming for excellence are offered in Italy through a dedicated network, the IMI C&IB ltalian
Network. In 2023, due to its widespread organisation structured in 6 geographical areas and the origination abilities of two
dedicated teams, the IMI C&IB Italian Network confirmed its role of strategic and financial support to Italian customers,
assisting them by organising and participating in numerous financing and investment banking operations.

It continued providing full support to customer businesses, also due to the use of public guarantees made available within the
framework of support measures defined to combat the difficulties deriving from the Russia-Ukraine conflict and the resulting
energy crisis.

Significant activities were carried out in support of Italian companies, by issuing guarantees for participation in tenders related
to the NRRP, and, more generally, tenders for works, contracts and investments of the Public Administration.

In partnership with Deloitte, the digital platform "IncentNow" was launched to provide information to Italian companies and
institutions on the opportunities offered by public tenders available over time. This way, customers can easily and
autonomously consult the tenders available based on their characteristics (business segment, turnover and geographical
area). There was a specific focus on initiatives supporting the ecological transition (ESG) and the process of digitalising the
dialogue between the bank and corporate customers. In this regard, the update of the InBiz portal, provided to corporate
customers, for the centralised digital management of Cash Management and Trade Finance solutions, from the most
traditional to the highly-innovative, continued.

The Division’s current international network is present in 25 countries, supporting the cross-border activities of both Italian and
international customers, through a specialised international network comprised of 16 wholesale branches (including the hubs),
8 representative offices (in addition to the Brussels office at Group level, reporting to European Regulatory & Public Affairs
and in charge of managing relations with supranational regulators), 4 Corporate Banks (Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Ireland, Intesa
Sanpaolo Bank Luxembourg, Intesa Sanpaolo Brasil S.A. and Banca Intesa - Russia), which carry out corporate and
investment banking operations, in addition to Intesa Sanpaolo IMI Securities Corporation in New York.

In 2023, the IMI C&IB International Network continued to monitor with the utmost attention the international political and
economic situation created by the Russia-Ukraine conflict and, in October, also by the worsening of the crisis in the Middle
East, to limit its impacts on the operations of the international network, also in light of the subsequent harsh international
sanctions. On 1st August the closure of Intesa Sanpaolo’s representative office in Moscow was completed.

In line with the 2022-2025 Business Plan, to confirm Intesa Sanpaolo’s position among the main global players offering ESG
products and services, the activities and initiatives to support international customers more sensitive to those issues
continued.

During the period, the project to strengthen the Doha branch was completed. Works are under way to optimise the operating
platform of the international network.

With regard to the Global Transaction Banking offer, in order to support Italian and international customers with cutting edge
solutions, in 2023, implementations continued in the payments, working capital management and import-export support areas.
Specifically, developments continued for the creation of a modern international payment management infrastructure, in
addition to advanced solutions for liquidity management, also in different currencies.

Developments relating to projects to revise the operating models continued in the areas of Trade Finance, Cash Management
and Payments on the Group’s international branches, with the goal of streamlining the existing processes and, as a result,
enable the network of relations and the transaction banking specialists to focus more on advisory activities and on promoting
digital strategies, also for the Group’s International Subsidiary Banks.

The digitalisation of the portfolio of services and the assessment of ESG solutions continued. Global Transaction Banking
participates in institutional initiatives to revolutionise the banking system in the digital field, such as the Central Bank Digital
Currency (CBDC) for the digital euro and digital assets.

With regard to Syndication & Risk Sharing distribution activities, in the period, issues of syndicated loans were lower in all
geographic areas compared to 2022, reflecting the continuing difficult geopolitical and macroeconomic scenario, the
increased volatility on the capital markets and the significant reduction in M&A operations. Nonetheless, Syndication and Risk
Sharing confirmed its leading position in the Italian and international markets where Intesa Sanpaolo operates, acting as
arranger and distributing, as bookrunner, a large number of syndicated loans for both large and mid-cap corporate customers
throughout the world. The primary significant transactions include corporate loans, pro-acquisition loans and event-driven
loans, as well as high-profile structured transactions and structured finance transactions. ESG issues were a crucial of focus
for Syndication & Risk Sharing activities, as demonstrated by the roles held in many loans linked to the environment and
sustainability. In addition to the syndication of positions on corporate risk, in the second half the Bank launched the
distribution of risks on financial institutions, typically in the form of senior notes of securitisations and/or revolving facilities,
issued and subscribed in favour of banks, financial sponsors and/or specialised investment funds. Distribution activities
availed of the collaboration of international banks and institutional investors, through true sales and synthetic risk transfers, on
both Italian and European assets.

Global Banking & Markets Coordination Area

The Division adopted a constructive approach in 2023, specifically based on the expectations of a decrease in inflation and
volatility. The investment portfolio was supported by new allocations on government bonds, also of emerging countries, and
on covered bonds, constantly monitoring the risk/return profiles, also improving the portfolio’s ESG profile. The management
of DVAs, featuring a more defensive approach in the first half of the year in relation to the events connected with the US and
Swiss regional banks, then gradually increased the levels of coverage in the second half, accompanying the improvement in
credit risk appetite at global level. Market making with customers, influenced by the actions of the Central Banks, always
remained at high levels. In the last part of the year, in the wake of more encouraging macroeconomic data, investors’ risk
appetite significantly increased. The Division also oversaw secured financing with customers, which saw a significant increase
in the new monetary policy scenario. Collateral management supported the business of OTC derivatives with customers.
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During the period investments in Private Equity and Private Debt funds and Hedge Funds in UCITS format continued, in order
to optimise RWAs. In the certificates sector, in a context of high interest rates and volatility, an opportunity was created to
diversify our offering. New issues were not concentrated only on equities, but also on payoffs linked to interest rates and
credit. The expansion of the product offering was highly and positively received by customers. That new approach also acted
as a driver for secondary trading, with resulting benefits in terms of liquidity and volumes issued. Benefiting from the rise in
returns, Market Hub increased the bond dealing component in terms of values and orders executed. In 2023 the contribution
of Financial Digital & Markets Tech was key to automating the life cycle of financial products and to evolve trading tools
towards algorithmic solutions, as well as to exposure the opportunities linked to the digitalisation of currency and market
infrastructures, in line with the consolidation of the legislative and regulatory framework. Regarding the primary equity market,
in a scenario of slight recovery on the previous year, though still far from the records of 2021, the Division participated in
numerous, important domestic and international operations, taking on various roles. The main operations include three
takeover bids (Aedes Siig, Prima Industrie and Dea Capital, as leading Agent, joint leading agent e advisor & leading agent,
respectively), a convertible bond (Saipem, as joint global co-ordinator), and a capital increase (Pierrel, in the role of advisor).
International operations included overseeing three IPOs (Arm, Nucera and Kenvue, as co-manager, co-lead manager and
new co-manager, respectively) and an ABB (Lseg, as co-lead manager). The European and Italian bond markets were
characterised by an increase in volumes issued. The Division saw an increase in the number of operations it participated in
and ranked in first place in ltaly for volumes placed in the Corporate Investment Grade segment. In this segment, the Bank
acted as joint bookrunner for numerous ESG issues of leading issuers, such as Enel, ENI, Snam, ASPI, A2A, ADR, Acea,
Pirelli, Heidelberg Materials, Deutsche Bahn, EDP and Cemex. It also stood out as a manufacturer in the sustainability -linked
retail issue of ENI. In the Institutional Clients segment, the Division acted as joint bookrunner in numerous issues of leading
financial institutions, including Credito Emiliano, ICCREA, BNP Paribas, Commerzbank and D-Bank, also in the ESG field. In
the Supranational, Sovereigns and Agencies (SSA) area, the Bank stood out as joint bookrunner and co-manufacturer in the
issue of Cassa Depositi e Prestiti reserved exclusively to retail customers, as well as in the issues of BTP Italia reserved to
both retail and institutional customers, and of BTP Valore reserved exclusively to retail customers in lItaly. In emerging
markets, the Bank acted as joint bookrunner for the issues of Turk Eximbank, Republic of Albania, Teva and Emirate of
Sharjah. In 2023, Structured Finance activities confirmed the Bank’s leadership on the Italian market (also on
ESG/Circular/Green issues) and successfully continued the business on the international market. Corporate loans granted to
Italian and international customers of the Division operating in various economic sectors (including those for the purpose of
acquisitions and investments for growth, in addition to those with SACE Supportltalia guarantee) reported volumes in line with
2022. The Bank continued its selective approach in pursuing new opportunities, with the intention of supporting its customers
where the conditions were met, confirming its position of leadership in Italy and successfully continuing its business on the
international market. Geographical diversification and the "originate to share" approach led to the conclusion of numerous
loan transactions to support important Italian and international industrial operators and financial investors in various
infrastructure and public utility services sectors, in line with the growth strategy of the Division, with specific attention to
ESG/Circular/Green issues. In the period, securitisation activities confirmed the Division’s leadership in Italy, both in providing
support to customers and in managing financial risk, also with innovative ESG-linked solutions, and asset-based financing.
The Division structured, financed (also through the Group’s conduit platform) and distributed solutions for its customers aimed
at streamlining funding and improving asset quality ratios, with structures dedicated to deconsolidating performing and non-
performing assets, optimising economic and regulatory capital - which is seeing growing demand from customers, and
improving the net financial position of its customers. The Division also acted as a competence centre for corporate finance
transactions Banca dei Territori Division and International Subsidiary Banks Division customers. The most important
transactions include the role of sole financial advisor in the sale of a majority stake in Pinalli S.r.l. to the H.1.G. Capital fund, of
financial advisor of Sicily by Car in the business combination with SPAC Industrial Stars of Italy 4, of global coordinator, sole
bookrunner & issuing bank in the loan of T. Mariotti, and arranger in the loan to Marchesi Antinori to support the acquisition of
100% of the US company Stag’s Leap Wine Cellars.
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International Subsidiary Banks

millions of euro

Income statement Changes
amount

Net interest income 2,332 1,592 740 46.5

Net fee and commission income 583 574 9 1.6

Income from insurance business - - - -

Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value 90 129 -39 -30.2
Other operating income (expenses) -80 -68 12 17.6
Operating income 2,925 2,227 698 31.3
Personnel expenses -619 -573 46 8.0
Other administrative expenses -461 -431 30 7.0
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -117 -114 3 2.6
Operating costs -1,197 -1,118 79 7.1
Operating margin 1,728 1,109 619 55.8
Net adjustments to loans -206 -345 -139 -40.3
Other net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets -54 -20 34

Other income (expenses) 123 35 88

Income (Loss) from discontinued operations - - - -
Gross income (loss) 1,591 779 812

Taxes on income -330 -191 139 72.8
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -48 -44 4 9.1
Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) -6 - 6 -
Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry (net of tax) -34 -40 -6 -15.0

Impairment (net of tax) of goodwill and other intangible assets - - - -

Minority interests - - - -

Net income (loss)

millions of euro

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 Changes

amount
Loans to customers 42,050 40,212 1,838 4.6
Direct deposits from banking business 57,910 54,364 3,546 6.5
Risk-weighted assets 36,071 35,056 1,015 2.9
Absorbed capital 3,905 3,793 112 3.0
Figures r d, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued
operations.

The International Subsidiary Banks Division is responsible for the Group’s activities in foreign markets through commercial
banking subsidiaries and associates, mainly active in retail banking.

In 2023, the Division’s operating income came to 2,925 million euro, growing sharply compared to the previous year (+31.3%;
+41.3% at constant exchange rates). A detailed analysis shows that net interest income came to 2,332 million euro (+46.5%),
mainly due to the favourable performance of PBZ — including Intesa Sanpaolo Bank (Slovenia) and Intesa Sanpaolo Ban